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1. DEPARTMENT’S GENERAL INFORMATION

Telephone Number : +27 (0) 12 444 6000

Physical Address : Tourism House, 17 Trevenna Street, Sunnyside,
0002

Postal Address : Private Bag X424, Pretoria, 0001

Call centre : +27 (0) 86 0 86 8747

Call centre email : callcentre@tourism.gov.za

Switchboard number : +27 (0) 12 444 6000

Switchboard fax : +27 (0) 12 444 7000

Website : tourism.qov.za

Facebook: Department of Tourism
Twitter: @ Tourism_gov_za
Instagram: departmentoftourism_
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2, LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS

AGSA Auditor-General of South Africa

APP Annual Performance Plan

AU African Union

BAS Basic Accounting System

BBBEE Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment

BRICS Brazil, Russia, India, China and South Africa

CAF Commission for Africa

CATHSSETA Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality and Sport Sector Education
and Training Authority

DEA Department of Environmental Affairs

DEAT Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism

DEDEAT Department of Economic Development, Environmental Affairs
and Tourism

DHA Department of Home Affairs

DPSA Department of Public Service and Administration

DPW Department of Public Works

EHW Employee Health and Wellness

EPWP Expanded Public Works Programme

Fedhasa Federated Hospitality Association of Southern Africa

FET Further Education and Training

FGASA Field Guides Association of South Africa

FOSAD Forum of South African Directors-General

FTE Full-time equivalent

GCIS Government Communication and Information System

GDP Gross domestic product

GHG Greenhouse gas

HDE historically disadvantaged enterprises

HR Human-resources

HRD Human-resource development

ICT Information and communications technology

IDP Integrated Development Plan

IT Information technology

KMF Knowledge Management Framework

KZN KwaZulu-Natal

M&E monitoring and evaluation

MinMec Minister and Members of the Executive Council

MIPTECH MinMec Interprovincial Technical Committee

MoU memorandum of understanding

MTEF Medium Term Expenditure Framework

NCOP National Council of Provinces

NDP National Development Plan

Nepad New Partnership for Africa’s Development

NES National Events Strategy

NGP New Growth Path
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NMSRT National Minimum Standards for Responsible Tourism ]
NTCE National Tourism Careers Expo

NTIG National Tourism Information Gateway

NTSS National Tourism Sector Strategy

NVIF National Visitor Information Framework

NYCTP National Youth Chefs Training Programme
ORTIA OR Tambo International Airport

PAC Project Advisory Committee

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

PGDS Provincial Growth and Development Strategy
PICC Presidential Infrastructure Coordinating Commission
PMDS Performance Management Development System
PoA Plan of Action

PSC Personal Suitability Checks

PSCBC Public Service Coordinating Bargaining Council
RETOSA Regional Tourism Organisation of Southern Africa
RMC Risk Management Committee

RTMC Road Traffic Management Corporation

SA South Africa

SADC Southern African Development Community
SANS South African National Standard

SA Tourism South African Tourism

SAQA South African Qualifications Authority

SCM Supply Chain Management

Sita State Information Technology Agency

SMMEs Small, medium and micro-enterprises

SMS Senior Management Services

SRI Social Responsibility Implementation

STR State of Tourism Report

SWOT strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, threats
TAAP Tourism Accelerated Apprenticeship Programme
TBCSA Tourism Business Council of South Africa

TEP Tourism Enterprise Partnership

TIP Tourism Incentive Programme

TKP Tourism Knowledge Portal

TLD Tourism Leadership Dialogue

ToR Terms of Reference

TTF Tourism Transformation Fund

TS&AS Tourism Safety and Awareness Strategy

UA Universal Access

UAT Universal Accessibility in Tourism

UN United Nations

UNWTO United Nations World Tourism Organization
WSP Workplan Skills Plan

WTO World Trade Organization

WTTC World Travel and Tourism Council
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3. FOREWORD BY THE MINISTER

Tourism is a key sector with a significant impact on economic development and growth
across the globe. Tourism has experienced consistent growth over the past eight decades,
and continues to be one of the fastest growing economic sectors in the world. The UNWTO
predicts sustained long term growth, and expects international tourist arrivals to reach 1.8
billion by 2030. In Africa, the potential for exponential growth is huge. Tourism in our
continent, as a key economic driver, is a beacon of hope in growing the continent’s economy
and addressing social challenges such as poverty. In 2018, Africa reached 67 million
international tourist arrivals, a growth of 7% on 2017, comfortably ahead of the worldwide

average growth of 6%.

In October last year, we successfully hosted the second Indian Ocean Rim Association
(IORA) Tourism Ministerial meeting in Port Elizabeth. As part of the implementation of
IORA’s five-year Action Plan (2017-2021), the IORA Tourism Core Group was established, a
work plan was approved and the Nelson Mandela Bay Declaration was signed by tourism
ministers from all the member states. This gathering was held under the theme “JORA —
uniting the peoples of Africa, Asia, Australasia, and the Middle East through enhanced co-
operation for peace, stability and sustainable development”.

South Africa continues to play a significant role in the development of tourism on the African
continent and promotion of regional cooperation. South Africa chaired the Southern African
Development Community (SADC) from August 2017 - August 2018. During this period, the
department actively participated in the development of a SADC Tourism Programme which
will be presented by the SADC Secretariat to the SADC Council of Ministers for approval in
August 2019. The programme will provide guidance and direction on to achieve tourism
competitiveness for the region.

The close of the 2018/2019 financial year comes at the back of a significant milestone in our
liberation history, and that is, the celebration of South Africa’s 25 years of constitutional
democracy. There is no doubt that tourism has come very far. The biggest impact of
becoming a democracy and being accepted back into the family of nations, was that our
destination, with its undisputed competitive advantage could, for the first time, attract foreign
leisure and business travellers who had previously shunned an unethical apartheid state.
Our unbelievable scenic beauty and variety of safari and nature experiences, unique and
varied heritage and culture, our unmatched marine life, sports and adventure activities, our
tranquil villages, vibrant cities and townships — could take their rightful place on centre stage
as amongst the best of the best in the world.

International arrivals have grown tremendously since the dawn of democracy, however the
financial year 2018/19, there were 10.4 million international tourism trips, a decline of 0.6%
compared to 10.5 million in 2017/18. Notwithstanding the decline, tourism injected R116.9
bilion into the South African economy in 2018/19 through the direct spend of both
international and domestic tourists. This represents an increase of 12.7% compared to
R103.8 billion in 2017/18. This underscores the fact that a growing tourism sector can make
a tremendous impact in our economy and create many jobs. The department will put
strategies in place to tap into new markets and ensure that going forward we arrest the
decline and put the sector on a growth trajectory.

In 2018, the construction of a world class Dinosaur Interpretive Centre commenced and will
continue into the 2019/20 financial year. This project has already begun to create
sustainable livelihoods for people living in towns such as Phuthaditjaba. Once complete, the
project will serve as a distinct and globally competitive state of the art centre, modelled on
the interpretation of the ancient paleontological, archaeological and geological findings in
and around to the Golden Gate Highlands National Park.
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In impiementing the Coastal and Marine Tourism programme under Operation Phakisa, one
of the initiatives prioritised by the department is the development of the Indi-Atlantic Route,
covering all four coastal provinces. This programme aims to uniock the economic potential of
the oceans economy and create employment and entrepreneurial opportunities for
communities along the South African coastline. Following the completion of the supply and
demand analysis for the route, three regions have been identified where infrastructure
development will be activated; Along parts of the Orange in the Northern Cape stretching to
the river mouth, Hole in the Wall and Coffee Bay in the Eastern Cape, and the Harold
Johnson Nature Reserve in KwaZulu Natal. Work is underway to get these projects into the
implementation phase.

The Department of Tourism is committed to advancing Outcome 4, that of creating Decent
employment through inclusive economic growth. Last year, we were able to sustain a
total of 3199 Full-time Equivalent (FTEs) annual jobs through the Working for Tourism
Programme, under the Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP). Admittedly, EPWP
capital projects have experienced many challenges which include poor execution project
implementation plan, poor project management and other systems failure. These challenges
led to this programme incurring unnecessary cosfs deemed as wasteful and fruitless
expenditure. These challenges are receiving our utmost attention including consequence
management for wrongdoers. The fourth phase of the EPWP was approved by Cabinet, and
implementation began in April 2019, and it will run untit March 2024. During this period, a
total of 5 038 271 work opportunities and 2 376 003 FTE jobs will be sustained across the
system.

Regarding the Tourism Amendment Bill, we have received public comments and we are
busy analysing the comments for implications on the Bill. The Bill seeks to improve the
Tourism Act of 2014 by providing, among other things; a clear definition of short term home
rental as well as enabling the Minister to determine thresholds for short-term home rentals;
for additional competency requirements for tourist guides; and to for regulations to improve
safety and enhance experience of tourists in relation to tourist guiding. Tourism is a dynamic
sector with ever changing trends, and, like any other industry, it embraces disruptions and
the digital economy. It is thus important for governments to keep up with the changes, and
continue providing an enabling environment for tourism to thrive appropriately.

Safety is another challenge facing South Africa in general, and by extension our tourists. We
have finalised the recruitment of over 1 000 safety monitors that have been, or will be placed
at tourist attractions with high tourist traffic, such as hiking trails, national parks and urban
tourist centres. This is a dual initiative, in the sense that it also serves as an employment and
capacity building programme for young people living in communities around these tourist
attractions, thereby making a meaningful contribution to poverty alleviation.
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SMMESs are the bedrock of tourism development in South Africa, and we have a range of
incentive programmes aimed at developing small tourism enterprise to ensure their
sustainabllity. One of these is the Tourism Transformation Fund (TTF). The cument TTF
pipeline consists of 119 applications of ﬁhich 92 applications are basic assessment stage,
with 23 of those under due diligence review. Additionally, to drive transformation 1 604
black-owned suppliers were registered on the Tourism B-BBEE Portal to trade with large
enterprises. The suppliers registered in areas such as food and beverages supply, operating
and maintenance equipment and professional services. And in recognition of the fact that
small enterprises need support to develop into sustainable businesses we have established
4 incubators which are operational in Manyeleti, Phalaborwa, Mier, and Pilanesberg, and
they are currently supporting 202 enterprises as beneficiaries.

The department is committed to growing the sector in an inclusive way both demographically
by empowering women and youth and geographically by ensuring tourism flourishes in rural
areas and small towns. The majority of people employed in the tourism sector are women
however there ie a paucity of women in managerial positions. The department has partnered
with UNISA to facilitate training of 40 women in the Executive Development Programme. The
department has also put together a number of programmes for youth development and the
2018/19 youths were trained in areas such as NTIMS data collection, National Youth Chefs
Training Programme, experiential training in restaurants and many others. With regards, to
geographical spread, the department is working to expand the benefits of tourism to rural
areas and townships.

It is my pleasure to present the 2018/19 Annual Report, which provides a detailed account of
the Department of Tourism’s performance implementing programmes to deliver on inclusive
tourism growth. These programmes are in direct response to the objectives embedded in the
National Tourism Sector Strategy (NTSS). There is a continued and strong emphasis on
inclusive and sustainable growth in every plan, programme and project implemented by the
Depariment, to ensure that tourism benefits accrue to all our people and communities. The
Department of Tourism Is committed to fulfiling its supporting and enabling role towards
realisation of the objectives outlined in the NTSS and our 2030 goal of doubling international
tourist arrivals to 21 million as outlined by the President in his 2019 SONA. Tourism in South
Africa is gearing up to take off fo greater heights, and through collective efforts with our
partners and stakeholders, we will build on the successes achieved, restructure our
approach to address challenges and seize new opportunities.

| would like to extend my gratitude to Deputy Minister, Mr Fish Mahlelela for his support,
members of the Portfolio and Select Committees for their guidance, the accounting officer,
Director-General Victor Tharage and all the staff members at the Department. A special
appreciation is extended to former Minister Derek Hannekom and former Deputy Minister
Elizabeth Thabethe for their good work in the portfolio as well as our industry partners for
their efforts in helping us to advance inclusive growth in our sector, and delivering

memorable experiences to all our visitors.

Ky .
—— e
~.

Mmamoloké Kubayi-Ngubane, MP
Minister of Tourism
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4. DEPUTY MINISTER STATEMENT

During the year under review, we celebrated centenaries of Tata Nelson Mandela,
the founding father of our democracy and Mama Albertina Sisulu who paved the way
for our freedom through their activism and personal sacrifices. Their work and that of
many other activists have resulted in the recognition of the majority of the population
and women specifically as equal citizens who participate meaningfully in the political,
economic and social discourse of our country so as to contribute to the development
and growth of South Africa.

As a special tribute to Mama Sisulu, the department, in partnership with the South
African Chefs Association (SACA) produced the #MaSisulu100 Cook Book, a
compilation of African Cuisine recipes that were developed and tested by young
chefs who were beneficiaries of the National Youth Chefs Training Programme
(NYTCP).

The department implemented programmes to advance the transformation agenda in
line with the Revised National Tourism Sector Strategy during the financial year.
Performance with regard to Skills Development Programmes is as follows:

A total of 488 learners out of 577 that were initially enrolled completed and graduated
from the NYCTP across the country in October 2018. The programme is currently in
the second (2™) phase of implementation.

In April 2018, the department presented the NYCTP at the Ministers Roundtable
during the Global Summit of Women in Sydney, Australia as a best practice model of
an effective public-private partnership to train unemployed youth to become qualified
chefs by placing them with various hospitality establishments in order for them to
gain practical work experience that would give them opportunities to be absorbed by
the industry.

The programme was selected as the best amongst others that were presented by
various countries and was awarded a $5 000 cash prize which will be used to
mobilise additional funds from the private sector to establish a start-up fund for young
chefs who are interested in starting their own enterprises.

A total of 298 learners are currently active in the Sommelier/Wine Services
programme and have completed the 15t level of CATHSSETA training (Bar Attendant,
Customer Care and Sommelier 1-3). It is envisaged that the learners will complete
the course in 2020.

All nine provinces completed the Hospitality Youth Training Programme in Food &
Beverages as well as Accommodation Services graduating 1637 in March and April
2019.

Four hundred and eighty-nine out of five hundred enrolled learners completed the
Food Safety Assurers programme and graduated in October 2018.

12
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The Blue Flag Tourism Training Programme was implemented across the coastal
provinces of Kwa-ZuluNatal, Eastern Cape and Western Cape with 151 out of 200
learners who graduated in November 2018 and April 2019.

In addition, 113 out of 115 enrolled learners are undertaking training in the Tourism
Green Coast Programme and have been placed with host employers. The
programme is progressing well.

The Tourism Resources Efficiency Programme benefitted 47 learners out of 60
learners who graduated in February 2019. The programme will continue with a new
intake of 60 learners in the 2019-20 financial year.

The Hospitality Youth Training Programme (Fast Food) aims to recruit 2 357
unemployed youth from all provinces. Four provinces have commenced with the
training: Gauteng (575), Mpumalanga (300), Kwa Zulu Natal (575) and Eastern Cape
(200).

With regard to Tourism Enterprise Development Programmes, a total of 1 005 Small,
Micro and Medium enterprises (SMMEs) throughout the country benefitted through
business referral services, information sharing, public stakeholder engagement
sessions as well as 177 that received business management training through the
Empretec programme.

In terms of the Incubation programme, a total of 150 SMMEs underwent business
needs analysis and 50 received business development, advisory services, coaching,
tax management, occupational health and safety, social media workshops, website
development as well as other related courses and workshops.

The department in partnership with the South African National Parks (SANParks)
successfully made a joint submission to the Presidential Job Summit held in 2018 to
initiate a project that seeks to avail infrastructure maintenance business opportunities
across 23 national parks to new emerging contractors and co-operatives through
skills training within various parks.

The beneficiaries will be assisted to establish 60 small firms in the form of co-
operatives or (Pty) Ltd companies and will be trained in business management,
labour issues, finance and pricing, tax as well as marketing. Furthermore, they will be
guided through the process by professional business advisors and mentors while
ensuring maintenance of the national parks.

Another opportunity to empower youth in the Barista or coffee-making business was
identified in consultation with industry associations in the franchise and restaurant
sectors. The aim of the initiative is to support young people to become qualified
Baristas and to incubate them in established coffee shops.

13
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In this regard, the department will facilitate business management training for 300
youth from Kwa Zulu-Natal, Gauteng and Western Cape’s key cities of Durban,
Johannesburg and Cape Town.

In an effort to promote inclusive tourism destinations, the implementation of
community based tourism initiatives were facilitated by assisting selected
communities in scoping for business ideas, testing feasibility of the ideas and
developing viable business plans for further support. The following communities were
supported:

¢ Witsieshoek and Phuthaditjaba in Free State Province.

e Rampampa, Pilanesburg to Madikwe Corridor in the North West Province.

¢ Vilakazi Street Precinct, Soweto, in Gauteng Province.

¢ Khula Village outside St Lucia, in the iSimangaliso Wetlands Park, a World
Heritage Site, in KwaZulu-Natal Province.
eMazizini in the heart of the Amphitheatre, in the Drakensberg, in KwaZulu-
Natal Province.
Clanwilliam/ Citrusdal, West Coast Region, Western Cape Province.
Kosi Bay in KwaZulu Natal Province.
Port St Johns in Eastern Cape Province.
Karoo region, in the Northern Cape Province.
Makhado in Limpopo Province.

The Women in Tourism provincial chapters were launched in all provinces in
conjunction with provincial tourism departments and tourism agencies. In January
2019, the Women in Tourism Conference was convened in Rustenburg to
consolidate the work that had been done nationally as well as to plan the way
forward.

The second phase of the Executive Development Programme was rolled out with 40
women selected for the training. The group is expected to graduate in the first
quarter of the 2019-20 financial year. The objective of the programme is to empower
and develop women managers in the lower levels of the tourism industry with
leadership and strategic skills that will allow them to operate in complex

14



environments at executive and board levels.

The third and last intake of 20 candidates has been recruited and will be undertaking
training during 2019,

I thank Minister Mmamoloko Kubayi-Ngubane for her leadership, the Director-
General, top and senior management as well as the staff for their hard work in
carrying out the mandate of the department. My gratitude is aiso extended to the
Portfolio and Select Committees on Tourism for their oversight as well as our
partners who believe in the great vision of growing the economy of our country
through supporting and guiding the leaders of tomormrow, our youth and women.

#WedoTourism

Y ¥ f A . 4 2
st Maihald¥a))

Deputy Minister of Tourism
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5. REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
5.1  Overview of the operations of the Department

The overall legislative and policy direction for the department is provided for in the
Tourism Act, 2014 (Act No 3 of 2014) and the National Development Plan (NDP).
Accordingly, the department’s mandate is to grow South Africa’s inbound tourism and
its contribution to the country’s economy and its inclusivity; to promote greater quality
of tourism products and services; and to promote the practice of responsible tourism.
The key strategies focus on creating a conducive policy instruments, development of
the capacity to support sector growth, and creating a welcoming and value for money
destination.

The National Development Plan recognises tourism as one of the main drivers of
employment and economic growth. The key programmes of the department aim to
achieve this and were aligned to outcome 4 of the medium-term strategic framework
2014/15 to 2018/19 financial year, i.e. decent employment through inclusive growth.

The 1996 White Paper on the Development and Promotion of Tourism confirmed
South Africa’s approach to tourism grounded in cooperation and close partnerships
between all stakeholders. This approach has been instrumental in the achievements
made in tourism, especially in respect of partnerships in the development and
marketing of the country’s tourism. Being a concurrent function and a multi-faceted
sector, tourism development and growth depends on collaboration between the
national, provincial and local levels of government, partnerships with trade and
industry, and the support of host communities across South Africa. It requires
constant effort to improve interdepartmental collaboration, coordination across
provinces and engagement with industry. Some examples include the public-private
partnerships like the TOMSA levy collected by industry and transferred to
government to fund destination marketing initiatives and the Welcome Campaign that
galvanised country wide support for tourism development.

The department's Plan for the 2018/19 MTEF period was focused especially on
tourism job creation, tourism infrastructure development, and tourism support to
Small, Medium and Micro Enterprises (SMMEs), with a bias towards designated
groups (i.e. youth, women and people with disabilities) as beneficiaries. The Plan
was implemented in a manner that ensured wise investment of limited resources,
and in a targeted manner to maximise impact. All projects were communicated to all
tourism stakeholders and targeted audiences, especially those living in the townships
and rural communities, in order that they may know of all initiatives and how to
access them.

Marketing remains central to the objectives of promoting tourist arrivals to South
Africa as well as stimulating domestic tourism. This mandate is delegated to South
African Tourism (SA Tourism) to market the country as a destination of choice for
leisure tourism and business events. South African Tourism, has been actively
implementing its 5-in-5 Strategy since the beginning of 2017 to attain the target of
five million more tourist trips in 5 years. For this purpose, the department is expected
to transfer 53.2 per cent (R4 billion) of its total budget over the MTEF period to the
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entity. However, the entity’s performance at just under 50% and about R98 million in
irregular expenditure raises a concern for the department. Going forward, the
department will strengthen the oversight frameworks on the entity and its business.

The department expects a reduction in its personnel from 484 in 2018/19 to 475 in
2021/22 to remain within government's expenditure ceiling for compensation of
employees. Nevertheless, spending on compensation of employees is expected to
increase at an average annual rate of 7.3 per cent, from R310.4 million in 2018/19 to
R383.7 million in 2021/22, in line with cost of living adjustments.

Working for Tourism Programme is implemented through the Expanded Public
Works Programme (EPWP) funding, which focuses on job creation linked to the
development of tourism infrastructure and skills development within the tourism
sector. Whilst there has been relative success with the skills development and other
non-capital projects albeit with challenges of incurring irregular expenditure based on
the conduct of implementing agents, there has been serious challenges with capital
projects. These challenges include amongst others poorly conceived projects, poor
project management practices, and poor performance by implementing agents.
These have caused the department significant amount fruitless and wasteful
expenditure. As the accounting officer, | commit the department to further investigate
the causes of the fruitless and wasteful expenditure and ensure that consequences
are applied in cases of transgression and ensure proper accounting treatment
thereof. Some of the projects date as far back as 2009, and were stopped as more
and more money was requested yet little progress on the ground could justify. It is
also in these projects that previous forensic_inveStigations were conducted and
criminal and civil cases were opened, most of which are still under investigation.

Whilst the department was aware that something was wrong with some of the
projects based on the assessments by GTAC and the forensic investigators, it had
not been able to quantify the full financial extent of the problem. To this effect, the
department assessed the fair value of the projects on the ground with the help of
professionals against the actual cost incurred yielding the wasteful and fruitless
expenditure as disclosed. This was due inadequate availability of records of activities
of Built Environment professionals to justify expenditure.

These projects are important for participation of communities in tourism, particularly
in rural areas and township. But they are also important for sector transformation and
job creation. Over the period ahead, the department aims to create an estimated 12
993 full-time equivalent jobs through this Programme. As part of the broader EPWP
the Working for Tourism sub-programme in the Destination Development programme
is allocated 15.4 per cent (R1.2 billion) of the department’s total budget over the
medium term. This includes additional funding amounting to R67 million over the
MTEF period for the expanded public works programme incentive approved by
Cabinet.

Encouraging transformation in the tourism sector remains a priority for the
department. One way of doing this was to move beyond recognition of SMMEs as
the bedrock of tourism development in South Africa, towards implementation of a
range of incentive programmes aimed at encouraging the development and
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sustainability of tourism enterprises. To facilitate enterprise growth and expansion,
and thereby stimulate job creation and transformation in the tourism sector, the
Tourism Incentive Programme in the Tourism Sector Support Services programme
focused on facilitating conformity to quality standards through wider participation in
the tourism grading system, enable black-owned businesses to access foreign
tourism markets, uniock investment by black entrepreneurs in viable tourism projects
by reducing funding gaps that may exist between loans and own contributions,
encourage enterprises to become more energy efficient, and support the growth of
the green economy through job creation and enterprise development.

The department has expanded its Enterprise Development and Transformation
Programme to transform the tourism sector and provide developmental support to
tourism enterprises. The programme forms part of the key strategy for introducing
new players in the tourism economy and achieve the transformation objectives. It
supports the growth of tourism enterprises in a manner that facilitates inclusive
participation, job creation and contributes to the competitiveness of tourism
destinations.

5.2 Overview of the financial results of the Department

Programme Adjustment Virement | Final Expenditure | Over/ Virement

Appropriation Appropriation (Under)

Expenditure

R’000 R’'000 R’'000 R’000 R’000 %
Administration 271 415 (4 957) 266 458 260 730 5728 (1.83)
Tourism 1281 995 6135 1288 130 1283 908 4222 0.48
Research, Policy
and International
Relations
Destination 401 754 5093 406 847 398 447 8 400 1.27
Development
Tourism Sector 306 653 (6 271) 300 382 291 717 8 665 (2.04)
Support Services
Total 2 261 817 - 2261 817 2 234 802 27 015 -

5.21 Virement

In accordance with Section 43 of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, the
Accounting Officer of the department may utilise a saving in the amount appropriated
under a main division within a vote towards the defrayment of excess expenditure
under another main division on condition that it does not exceed eight per cent of the
amount appropriated under that main division. The virements between main divisions
were for compensation of employees to stay within the earmarked amount allocated
to the department. The earmarked amount for compensation of employees for the
2018/19 financial year was R320,353 million.

5.2.2 Underspending
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The Department spent 98.8% of its total budget for the 2018/19 financial year and
achieved 83,75% of the annual performance targets. The Department spent the total
Working for Tourism (Expanded Public Works Programme and Expanded Public
Works Incentive Programme) budget allocated in Programme 3: Destination
Development. The Tourism Incentive Programme within Programme 4: Tourism
Sector Support Services spent 97.1% of its allocated budget.

5.2.3 Roll-overs
No request will be submitted for roll-overs to the National Treasury.

5.3 A description of the reasons for unauthorized, fruitless and wasteful
expenditure and the amounts involved as well as steps taken to address and
prevent a recurrence

The Department had no unauthorised expenditure. With regard to fruitless and
wasteful expenditure, the majority of this expenditure relates capital EPWP projects.
Once investigated, the expenditure will be subjected to appropriate accounting
treatment and also where applicable consequence management will be instituted.

5.4  Future plans of the Department

Tourism continues to offer many real opportunities for growth and with that
transformation at various points along the value chain, with relatively low entry
barriers. Key enablers that must be in place to ensure that this potential is realized
include:

i.  Improving our tourism assets and infrastructure making South Africa a diverse
and unique tourism destination. A diversified tourism product offering can
contribute to broadening participation and can encourage tourists to interact
with hosts and services providers beyond the mainstream providers.

ii. ~ Offering excellent service and creating memorable experiences which meet
and exceed the expectations of tourists. This includes addressing safety
concerns of visitors.

iil.  Marketing our destination effectively domestically and internationally in order
to achieve growth in arrivals. Importantly, developing a culture of travel
amongst South Africans supported by a diverse and responsive product range
is necessary in order to fully benefit from the domestic market.

iv.  Improving access for tourists through an enabling immigration facilitation and
an enabling air transport capacity.

v.  Transforming the entire tourism value chain in order to expand participation,
improve ownership patterns and ensure that the benefits that accrue from the
tourism economy are shared by all South Africans.

vi.  Sustainability of EPWP capital projects initiatives to ensure that communities
benefit from tourism development.

5.5 Public Private Partnerships
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The Department has no Public Private Partnerships registered with National
Treasury.

5.6 Discontinued activities / activities to be discontinued

The Department has no discontinued activities or activities to be discontinued.
5.7 New or proposed activities

The Department has no new or proposed activities.

5.8 Supply Chain Management

The Department received no unsolicited bids in the 2018/19 financial year. In order to
avoid any irregular expenditure related to Supply Chain Management, the
Department has established a Bid Specification, Bid Evaluation and Bid Adjudication
Committees to conclude the bidding administration. These Committees have been
capacitated to deal with the functions assigned to them.

5.9 Gifts and Donations received in kind from non-related parties

The European Union donated R120 million via the National Treasury for the Golden
Gate Highlands National Park interpretation centre. The planning phase and
appointment of contractors have been completed and construction started in the
2018/19 financial year.

The European Union has donated a further R57.610 million via National Treasury for
the Baviaanskloof World Heritage Site Interpretive Centre over the MTEF. R42.353
million in the 2018/19 financial year, R9.756 in the 2019/20 financial year and R5.501
million in the 2020/2021 financial year.

5.10 Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury

National Treasury granted approval in terms of Section 43 (1) of the PFMA
read together with Treasury Regulation 6.3.1 to shift R10 million from Programme 4:
Tourism Sector Support Services: Subprogramme: Tourism Incentive Programme:
Goods and Services: Consultants: Business and Advisory Services to Compensation
of Employees. The compensation of employee’s budget ceiling increased by R10
million to R320.4 million for the 218/19 financial year.

National Treasury also granted approval, in terms of section 5(1)(d) of the
Adjustments Appropriation Act (17 of 2018), for shifting of R80 million from payments
for capital assets to defray excess expenditure in goods and services under the
EPWP grant programme within Programme 3: Destination Development.

5.11 Events after the reporting date
None .
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512  Other
None
513  Acknowledgements or appreciation

I greatly appreciate the work and commitment shown by our management and staff towards ensuring that
our mandate translates into reality. As dedicated public servants, they continue to stretch their capacity
to support our government’s efforts to deliver even more. We are also grateful for the leadership and
support of our Minister and our Deputy Minister. We would like to extend our appreciation o the
Chairpersons of our Portfolio and Select Committees and all members of both Committees for the
continued support they have provided for our work. We further extend our appreciation to the industry
and communities for their support and cooperation in the execution of the mandate of growing and
developing tourism. | would also like to thank the team from the Auditor-General South Africa, the internal
audit team and the Audit Committee members for their diligent assurance provision.

5.14 Conclusion

This Financial Year's report has confirmed the inadequacies in the implementation of EPWP capital
projects that were identified by management through the assistance of Government Technical Advisory
Centre (GTAC). Whilst the findings of GTAC could not be applied in retrospect, they have assisted n the
redesign of the system to prevent future occumrences of challenges of the same nature.

5.5 Approval and sign-off

The Annual Financial Statements set out have been approved by the Accounting Officer.

‘, ounting Officer
'- epartment of Tourism

: : / =
/?“humeleni Victor Tharage

Date: 31 May 2019
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6.  STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY FOR THE ANNUAL
REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | confirm the foliowing:

« Al information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent.

o The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

« The annual reporf has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual reporl as
issued by National Treasury.

« The Annual Financial Statements {Part £) have been prepared in accordance with the modified
cash standard and the relevant framewerks and guidelines issued by the National Treasury.

» The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the annul financial slatements and
for the judgements made in thig information.

 The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing, and implementing & system of internal
control that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability
of the performance information, the human resources information and the annual financial
statements.

« The external auditors are engaged (0 express an independent opinion on the anaual financial

statements.

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance Information, fhe human
resources information and the financial affeirs of the Departmenl for the financial year ended
31 March 2019.

Yours faithfully
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7. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW
7.1.Vision

Leading sustainable tourism development for inclusive economic growth in South
Africa.

7.2.Mission

To grow an inclusive and sustainable tourism economy through:
good corporate and cooperative governance;

strategic partnerships and collaboration;

innovation and knowledge management; and

effective stakeholder communication.

7.3.Values
7.3.1 Performance values

Innovative: Leveraging of resources and partnerships to optimise delivery to our
stakeholders, and being responsive to change.

Ethical (good corporate governance): Encapsulating the principles of integrity,
transparency and accountability.

Customer focus: Providing services and solutions in a manner that is efficient,
effective and responsive.

7.3.2 Organisational values

Empowerment: Create an environment conducive to growth and development for
our people.

Integrity: Act with integrity by maintaining the highest standards for accountability,
serving with respect, honesty and trustworthiness.

Recognition: Be an organisation that values its own people by ensuring fairess of
systems and processes, being supportive

8. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES
8.1 Constitutional mandate
Part A of Schedule 4 to the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996, lists

tourism as a functional area of concurrent national and provincial legislative
competence.

8.2 Legislative mandates
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Tourism Act, 2014 (Act No. 3 of 2014) aims to promote the practise of responsible
tourism for the benefit of the Republic and for the enjoyment of all its residents and
foreign visitors; provide for the effective domestic and international marketing of
South Africa as a tourist destination; promote quality tourism products and services;
promote growth in and development of the Tourism Sector, and enhance cooperation
and coordination between all spheres of government in developing and managing
tourism. ‘

8.3

8.4

8.5

Policy mandates

The NDP is the 2030 vision for the country. It envisions rising employment,
productivity and incomes as a way to ensure a long-term solution to achieve a
reduction in inequality, an improvement in living standards and ensuring a
dignified existence for all South Africans. The NDP recognises tourism as one of
the main drivers of employment and economic growth.

The New Growth Path (NGP) includes tourism as one of the six pillars of
economic growth.

The National Tourism Sector Strategy (NTSS) provides a blueprint for the
Tourism Sector in the pursuit of growth targets contained in the NGP.

The White Paper on the Development and Promotion of Tourism in South Africa,
1996, provides a framework and guidelines for tourism development and
promotion in South Africa.

Relevant court rulings
Not applicable.

Planned policy initiatives

Table 1: Departmental planned policy initiatives per programme

No. | Programme Planned initiatives

1 Administration e Regulations on the manner and
procedure for lodging tourism
complaints.

o Drafting of proposed amendments

to the Tourism Act, 2014 (Act No. 3
of 2014).

2 Tourism Research, Policy and | None

International Relations
3 Destination Development None
4 Tourism Sector Support Services | None
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10.ENTITIES REPORTING TO THE MINISTER

'Name of Entity

South African
Tourism (SAT)

Market South Afic as a

domestic and
international tourist
destination.

Market South African

tourism products and
facilities  internationally
and domestically.
Develop and implement a
marketing strategy for
tourism that promotes the
objectives of the Act and
the NTSS.

Establish a National
Conventions Bureau with
the approval of the

Minister, to market South
Africa as a business
tourism destination by:

- coordinating bidding for
international conventions;
and,

- liaising with  other
organs of state and
suitable bodies to

promote South Africa as

a business events
destination.

Implement and manage
the national grading

system for tourism.

The table below indicates the single entity that reports the Mini
 Legislative Mandate 'Financial '
' ‘Relationship

Transfer
payment

ster. _
Nature of Op‘eraﬁo-ns

Marketing South Africa
as a tourist destination
internationally and
domestically.

Market South African
tourism products and
facilities internationally
and domestically.

Providing quality
assurance for tourism
products.

Marketing South Africa
as a meetings
destination, and

providing support for
bids to host business
events and meetings.

The Department is concerned about the performance of its entity during the 2018/19
financial year and has formally expressed this concem to South African Tourism.
Oversight of the entity will be strengthened through, amongst others, the strengthening
of the Governance Protocol.
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PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
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1. AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The AGSA currently performs certain audit procedures on the performance information
to provide reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit
conclusion on the performance against predetermined objectives is included in the
report to management, with material findings being reported under the Predetermined
Objectives heading in the Report on other legal and regulatory requirements section of
the auditor’s report.

Refer to page 164 of the Report of the Auditor General, published as Part E: Financial
Information.

2. OVERVIEW OF DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE
21 Service Delivery Environment

On the global front, WTTC'’s Travel & Tourism indicator Update (2019) records 2018 as
“another strong year for global Travel & Tourism performance”. The Indicator Update
records that global international tourist arrivals growth had been estimated at 5.6% for
2018 (according to the latest UNWTO data). While that represented a slowdown on
growth of 7.0% in 2017 (which was the strongest annual growth rate recorded since
2004), 2018 was still a strong year for global Travel & Tourism in that growth in arrivals
was broad-based, with all major world regions recording growth. Africa and Asia-Pacific
recorded strong performance, with growth of 7.3% and 6.1% respectively. Europe
(5.7%) also enjoyed robust growth in 2018, while even the slowest growing major world
region over the year, the Americas, recorded a 2.9% rise in international tourist
arrivals1.

StatsSA’s Tourism and Migration Report (December 2018)2 records that the ten
leading overseas countries in terms of the number of tourists visiting South Africa in
December 2018 were United Kingdom, 50 016 (19,3%); United States of America, 34
561 (13,3%); Germany, 33 328 (12,8%); The Netherlands, 14 554 (5,6%); France, 13
690 (5,3%); Australia, 11 819 (4,6%); Sweden, 8 967 (3,5%); Canada, 7 062 (2,7%);
India, 7 023 (2,7%) and Brazil, 6 723 (2,6%). Tourists from these countries constituted
72,4% of all tourists from overseas countries. A comparison of movements in these
countries between December 2017 and December 2018 indicates that the number of
tourists increased for three of the ten of these countries (Sweden, Germany and USA),
but decreased for Brazil, India, Australia, France, The Netherlands, UK and Canada.
Sweden had the largest increase of 5,2% (from 8 527 tourists in December 2017 to 8
067 in December 2018), while Brazil had the largest decrease of 17,0% (from 8 096
tourists in December 2017 to 6 723 in December 2018).

Almost all tourists from Africa, 730 401 (97,8%), came from the SADC countries. The
distribution of the remaining tourists from Africa is as follows: West Africa, 7 597
(1,0%); East and Central Africa, 7 146 (1,0%); and North Africa 1 359 (0,2%). The ten
leading SADC countries in terms of the number of tourists visiting South Africa in

1WTTC. 2019. Monthly Economic Impact - January 2019, p.2.
2 StatsSA. 2019. Statistical Release: Tourism and migration. December 2018. pp.5-6
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December 2018 were: Zimbabwe, 227 162 (31,1%); Lesotho, 132 525 (18,1%);
Mozambique, 116 668 (16,0%); Botswana, 90 167 (12,3%); Swaziland, 88 699
(12,1%); Namibia, 25 163 (3,4%); Zambia, 16 087 (2,2%); Malawi 15 514 (2,1%);
Angola, 6 791 (0,9%) and the Demographic Republic of Congo, 4 815 (0,7%). Tourists
from these ten countries constituted 99,1% of all tourists from the SADC countries. A
comparison between movements in December 2017 and December 2018 for the ten
leading SADC countries shows that the number of tourists increased for five of the ten
leading countries (DRC, Zimbabwe, Swaziland, Mozambique and Malawi) and
decreased for the other five (Angola, Namibia, Zambia, Botswana and Lesotho). DRC
showed the largest increase of 17,0% (from 4 117 tourists in December 2017 to 4 815
in December 2018), while Angola showed the largest decrease of 6,9% (from 7 293
tourists in December 2017 to 6 791 in December 2018).

The ten leading countries in terms of the number of tourists visiting South Africa in
December 2018 from ‘other' African countries, were: Nigeria, 4 730 (29,4%); Kenya, 3
449 (21,4%), Ghana, 1 950 (12,1%); Uganda, 1 299 (8,1%); Egypt, 723 (4,5%); Gabon,
598 (3,7%); Ethiopia, 570 (3,5%); Cameroon, 451 (2,8%); Congo, 243 (1,5%) and
Somalia, 201 (1,2%). Tourists from these ten countries constituted 88,3% of all tourists
from 'other' African countries. A comparison between movements in December 2017
and December 2018 shows that the number of tourists increased for six of the ten
leading countries (Somalia, Kenya, Ghana, Cameroon, Nigeria and Egypt) and
decreased for the other four leading countries (Gabon, Uganda, Congo and Ethiopia).
Somalia showed the largest increase of 327,7% (from 47 tourists in December 2017 to
201 in December 2018), while Gabon showed the largest decrease of 32,0% (from 879
tourists in December 2017 to 598 in December 2018).

Following on from a below expected growth performance in 2018 for emerging
markets, with a meagre estimated 0.7% expansion in GDP, a moderate economic
recovery is however on the cards for South Africa in 2019. This could be attributed to
some improvement in domestic demand and continuing optimism around President
Cyril Ramaphosa’s recent initiatives. The IMF World Economic Outlook (January 2019
and IMF World Economic Outlook database) forecasts South Africa’s real GDP growth
of 1.5% for 2019 and 1.7% for 2020.3

In his State of the Nations Address in 20184, the President of the republic of South
Africa, Mr Cyril Ramaphosa stated: “Tourism is another area which provides our
country with incredible opportunities to, quite literally, shine.” The sustained growth in
the tourism sector’s contribution to South Africa’s Growth Domestic Product (GDP) and
employment, contributed to South Africa making significant strides in the fight against
poverty, unemployment and inequality.

Inbound tourism has performed well with tourist arrivals growing from about 8.6 million
in 2012 to 10,4 million in 2018.Tourist arrivals continues to grow year on year,
increasing by 1,8% in 2018 compared to 2017. Arrivals from Africa continue to be the

3 National Treasury. 2019. Budget Review — Economic review. p.15

4 South Africa. 2018. State of the Nation Address. Pretoria: Government Printer.

[Web:] https://www.gov.za/speeches/president-cyril-ramaphosa-2018-state-nation-address-16-feb-2018-
0000
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main source of tourist to South Africa year on year, with Zimbabwe, Lesotho and
Mozambique remaining the main source markets from the continent. Main source
markets from overseas are UK, USA and Germany. China is also one of the top ten
source markets of tourist arrivals from overseas and the main source market from the
Asia region.

According to The Tourism Satellite Account (TSA) produced by Statistics South Africa
(Stats SA) domestic tourism contributes more to internal tourism expenditure than
inbound tourism. Domestic tourism also contributes significantly to the creation of direct
jobs through tourism activities by South Africans. According to South African Tourism,
total domestic tourism trips increased from 17,2 million in 2017 to 17,7 million in 2018,
resulting in a growth of about 2.9%.5

The Department of Home Affairs introduced new Immigration Regulations in terms of
section 7 of the Immigration Act, 2002 after consultation with the Immigration Advisory
Board. The amendments were effective from the 01st December 2018. The updated
amendment of Regulations 6 of the regulations are in respect of minors (all children
under 18 years of age) travelling to and from South Africa. The requirements for
children travelling to or from the Republic of South Africa are aimed at giving effect to
the Children’s Act, 2005.

Collaborative efforts by public and private sector to grow tourism were evident during
this reporting period. These included government’s cluster approach to marketing
South Africa as a tourism destination, the public private partnership in the funding of
marketing efforts through the TOMSA Levy, and skills development initiatives, amongst
others. Continuous improvement in this regard is required to ensure maximum
contribution to tourism growth by all roleplayers.

The department continued to improve its destination planning capacity. The
destination planning manual and master planning exercises provided a basis for
improving intervention in destination development. Technological developments in
tourism services are becoming more prevalent with more and more visitors opting to
use less traditional channels for planning travel. This has impact of improving visitor
experience but has also shown unanticipated impacts on traditional businesses in the
tourism sector.

The following services were rendered by the department to the following benéeficiaries:

5 SA Tourism. 2018. South African Tourism Annual Report 2017/18. p.47
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Services Beneficiaries Functions

Develop Tourism | Tourism  enterprises | Coordinate the implementation of

Enterprises and entrepreneurs tourism sector BBBEE codes to
enhance sector transformation

Provide Tourism | Tourism  Enterprises, | Oversee the establishment of capital

Incentives tourism products and non-capital incentives to

promote and encourage tourism
development and growth

Develop Tourism sector
skills

Public (focused on
youth),
Tourism  businesses
and

Local Government

Facilitate efficient management of
tourism sector Human Resource
Development initiatives

Provide tourism | Tourism Sector, | Facilitate research, information and
information tourism  developers, | Knowledge management for the
Public and Tourists tourism sector.
Tourism infrastructure | Provinces and Local | Foster that tourism infrastructure
development, Government supports current and future growth
maintenance and | Communities, Public | of the sector
enhancement Entities
Enhance tourism | Provinces and Local | Facilitate the enhancement of visitor
services Government services programmes and
Tourists complaints
| General public
Tourism sector planning | Tourism Sector Manage the analysis and
Provincial and Local | development of tourism policy
Government frameworks and regulations
Domestic travel | Tourists Ensure information integrity and
facilitation facilitate accurate information for
travelling
Manage tourists’ | Tourists (domestic and | Develop well managed system for
complaints International) tourism visitor complaints

Facilitate Tourist guides
appeals

Tourist Guiding Sector

The National Registrar must hear
and determine appeals and review
irregularities under section 56 of the
Tourism Act, No. 3 of 2014

Create job opportunities | Unemployed youth, | Create jobs through the Public
through “Working for | communities, Local | Employment Programme for
Tourism” projects government, Tourism
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Services Beneficiaries Functions

Provincial
departments
responsible for tourism

Due to the nature of the tourism sector, the department in delivering its services often
has to rely on collaboration, partnerships or third parties in order to fully deliver a
service. The department had previously experienced significant challenges related to
third party reliance. The department has improved management of these relationships
in order to mitigate against the effect of non-achievement as a result of reliance on
third parties.
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2.3 Organisational environment

There were significant constraints to the fiscal framework. The policy position of
government to contain the public service wage had implications for the department’s
human resource capacity and vacancy management. This required the department
to explore all possibilities for creating adequate capacity to implement its
programmes and to introduce efficiency and effectiveness improvements.

The Department’s procurement capacity and planning capabilites were improved and
this had a positive impact on organisational performance.

The Department undertook an assessment of the projects implemented within its
infrastructure programme. The most significant finding of the abovementioned
assessment was that many of the projects did not meet objectives in terms of cost,
time and quality. The department has improved its project management capacity and
has also aligned its processes to the National Treasury Standard for Infrastructure
Procurement and Delivery Management (SIPDM) to ensure value for money.

24 Key policy developments and legislative changes

Cabinet approved the Tourism Amendment Draft Bill for public comments.
Amongst others, the Tourism Amendment Draft Bill seeks to address challenges
brought about by technological evolution, particularly the sharing economy.

The Manner and Procedure for lodging and Dealing with Tourism Complaints was
put in place to provide tourists with an easy way to lodge complaints related to
tourism services, facilities and products.

The National Grading System for Tourism was determined. The object of the system
is to maintain and enhance the standards and quality of tourism services, facilities
and products.

The Department reviewed the Tourism Act, 2014 (Act No. 3 of 2014) during 2018/19
to improve the governance of:

tourism government institutions and performance of the sector;
sharing economy;

grading of tourism establishments; and

Professionalising of tourist guiding.

The Draft Tourism Amendment Bill seeks to amend the Tourism Act, 2014, so as to
provide for the determination of thresholds for short-term home rental (the so-called
sharing economy or new tourism platform services).

It also provides for the renaming of the South African Tourism Board as South
African Tourism to improve on the governance of SA Tourism as an entity to be
managed by a Board. The Draft Tourism Amendment Bill seeks to establish the
Tourist Guide Institute of South Africa and to provide for its powers and functions.
The requirements on the registration of tourist guides will be aligned to the National
Qualifications Framework Act, 2008. The Draft Bill also seeks to provide for the
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regulation of tour guide driving by prohibiting a driver of a motor vehicle with a
carrying capacity of more than 10 persons to drive and guide at the same time. The
Draft Tourism Amendment Bill was developed with role players and stakeholder
consultation. The Draft Bill was approved by Cabinet for publishing for comment.

3. STRATEGIC OUTCOME ORIENTED GOALS

In support of the government's medium-term strategic outcomes, the following are the
depariment's strategic-outcome oriented goals:

Achieve good corporate and cooperative governance.
Increase the tourism sector's contribution to inclusive economic growth.

Outcome 4: Decent employment through inclusive economic growth

The contribution of tourism to economic growth is indicated by a percentage contribution
to GDP and the number of jobs created. As reported in South Africa’s Tourism Satellite
Account (2017 preliminary data), the sector's direct contribution to GDP and direct
employment has increased significantly to R130.2 billion (2.8% of total GDP) and 722
013 (4.5 % of total employment) respectively in 2017. The sector has consistently had a
positive trade balance, which in 2017 was at R 40.1 billion. Due to the sector's multiplier
effect, the total direct and indirect jobs supported by tourism in 2017 were jobs 1.5 million
jobs. Total direct and indirect GDP contribution was R412.5 billion in the same period.®

At the centre of the department's mandate is radical economic transformation in the
tourism sector. Tourism remains a key economic growth sector. The participation of
previously excluded groups has remained at levels below set targets. To support the
inclusive growth imperative espoused in Outcome 4, the department's strategy is to use
the entire value chain of tourism to realise inclusive participation in the tourism economy
and create opportunity for new entrants in the sector, small enterprise development,
community-based enterprise development. To encourage participation, the department
implemented the following programmes:

The Tourism Incentive Programme was offered to drive departmental objectives in
relation to market access for SMMEs, quality assurance, energy efficiency and
transformation;

The Tourism Sector Human Resource Development Programme was implemented to
ensure the availability of requisite skills that enhance visitor experience.

The Tourism Enterprise Development Programme, a sector transformation strategy, was
implemented to broaden participation in the sector by introducing new entrants and
ensuring SMME sustainability

6 StatsSA. 2018. Tourism Satellite Account for South Africa, final 2015 and provisional 2016 and 2017
(Report-04-05-07)
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Outcome 11: Creating a better South Africa, and contributing to a better and safer
Africa in a better world

The Department's contribution into Outcome 11 was in support of South Africa’s
economic diplomacy objectives. Tourism’s contribution in this regard was to be indicated
by the number of intemational tourist arrivals and total spend by intemational tourists. By
the end of 2018, South Africa had reached 10.5 million intemational tourists and 82.5
billion in direct spend by intemational tourists. 7

7 SA Tourism. 2018. SA Tourism Performance Dashboard. Hitp://bit.Iv/2AXxnga

39



oy

V/N auoN QUON | Ajepenb  uno4 | Apauenb unod | Ausuenb Junod Apepenb  uno4 [ Ajjepenb no-
padojaasp padojaasp padojaasp padojaasp

sem gL/.10¢ 81/.10¢ sem /1/910¢ sem 9l/Gl0e padojensp sem

1o} Loday 10} poday 10} nodsay Jojuoday | GlL/L0Z J0) woday

aouewIONSd aoueuLIOpaH eoueuLIONSd aouBWLIONSd soueuLIOHSd

/N BUON SUON [enuuy jenuuy jenuuy [enuuy |jenuuy

POMBIADI BJOM

L1/9102 10} (ddV)
padojaasp pOMaIASI pamainal | ueld souewIopad
podojonsp sem 0zZ/610Z | 919M BL/8LOZ e1oM 81/110C lenuuy pue
VN SUON SUON | 0Z/6L0Z 40} ddV 10} ddV | 101 ddV Pue dS | 10} ddV pue ds | (dS) ueid di6slens
s L _ = w =k - _ ~padojansp sjuawinoop oibolesss 4o

~uopewlioju] eouewlopad f

“Siseydwis Jnoyjim uouido Jipne paylie

bun :j3abJe) uejd O
uooa al

“BOUJY UINOS Ul UONBULIOJSUEI} DILUOUODS 0} SINQUU0D 0] ‘yimolb pue wswdojarsp
WISLNO} 10} JuswuoliAua Aiojenbas pue aAielsiba) buliqeus ue sjesid o] ‘sapuniioddo s} pue WSLNO} JO SNjeA dy} JO ssaualeme
pue BulpuE}SISpUN BOUBYUS O] ‘S30IN0Sal [ejudlupiedap JO ISN SAROSYS pue Jusloye ‘OILLIOUODS 2INSUB 0] :S9Al23fqO dlbajens

‘s90IA19g [eDa7 pue suoneoluNWo)
quawdojpas@ pue juswebeuely 82JNOSSY UBWNH nuowebeueyy |eueuld ‘swalsAg pue Abejens :sowwesboid-gqng

-uswabeuew o} seoues poddns pue uswebeuew ‘diysiopes) olbsjels apinoid o] :asodind
juswebeuep sjesodion — uonessiulwpy | awwesbold L'y

INNVEO0Ud A NOLLYIWHOANI 3ONVINHO4H3d A4



44

uo yoedu [ sapuedseA || 0}

0} 8nuhguod M | ojge Buieq jou

Yiomawey |edsy | jJuswpedsp ay) %L 1+ %L'6 %C9

Sy} 0} SJUIBIISUOD | JO )NSal B se Aq 1e6ie) )Rl Je Sem §1L02Z %8 1e Sem Q102 "049'Q J& Sem %G/'G 1e
ay) jeu} | si  Juswaasiyoe | AouedeAa s} passi yolep Lcle | poooxa 0}jou | Yolep Lgie se | 210Z YoIe LE Je | sem 910z Yotew L€
pajediojue si 3 | -uou eyl Juswypedsp ay| | se ajes Aoueoep | 8l Aouedep ajel fouedep | se ojel Aoueoep | Je se sjel Aoueoep

ajes Aoueden :Z Idd

yuswdojensp pue jusisBeuew 82Inosal uew oS ojjgne 61€) Ueld dibajens Jeak-aAld

padojoasp paisedaid paledaid aitom

suodal | aiem suodal suodas  JybBisiano

pedojaAap alam ybBisiano yBisiano patedaid ssom | (wisino | vs)

syodal ybisiano WwisSuNo) wsuno] | spodes ybisieno Wwsuno |

v/N BUON SUON | WSUNO] yS JnoH | ¥S o4 | ys INo4 | WSLNO] YS IN04 | UBDUYY YINOS Ino-

O OnY | (DINY) espiwwo)

ONY ONY | 0} pspiwgns | 0} psylugns juswabeuepy

0} pajussaid | 0} psjusasaud | pue  pesAjeue | pue pasAjeue | ysiy 01} pepiwgns

alom suodau spodal | a1eam  spodal | alam suodal | pue pasAleue aiam

sisAjeue 3suU | sisAleue sl | uopeBpiw  ysu | uoneByw )su | spodaa  uonebipw

VIN SUON BuoN | Agepenb  uno4 | Auapenb uno4 | Auspenb uno4 | Apepenb  uno4 | ysu Apeuenb inog
padojeasp padojaaap padojaasp pedojanap

alom ddv ddy | 21om ddv | a1am ddv padojanap alom

pue 4S ©y} jJo | pue dS 8y} Jo | pue dS 8y Jo [pue dS Byl JOo | ddV Pue dS 8y}

uonejuswaldw | uonejuswadwi | uoneuswaldu uoneswsdw | Jo  uonejuswslduwl

8y} uo supodal | sy} uo suodas [ By} uo spodsi [ By} uo suodas |8y uo  spodal

wsLINoJ Jo juswpedsc] (€€ SJOA
Jea A [eroueuld 61/8 L0Z 10} Lodsy jenuuy




(44

sem  sanigesip
810Z YoIep L€ 2102 Yoiep | yum s|doad

6L0Z UoJBN LE |  [9A9] SIS 1@ | Je SB %g'6i 18 | LE 18 SB 9%/°0G |10} uopejussaidas

Je se 9,/°0G 1e| uonessaidal | paulgjuiew sem | e peulrjuiew | %6  pue  SINS

SEM [9AB] SIS | uBWOM  9,0G | [9A9] SINS 1B | sem SIS | i uoneasaidal

Je uonejussaidal | Jo wnwiuiw | uonejussaidal | ul uoneyuasaidal uswiom

V/N BuUopN BUON USWIOAA urejuiepy uswopn USWOAA | %6+ JO wnwiuiw v
uonejussaidal yoejq pue ‘sapijiqesip yym a|doad Joy Uone: idas | ) 90AISS JuswsbeueL JoIuas U uojjejuasaidas uswom abejussiad ¢ Idd

‘'sjuswaAosdwl
SSOUSAIBYS
pue Aousioiye
aonpoJul 0}
pue sawuweiboid
oibajens

s} juswsidw) 0}
18pio ul Apoeded
alenbape Buneslio
Joj}  sanqissod
aJojdxa

0} Bnupuod |IMm
juswypedsp eyj
uswabeuew
Aoueoea

"SJUSWHIWWOD

wus)-6buoj
1o} pesn aq jou
pinoo  Aunseasj

jeuoneN

Aq poamoje
JUSWBIA
}JO-80U0

ayl ‘-Aunsesa]
|euoneN Aq
pasodwi y26pnq
uonesuadwod
oyl uo bBunes
ayy o0} enp

810z Iudy souis

WSLINO | JO Juslpiedaq (€€ 8JOA
Jea, [eroueuld 61/8 102 104 Uoday jenuuy




(34

juswipedsp a8y
‘sallesing 10} Sy sauesIng MmaN
el diysudoyu|
'SulBlul Ul eyey ‘dSM 9y}
0] Spunj aAey jou | ur pasaiduwl
Iim  Juswuedsp | jou alom dSMmio
a8y} eyl | leyl  ssAjeniul uonejuswe|dwi dSMJo
pauuojul uaaq | Bumojoy ay} pue | uonejuawaldwl pajuswajdu
sey VSdd 9yl |jo  psinysuod pajuswajdwi jou Jjuswdojaasp | %001 pue sem | pejuswajdwi sem pajuswsdw
0202/610¢ 104 | %S¢Z SYL | sem dSM JO %S¢ %S. JuswdojoAsd | dSM JO %00L | dSM  JO %001 | SBM dSM O %001
| suojuensu) U poakie) paLoP WIM (S Usid SIS SOSIOMION JO UONEIUeWRIdU SDERIB0IS T Idd
610¢ 8L0C YdIe g L10¢ Yaiep
yoJepy L¢ Je | uonejussaidal |je se 9,8°Ge B | L€ 1B Se %Z'GE e
SB %G'GE 1e sem |Moeld  %SG‘L6 | Pouiejulew Sem | poulejulewl  Sem
uoneuasalidal | jJo wnwiuiw | uoneussaidal uoneusssidal
V/N SUON SUON 3oe|g ulejuieiy 3oeld 3oe|g
6L0¢ 810¢ yoleyy 210¢ Ydiey
yoleyw |L¢ 1e| uonejussaides | g JB SB %P | LE IR Se %9} Je
SB %Gy Je Sem saljljigesip [ 18 paulejulew | paulBlUIBLU  SBM
uonejussaidal | yum sidoad o,¢ | sem  saljligesip uonejuasaldas
saljiliqesip | jo wnwiuiw | ypm ajdoed Jo saljljiqesip
V/N SUON QUON | Yypm a|doad ulejuiely | uonejasaidey | yum a|doad psulejuiew

wisLino | Jo Juawiedad g€ 81oA
1834 [BloueUlH 61/8 102 404 Joday jenuuy



Jeak [e1ouRUL} Y} UL SWID)UI JO SxBIUI 3Y} JoJ SuIpung 2)eoo[[e pue SsIe 0} S[qe UIq 32UIS Sey judtiredap oy

44

3

0Z/610C
sasodmd jipne 1o Jodar [enuue JY) JO UOISSTWIANS S} IS0 4

¢ Sluswdojaasp
anoge

ay} o) peubie
aq o0} sl ugd
uonejuawa|du
adH ay)
}ey] suesw SIyj

sieak
Jaino  pue ieaAk
olwapede  (g0¢
a8y} JIo} soyBlUI
Aesing  9|qissod
Japisuodal  pue
‘Jepenb ¢ 8y} ul
uonen)is |eloueul
au MalABI
0] poalbe sey

juauno  Joddns
0] 9|qe sem
juswpedsp ayy

SJUBWIWIWOD
wual-6uo)

Jo} pash aq jou
pinoo  Anseau
jeuoiieN

Aq pamoje
JUSWIBIIA
J0-80uUo0 aylL
‘sjuswpedap
JuswiuIaAob

e 10}
309 uo Bunyeo
s finseal]
jeuolieN

AQ peulensuod
Apuauuno

sl yolym }8bpnq
soakojdwa

Jo uonesusdwos
ey}

wiol) papuny ase

sdiysuisjui oy

wsLNo| jo Juswipeda (g€ 9J0A
120/ [eroueul] 61/810¢ 40} Moday [enuuy




sy

(ez/zeoe
pajuswsjdu | - 61/8102) dS19I
pue pasiAai ds1ol pajuawaidwi pajuswsaidwy | sy jo | eseyd
sem (cg/zzoz | ue  juswoidwi | sem dS190] | sem dsiDl | jo uonejuswsjdw
— VN _ SUoN . . SUON. va\wrcwv dS13l | pue SSIASY | 8yl Jo m om_m:ﬁ_ w£ po X4 mmm:n_ %001

E&Em_.ms__ 9 Idd _._m

‘pensiyoe Buuiebieq
sem  Buiuiebieq BA1}09]|0D
BAI}09|j0D | pue  salndsip
pue sondsip Jonpuoosiw
‘1onpuoosiw | ‘sasueAsub  jo
‘saoueasub | Bulpuey pue panslyoe paasiyoe
jo Buygpuey pue Juswebeuew | sem Buluebieq | sem  Buiuiebieq paAaiyoe
juswabeuew oy ay) SAI}09||09 OAI109]|0D | sem Buiuiebieq
ul souendwods | up douedwos | ul  souendwios | ul aoueldwod | 9AI09||00 uj
V/N BUON SUON | %001 mocm__ac._oo %001
L — —— — — 4
~ sueak

49]no Ul spuny Jo
Anigeieae  ay)
jnoge suladuod
pue sjuleljsuod
Aeyabpng
0) anp
SO BJUl mau jou
nq salesing

Wwis1INo| Jo Jusweda(g €€ 8JOA
169 [eroueul 61/810¢ 10§ podey fenuuy



9y

ueid ypne jeulajul jenuue ayj jo uonejuswajdwi sbejusdiad :8 |dd

juswiedap 8y} ul sassasold aoueuIaA0b pue Juawabeuew ys1 ‘S|01juod pasueyug :3abie) ueld o16ajeng Jeak-anl4

VSOV pue 1IN

0] paplwuqgns VSOV pue VSOV pue

juswelels | | N O} papiwgns | 1IN ©) papiugns

VSOV pue jeoueuy | pue  pajidwod | pue pajidwod

LN O} paplwgns | [enuue  8uQ | Sem Juswdle)s | sem  Juawele)s

sem  Juswsale)s |eloueul [eIOUBUY

{eloueuy |enuue auQ | |[enuue auQ
enuue suQ IN 1N O} VSOV pue IN
0] psplwqgns | papiwgns pue | 1N O} paIWQNS | 0} papiwgns aiam
1N ©} peniwgns sjuswslels | papdwos  aiam | pue pajdwod | Juswaje)s |eloueuly
aJom sjuswslels [eloueuly sJuswWale]s | aiem sjuswsale)s | |enuue auo
[BIOUBUL LB wd)uUl | |e1ouUBUY WILISIUI | [BIDUBUL WSl | pue sjuawalels
V/N QUON QuUON | Apepenb sauy] | Apepenb saiy] | Apepenb eaiy) | Apspenb  saayy | Aeuenb 2a1yl
papilgns SjusLudle)s |eioueul [enuue pue Apspenb jo Jaquinp : 2 idd
juswebeuew [eoueuy uo uoluido yipne payienbun ;Jebie; ueld sibajeng Jeak-anly

: 6102/8L0C
aoueuopad JuawBAaly Iy

Jspun jo lenjoy 6L0Z/8L02 6102/8102 8L0Z/LL0C 2102/9102 9LoeISioz
Seale aWOIIIA0 suopelnep | o} jabie) pauueld JUBWAIYDY yebie) | juswiBAdIYOY JUDLUBABIYDY JuBWIBABIYOY
o) ABajeng | uo juswwon wouy uoneiaeq [enjoy pauuejd [enoy [enjoy 1enjoy

wisiNo | Jo swpedaq :gg 910A

1BaA Jeloueul 61/ 102 404 Hoday jenuuy




VA 4

suswpedap ay)
jnoge uonewlojul

0] SS8Jde pue
Jnoge sssusieme
Aunwwos
ainsus

0] swsiueyosw
Jo uoneluswajdul
O uonnyisul
pue 0zIquiz|
Jo Bupsoy
jNJSS900NS aInsus
0} yoeasno
yum anunuoo
M  wswuedsap
3yl  eAnoelqo
yoeaino
Aunwwod

B oABy ozIquiz|

nisog eqey |
je  sapeduleq
peo: pue jsaiun
olignd Buipiebss
eqeyfhipeyinyd
Sdvs wo.
2oIApe  Bumojjo}
Jealk |eloueuly
ou 8y 0]
pauodisod sem
‘6L0C Qod ¢z
J0}  poNpayos
‘oziIquu| pue
youne| 1o8foud
[elsIsiuy v

Abayens
uoledIuNWWoD

s juawyedaq

a8y} 0
uoneswsaldw ay
Jjo ued se pajsoy
JOU Sem Jey) ozZiqu|
| JO pSINIISUCD %

pajuswajdul
SEM ABajens
UOJJeSIUNWILLIOD

s juswnedaq
ay) jo (seAneniut

87 10 I¥) %86

ABajens
UOREDIUNLIWOD
sjuswpedaq
ay} 0
uonejuswa|dwi
%001

pauswa|duu
sem  ABelens
uolesuUNWWOod
s Juswpedap
9yl Jo %001

pajyuswedwy

SEM ABoens
UONBIIUNWILLOD

s juswuedsp

8yl jo %00l

pajuswajduu

SEeM AGeojens
Uol1esIunNwWLwoo

s juswyuedsp

oy} 0 %001

‘UOREOIUINWIWOD jeuwsdlul ‘Juswabeuew sjuans ‘Buipueiq

(oziquuiz|/sjuswabebus Ajjunwwod pue SUOEIIUNWILIOD [ejusIUIaA0bIa I
‘juswsbebus eipsw) Abojess uonesiunwiwod a8y} jo uopeusws|dwl sbeusdisd 6 Idd

pueiq |ejuswedsp ay) sjowold pue sawwesbold wsLNO) Jo SSaualeme pasealdu] Jebie) ue|d oibajenyg Jeak-aAld

seniunuoddo s) pue wWsLNO) JO anjeA ay} JO Ssaualeme pue Buipuejsiapun 8oueyud 0] :g aAlpdalqo J1bajels

uge|d
pajuswajdwi | ypne  [ewsiul pajuswaldwil pajuaws|dwi

sem ued jJpne | |jenuue ay} jo | sem ueid ypne | sem uejd jypne pajuswsjdw) sem
[ewslul |enuue | uonejuswajdwy | [BWBUl |EnUue | [eulsiul  jenuue | ueid Jpne [eulB)ul
V/N SUON BUON (23U} JO %001 %001 | 34 JO %00l | 84l JO %00l | |enuue ayj Jo %001

6102/810T

aoueuliopad JUBWBASIYDY
ispun jo jenjoy 6102/8L0C 6102/810¢C 8102C/LL0T L102/9102 9102/51L02
Seale aWOoIIaA0 suolnjeinap | 03 3ab.ie} pouueld JUALLUBABIYOY jabie] | juswoanayoy JUSWBA3IYIY JUBWBAIIYDY
o} ABajesyg | uo JusLIWIOY wodj uonelnag jenjoy | pauueld | [enjoy [enyoy jenjoy

wisunoj Jo Juswipiedsq :£g 910A

JBOA [eloueUlH 61/8 102 104 JModey jenuuy




8y

‘Awouoos Buueys ayy Alzejnoied ‘uonnjoas jeaibojouyoal Aq noge Jybnoiq sebusijeyo ssaippe 0} syaes ||ig Yelq
JUswpuUaWYy WsWNo| ay) siaylo jsbuowy "sjuswwod ajqnd 1o} Jauiqen Aq paroidde sem [lig yelq Juswpuswy wsUNoj] ay|

'sjonpoud

pue salioe] ‘sSeoIAIeS WSLNO} Jo Aljenb pue spiepuels ay) eoueyus pue ulejulew o} si walsAs ay Jo 108fqo syl (¥10Z J0 € ON
1Y) 102 10V WSLUNO| 8y} JO g§Z UOROaS JO SWIa) Ul paysijgnd pue pauiwlia)ep Sem wislno] J1oj wajisAg Bulpelts) jeuoneN ay|

‘sjonpoud pue sapijioe} ‘S90IAI8S WSKNO0} 0) Joadsal yym sjurejdwod Jisy) abpo| 0} Ss)suNo) o) Jsuuew pue
ssao0.id Ases ue 1o} spiroud 0} aoeld ul Ind sem sjulejdwon wisuno] yim Buljeaq pue 6uibpol Joy 81npadsold pue Jauuely sy

syBIYBIH jo sAneLEN

g o

L S|9A9] snjels

paAsiyoe Sem G JONQUIUGD

O} | S|9A9| sniels 3399-9
Jonquiuod | uo sesudisiue paAaiyoe paAaiyoe paAdIyoe Sem
J3g4g-9g uo wiolj | Sem SaSSBUISNq | SBM  SOSSBUISNg | @ O} | S|9A9| sniels
sosudisjua wouy Juswsinoold wiendwoos endwos | Jojnquiuod 3399-9
juswainooud | U0 paasiyoe | -J39g-g wol | -3399-9 wod} | uo sasudisjua wouy
uo ainjipuadxs alnjipuadxs Juswainosoad swalnooud | Juswainosoud uo
VIN SUON SUON | JO %001 | J0 %001 %001 %001 | @inypuadxs %00l
sessauIsng juedwod-33gg-g wol} Juswainooid sbejussiad 0} Idd
sjuowsaJinbal yuoweainsoid J3gg-g yum sdueldwio :3abie) ueid oibajel)g Jeak-anid
eoljy YIN0oS Ul UOIJewiIojSuel} D1LoU0da 0} 9)NqUIU0D 0] : aanoalqo oibajens

‘SaAljeul
pue sswuwelboid
~ 6loz/8Loz
aoueuuopad JUSWBASIYIY

Jspun jo [enjoy 61L02Z/8102 61L02/8L02 8L0Z/L102 2102/9102 9102/5L02
SEaJE 8WO0II9A0 suoneinap | o) jebaey pauuejd JualsAaIyoy yabie) JUSLWIBASIYDY JuaWBA3IYDY juawaAsilyoy
o} ABsjeng | uo juswwo) wouy uoneirsQg 1enjoy pauue|d jenjoy [enjoy [ENJOY

wisLINO Jo uswipiedaq :gg 910/

JeaA [BIOUBUIH 61/8 LOZ 40 Hoday [enuuy




(14

3UON
sjebie) pauued o) sabueysn

NSIINOL0980 duUlj3oy N0 81 0Z Ul PAYSUNE[S.I SABY BN "S3DIAISS pue Ajjioe}
913u89 ||eo Uno aAoidwi O} JoYe PaUeduod B udaq sey aiay) ‘sjonpoid uoneuuoyul ino YBnoiy) se ||om Se Sjsuueyd SUOEIUNWIWOD
snoueA ybnoayy Juswiedsp syl yim abebus o) enunuod olgnd oy} ISIIYAN Jeak siyy Jepenb usd 000S 01 000z wou Ayuoedeo
juud sy pssealoul pey ‘ejeuefog ‘uoneoliqnd spjoyayels diysbey no "suuopeld eipsw [e100s Ul soussaid e sey juswpedsp ay)
pus jey) 0} pue ‘uojoeislul olignd pue SUOHEDIUNWIWOD JO Sueal se elpaw [e}IBIp Jo asn ay} pajesBajul aaey am ‘AaAes ABojoutos)
ale oym 8soy} 0} N0 yoeas pue eads o] ‘suopesiuebio Jouped pue sappua olgnd snouea ym diysieuued ul suoRqiyxg
80IAI9g pue sAe@ uadQ se |jom Se ‘Smoyspeol ‘sajgejpunol Japjoyayels ‘sbunesw Ajunwiwon ‘oziqwiz| se yons sswweiboid
3y} pepnpul SAeY SUONUSAISIU| "saAljeniul sjuawiedsp ayl ul uopedioiyed pue poddns Ajunwuwiod 10} az|igow 0} osje pue
‘sswwelbold pue saoles UO sseusleme Bulleald Je pswie s| suoljejdl Japjoysyels pue juswebebus s,uszid ‘Yosessno nQ

‘saljljiqesip
Unm ajdoad jo uonejussaidal 0) uolejal Ul SWIOU |euofjeu 8y} puokaq wiopad 0} penunuod Apus)sisuco sey juswuedsap ay|

wis|Noj 4o juswupeds( ;g€ SJOA
JBOA [eroueUlH 61/8 102 104 Hoday fenuuy



0s

- 8.8 L2 8.8 Lve 82LS 0€.L 092 861 992 jeiol
UOREPOWIWOIDY

- 919 8¢ 919 8¢ - G66 1 S66 v VWO
juowabeuep

- 90¢ 2¢ 90€ Z¢ 6€S ¥19 GE €6l 9¢ [eloueuly
juswiabeuey

- P9l Zvl Yol 2¥L 090§ LvL €Sl 108 8Gl ajesodio)

- G96 ¢ G96 ¢ LS 0€6 ¢ 186 ¢ Juawabeuepy

- 128 5S¢ 12§ G¢ ¢l v €2 9l¢ €2 Ansiui

D00, & U0V UU0 & DOO& DUO & DUU &
z]e AL 2 = . a0 A P q > ~ .
310 0 61L02/8L0 D04 -G

ainjipuadxe swweiboid-qng

wsLINo | o Juswyedad €€ 80/
BB [eloueuld 61/8 LOZ 40J LModay fenuuy




Is

BUON

BUON

wuoyul

0} sjuswalinbai
ESIA uo
spodal sisAjeue
Apsuend
padojorap atom
sjuswabebua
Japjoyayels
wuojul

0} Jie uo
suodeal sisAjeue
Apayuenp

0} padojaasp
sjuswainbal
esiA uo
spodas  sisAjeue
Apapenp
sjuswebebus
1apjoysels
WOl

0} padojeasp
Hje uo
suodas  sisAjeue
Apspenp

:P91ONpuUOd SAARENHIUI UOHJR)[IDE) WSLINO) OM]

~ uoyeps

di

Umo. m.mwov..»nﬁﬂmﬁ__m.mw...t -5,.31._, N0} JO) H_ﬁlau_,_ﬂ,..ﬁ:ww; o1BIn

JEUS UE 518510 O] °¢ OAT}

un saAfeniu] Jualudojaasp Aaijod jo Jequiny ¢ Idd
XIS :j9bue) ue|d s1bajenys Jeak-aAl]
o[qo o1Baje

sswwelboud Buipjing-Ajoedes wsLNo}
Sjejioey 0] :uonelbajul wisLno} jeuoifial soueyus o} Buijew-uoisiosp pue Bujuueld ‘Aoijod wiopul 0} SeoIIES aBPaMOUY BpIAID
01 ‘ymoib pue juswdojsaep wsuno} o} Juswuolaue AlojenBas pue saneisibe| Buiqeus ue sjesid o) :s9A103[qO o1b6ajeng

‘sdiysiauped 10joag olfejens ‘uonesadoo)
pue suoneey [euonewsiu] ABejeng pue Buiuueld Aolod ‘uswabeuepy obpsmouy pue yoseosoy :sowwesBoid-qns

"suofjejal Japjoyayels s|qeus pue asuewlopad S.10J09S WSKNO} 8y} Jojuow ‘JuswiuoAuS Adljod oibajess sy eoueyus :@soding

suoljejay Jeuoneusaiu] pue Adljod ‘Yoleasay wsLNo| 1z awweiboid

(A4



s

V/N

ur 6L0¢ Ydley
Gl Uo pajsoy
sem  Jeulwag
yoieasay
WISUNO |

pajsoy Jeuiwas
yoleosay
WISUNO |

Jonewlojsuel |

|enbig
ybnouy| Joyoesg
wsuno| 8y Jo
ymols  Ajllenp

pue  ®Aisnjou|,

:away)
ayl Jepun
‘eyreyyn ul
810¢ Jequisidss
gL uo pasoy
sem 2In)o9

olgnd  WisUno

pajsoy 81njoaT
ollgnd  WsSHUNo|

L . e e e

:pajeasd swione|d oml -

sk Vel ¥ s 25 i by phe thod

I9SSIP UOPeWLIOJUI JO JOqUINN :Z Idd

padojanap alem
sjuswabebua
Japjoyajels

Aoijod uuoyul 0} Sao1AI9s 8bpajmouy 3

-uoispap pue Buuued wuoul o) spodal uoijen|eas pue. mc:B_:oE jo :o:mEmEm_aE_ pue juswdojerag uwm._ﬂ :m_n_ o_mﬁmhw Ew>-w>_"_

Bunjew

sjuawabebua
Jspjoyayels
wuojul

WwisLNoj Jo Jusiupieds( :£E JOA
B3\ [eloueUl{ 61/8L0Z 104 Joday [enuuy



£s

-Ayoeded Jo}

Buipiing-Aioedes

ueld Buuoyuow | Joy ugld
ayl Jo | Buuojuow ay Jo
uonejuawsadwi | uonesws|dwi
VIN BUON SUON | @yl uo uoday |8y} uo uodsey - - -
padojarap aiam padojaasp
S|BALLIR JSKNO0) JO | S|BALUE JSLINO) JO
sisAleue sy} uo | sisAjeue oy} uo
VIN SUON auop | spodas Ayjuol | spodar  Alyuop - - -
padojaasp padojaasp
alam sjaayg sleays
o4 wsKNo| | 104 wsunoj
VY/N BUON SUON Apaypenp Alauenp - - -
padojaasp sem
padojaAsp (d1s) Hoday
sem HlS | padojeasp Y1S | pedojonsp sem | padojaaop sem | WSLINO | Jo
VIN SUON SUON | 81L/2102 Weld | 8L//L0C  Yeid | "1lS /L/9L0Z | ¥1S 9L/SL0Z | @S GL/rloZ
padojsasp padojaAsp
Sem Hodey Hoday padojeasp pasijeul}
uonejuswsidw| | uopeuswdw] | sem yodai sem yoday
VIN SUON BUON | SSIN 8L/210C [ SSIN 81//L0¢ | uojejuswsaidui uonejusws|dwi|

.mto%._ ozs.b:og ._.

ww._.z LL/9 _‘oN

ww._.z SLivl0c

elLojaId

WslNo| 4o juswyedsq ;g 9)0A

188/ [erpueulH 61/8 102 0] Loday [enuuy




1]

padojaasp

sem sjuswsaibe wewoalbe

[elsiejiq [etajelq

paubis jo | paubis Jo

uonejuswsidwy |  uoneswaldwy

sy} ay}

V/N BUON BQUON | uo uodal |jenuuy | uo podal jenuuy
padojaaap

sem sjosloud s)oeloud

aInjoniselyul Joy ainjoniselul

ugid Buuojyuow | 1o} ug|d

oy} jo | Bupoyuow ay} jo

uoneyuswajdwi uonejuswoajdwy

V/N SUON QUON | oYy} uo Hoday |8y} uo woday
padojaasp sem
pasuswwod
sawuwelboid

Buipiing pPaouUBSWIWOD

-Aioeded sowweiboud

|eluswipedsp | Buiping-Ayoedeo

uo uodal | jejuswpnedsp uo

uonenjeAs | yodal uojen|eas

V/N SUON BUON 1oedw| oedw|
padojaAap sem

sjoafoud Buipjing s)o9afoud

wisiNo | 40 Jusiupeda( €€ 80A

1BBA Jeloueuld 61/8 102 401 poday fenuuy




qs

pasijeul
sem sjo9foid
dMd3 wsuno}
10} wa)sAs

souepusje pue
awi} suewolq B
Jo wawdojaaaq

syosloud
dMd3 Wsuno}
1o} woajsAs

aouepuayle pue
awn oupwolg B
Jo wawdojaaag

pesijeuy

sem SOOINSS
pue sjonpoud
paumo-yoe|q

jo aseqe)ep

10 jJswdojaasg

CERITNES
pue sjonpoud

paumo-yoejq
jo aseqejep

Jo juawdojarsg

pasijeuy
sem  aseqgelep
apis Alddns
‘SNILLN 3y}

Jo jswdojaaag

pesnuoud
aseqgelep
apIs Aiddns
‘SWILN ay}

Jo swdojaasq

:swaysis uojewiojul aaly

wisunoy 4o jusipeds(q g 8)0A
Jea/ [eloueuld 64/8102 40 Hodey jenuuy




95

e pajabie; [ 1e pajeblie} [ 1e palebie)}
doysyJopn doysxaopn doysyiopn
saoloeld saoloeld | ssoioeld iseg

V/N BUON auo) | }seg jo Buueysg |iseg jo Buueys | jo Buueysg
Aeq ejspuepy

uosjeN ]

Qo0 €e-le

uo paisoy Bunesyy

Sem Bunsspy Siesiuin
SI9SIUIN | wskno|  VHOI

Y/N BUON SUON | WsKHNO]  wyOI | 8y Jo Buysoy
ueging
810z fen 2
uo palsoy sem Bunasiy
Bunesyy spadx3 | spadx3 wisunoy padojenap
VY/N SUON SUON | WsUNOl VYOI | VHOI Jo BunsoH | sem YOI
Jo diysiieyo
ueq.ng S, eolyy
ul 810z AeiN 8-9 ynog  Buunp

Uuo psajsoy sem wsuno| suuep WRBSHIONN

wsINO] ouley | pue [EISEOD | wisLIno | e

pue |ejseos Uuo | Uo doysyiopm J0 Bunsoy ayj

Y/N BUON BUON | doysyIop VYOI | VYOI Jo BulsoH | oy ueid |euly

1SOANRIJIUI BALY

uoneibajul _mco_g pue co:@_ﬁoeo,_ﬁﬁm_ﬁ _uem elo} _m._EwE_:E u vﬁm%o.ﬁ wm>_~m_m_c_ o ._wnE:z 'S Idd

wisLNo| Jo Juswipiedaq :£g SJOA
1ea, [B10UBUL 61/8 10T 104 Moday [enuuy




LS

b

[ Buissalppe yum pajinioa.
paouswiwod | YynoA 1O
juswpedap | silequinu  |ejo]
ayl “yomawel} | ayl pajoaye uonosjjoo
(dMd3) |  senediotunw elep SWIIN 4o}
swuweiboid | sjowal pue uono9|jod | pafoldwa yjnoA
SHIOM  2lignd | [ednd  ul ynoA ElEp SWILN | psuies; 009
papuexg | BuiAyenb Jo paoejd jou | 8yl 1o} paules :awwesboud
94y} U¥M aulj uj | Jaquinu pajwi] | 81om UYInoA LG | auem YInoA g1G auQ - - -

ueqing
810z Aen £ eqepu| eqepy| eqepu|
uo pajsoy wsunoj] /10¢ | WsUNol 910¢ | wslnol GL0g
Sem uoissag | pajsoy uoissag | 8y je  pjpy |8y e pisy oy} je piay
|[eus)SIuIN [eUalsIul | SBM  UOISSOS | SBM  UOISS3S | SBM  UOISSaS
V/N SUON SUON eqgepu| egepu| | [BUSISIUIN V| [BUSISIUIN W | [BUSISlUIly Y
ueqing ui
610z Aenigag
12 0} 6l efuejewndp
uo paisoy pajsoy sem
sem sjuaweaaibe pejsoy sjuswasibe
wsunoy peubis sjuswsaibe | wsuno) psaubis
VS woym | wsuno}  paubls | vs woym
UM SBUunod | YS  WOUYM UM | YUMm  SSuuNoD
UBOLJY | SSLIUN0D UBOLYY uesuyy

WSLINO | JO Juswipeda(] €€ 9J0A

18I [BIOUBUL 61/840C 0} Hoday [enuuy



89

spadxg wsuno| 0| pIg ‘doysiIopn WSKNO| Sulel pue [BlSB0) Y| Ajoweu ‘sjoAa] shoLieA e swuojield saiy) pajsoy pue 4o}
pauue|d yuswpuedsap ayl (VHOI) UOREID0SSY WY UEad() Uelpu| Jo Jeyd sk siaad s) isoy 0} Ajunpoddo ay) paysijal eou)y yinos

uoneibajul jeuoiboay

sjybiyBiH Jo aAneLeN

suolfal pue
sanijedioiunw
pusip

ales ayl uiyum
seedidiunw
|eo0)

juaoelpe  wol
yinoA BuiAyjenb
‘peiojdwaun
Buoe|d Aq
saiyjedioiunw
Buipuejsino

sy} 104
yinoA g|qeuns
Buisinos

Aq_|legioys ey}

wsLNo | jo juswedaq :gg dJ0A
1BBA [EIOUBUIH 61/810T 04 HOday [enuuy



65

olbejens pue Bupjew-uoisoap ‘yuswdoasp Aoljod ‘Bujuueld wiopul 0} s}onpoid pue S9OIAISS ‘SESSBUISNG WSLNO) JO AlSUeA
pue juaixe ‘azis ay) Ayjuenb o) Juswpedsp sy} a|qeud |jIm Yoiym ‘Jeak |eioueul 0z/6L0Z Ul Blep pue UOBBWIOMUI UIMm BAl OB [m

‘washs Bupeyjeb uoneuuour ue se ‘SWILN SIYL (9202-9102) SSLN Ui pue (¥10Z JO € "ON 10Y) 102 10V WSUNOL 8y} Yym auj|
ul (SWILN) weisAg jJuswabeue uoneuloju] WSLNO| [euoleN ay) padojaasp juswnedap oy} ‘Jeak jeioueul gL/810Z 94l Buung

Juswebeueyy abpajmouy|

‘1102 @2uis pajuswaldw alam Jeyy syosafoid Buiping-Ajoedeo jo uonen|eas joeduwl ayj YiMm paouaLILIoD
os|e juswpuedsp ay] "sjoafoid anjea ybiy asey) sjenjeas Ajjusnbasqns 0} paiinbal aq (M Jey} 2ouspiAe [enuasse a8y} aaoldwil
0} JapJo i syoefoad aimponuseyul pue Buipjing-Ayoeded yjoq jo Buniojuow paspuoud ‘JesA [eoueul 61/81L 0z Buunp quaswuedsp syl

:uonjenjeAz pue Buuojuop

"JOV WSUNO | ay} JO Juswpuawe
ay) pawuojul psebas siyy ul sjesodosd Aoijod ay| -abie] je Awouoos sy} pue JOJOSS WISLNO) 8y} JO Aljiqeule)sns ayj Jo} [eonuo
S| s)saJajul asay} Bulouejeg "sessauIsNg WSLINO} [EUOJUSAUOD pue s)said)ul Awouoda Buueys ay} usamiaq aouejeq Aoljod ognd
e 9)ealo 0] aANoa[go ay) yym Awouodss Buueys ay) o) yomawely Aloyeinbaa syeudoidde ayy Buuojdxe Apusuino s) Juswpedsp ay|

"sjjousq paseq-peoiq pue jusweabeuew uoneunsap ‘Bunadiew aAloaye ‘saAneniul sousuadxs J0)isiA Buloueyus ‘sseooe
Jo sses Buneyoe) Ajpweu siejd oibsyens aaly ayy uo Buisnoo} siouped ayeaud pue ognd Yum swealss MIom Al oy} papoddns
pue pajej|ioe;} sey juswpedsap ay) ‘SSIN paaoidde jauige) sy} Jo uopejuaws|dwi sy o) [eonuo ase jey) sdiysiauped sy sAup Of

ABajenyg pue As1j0d 103998

‘dnoig) Bunpops wsuNo| SOIYd
e JO Juswiysiigelss ayj 4O} 90UdJSJal JO SWID) dY) PASIOpUd pue passnIsIp Yolym Bunssyy sjeni J0IUsS wWsuno| SOIMg ISt
ay} pajsoy Juswpedap ay] seak Buipodas siy) Buunp (SO1Hg) oWV YINOS ‘Buly) ‘elpu] ‘eissny ‘[izelg palieyo osje eou)y Yyinosg

*dnouc) 8109 WISLNO |

VYOI 84} 10} uejd YIOA\ @Y} pue asuaisjey Jo swia] ayy paydope yoiym Buieapy SisiSIUIy WSUNO| YOI Puz oyl pue ‘Bunsspyy

wisLNo | Jo Jusupeds( :£E 8JOA
12O [BloUBUlS 61/840 404 LOdeY [enuuy



09

SUON
s)abie) pauue|d o) sabuey)

"BOLY YINOS Ul sjonpoud wWsLINO) [eind 1oy yJomawely Ajjiqeurelsns padojaasp
3} asn 0} Moy UOo siapjoysyels wsuno) ajejoeded o) pjay osje sem doysyIopn JopjoysyelS WsUNo| \ "uoniqiyxa Jajsod pue
uopejuasaid |eio ybnodyy sousiauod ayy ul Yed %00} poddns [eoueuy Buinieoal sjJUsSpN)s US) pue ‘paisoy Sem 80USIBJU0D) JUBPNIS
sjenpels)-}sod e ‘eoualajuon ayy jo swwelboud oyiusios ay} jo yed sy " wsLno | ul saunpoddQ uoieain-09 pue UoKeIoge|jo),
PO SEM 8OUSJSJUOD BY) JO BWaY} 8y 'gL0zZ IShBny QL 0} 90 WOl 8oUSIBHUOD BOUYY YINOS JO S10)ednp] WSLNO] |euoneulajul
pul PUE UONEIOOSSY S8IpN)S WSUNO] [euoneulaju] ,/ 8y} }SoY O} Bouyy UINog Jo AjIsIaAlun ay) ypm passuped juswpedsp ay)

*WISLINO) auLeLW
pue |e}seod Jo Joeduwl 8y} aInsSesl 0} YJOMBLIEL) B 8SN 0) MOY UO SI9p|oyayels Wwsuno) sjejoeded 0) Jeuiwas ay) a10j8q Aep e pjay
sem doysyiom Buipjing Ajioeded v "si9pjoysE}s J0J08S WO} HOBGPID) S|gEN|eA UIRI(O 0} MBIA B UIM YIOM oleasal J1ay) 9Seomoys
pue Jiqiyxa o} Ajunuoddo ue ‘quaswpedaq ayy wouy Loddns [eloueul) paAledas oYM ‘sjuspnis sepiroid Os|e Jeulwasg yoleasay ay |

(leyeN-ninzemyj jo

A)IsIonlun) € 9SByd :Bouyy YINOS Ul WISIIN0) SuEW pue [B)SEO0D JO Joedwl| D1LOUCID dLf) SSSSSE 0} YJomalels e Jo Juswdojeaaq
(euojald Jo Ausianiun) Apnis ased e se aden uleyuop :(s1S|) si9)jo] A10)s snouabipu|

(enojald Jo Austaaiun) fenusiod pue aonoeud — uoibal eolyy UIBYINOS 8y} Ul S8IN0J WISLNO} palusy) 1opiog-ssol)

(euojaid Jo Aysianiun) J0joas wisUNo} ayy ul spual) ebaw Jo 1oedwl ay) Jo JuBWISSasSE Uy

(Bangsauueyor Jo AjsiaAlun) suonoenie pue sabpoj ‘syled

paumo ajejs Jo ased e Juswdojeasp sesudiajug oI\ Pue WNIpS| ‘|lewS Moe|g JOj S)9SSe WISUN0) paumo-aels Buibeions] e

:pejussald sem yolseasas Bumoljoy sy ‘saipnis
wspno} pajajdwos Apuaocal Jo sbujpuly Yyoieasal 9)eulwassIp 0} 6L0Z YOJe| G| UO POy Sem Jeujwag YyoJeassy wsuno] /2 ayl

‘sdiysumo) pue seale |einl
0} wskno} jJo syyduaq sy} puedxs 0} pasu auy sybIYBIY yoiym (9Z0Z-9102) SSLN @Y} Yim aull Ut seolAIes pue sjonpoid paumo
-)oe|g JO aseqelep e padojaasp juswpedsp ay) ‘Jealk |eloueuly 61/810Z @Y Buung ‘seaesadwi epuabe uopewuojsuel) Buipnjoul
‘40J09S wWIsKNO} 8y} Jo Juswdojaaap pue ymoib ajqeuieisns pue aAisnjoul o} Ajjnjbuiuesw aynquiuod 0} Y}oas Jey} SUOoljusAIBIU]

wIsLINO JO Juswipedsq :€g 8J0A
JesA fejoueuld 61/8102 104 Loday fenuuy



I9

000.d
ainypuadx3y
Japun/(1eAQ0)

000.d

ainjipuadxgy
[enoy

000.4

uoneidoiddy

000
alnjipuadxg
hmvcb\cgov

000
ain)ipuadxgy
|enoy

leutd
6102/8102

000
uoneridosddy

86¢ €v.L96L L Ll L6L L ey 806 £€8¢C | 0€1 882 L [ejol
uoneladoo)

e 08¢ €¢ ¥es €¢ c89 ¢ 79l €¢C o8 9¢ pue suoijejay [euofjewsiu|
- 8382621 | 8826¢L L - 80802 | 80802 | wisuNo| uedsuly yinos

- £68 0l €68 01 € 8S. L1 192 L1 Abajens pue buiuueld Aoijod
wawabeuepy

€ Gcl 12 8¢l /¢ - 881 €€ 88Y £€ abpsmouy pue yoressay
juswabeuepy

suonejey [euonewsyu)

LGl 166 G 80L G LES 0S¥ L 186 / ‘mmmmo__mm_.l.%._mmmom wsuno |

aweN mEEEmo._‘n_ -qns

ainjipuadxs awweibosd-qng

WSO JO JuswRda(q :CE SIOA

BB [BIOUBUIS 61/8 10 404 Hoday [enuuy




A

padojeaap
padojeasp sue|d | sem sjoupaud
padojeasp | jJoupaid  WISKNO)} | WISKNO) jo
alem  eys)i|eAeyy (eyspypAeyy) | wuaswdoasp a8y}
Y/N QUON BUON | 4o} sueld 1ouald diysumo] | 1o}  ABojopoyla - -
j0o) Buiuueld e | joo} Buiuueld e se
se [enuew Bujuueld | jenuew  Bujuueld
uoneunsap uoneunsap
ay} wswaidw | ayy juawa|dwi
0] wioped B se | o} uuoped e se
‘saoulrold sulu sy} | ‘saouiacid  sull
jo yoee ul ‘pajsoy | 8y} jJo yoes ui padojansp sem
2Jom suolssas | pajsoy sUOIsSSSs | jenuepy  Buluue|d
V/N BUON BUON | uoyeyjioe) OM] | uonejioe}  om| uoneuysaq - -
:useuspun saaneul Bujuued uoneunsag :o>o_m_

- | el s aail Y EET EHapun saagepiul B E%ce_umz_w%Lonnész lidd |

O IN b 1R

spoelosd wsuno) Bunuswaidw Aq seunpoddo JuswAojdwa 8)ea10 0] ‘SBuUBYO WSLINO} 80UBYUS Puk AJISIOAIP O] :$9A1398[qQ d168)eng
WISLINO | 10} BUJIOAA JuBsWsdUBYUT WSKNO| ‘UOHRUIPIO0)) JUSW]SSAU| pue Buluue|d uoneulss( :sawwelbold-qng
WBswdojoAsp uolBUISSP 9)euIpJo0D pue ajel|oe) 0] :asodind

juswdojanag uoneunsaq :¢ swwesbolrd ¢y

wis1iNo | Jo Juswipieda( €€ dJ0A
Jeaj [ejoueUl 61/8L0Z 104 podey [enuuy



£9

padojeasp padojonsp
sem juswdojaas(g )daouod
Jouald juawdojaaag
yoeag 29zuIapy Jouald
V/N BUON BUON | 40} )deouo) | yoeag o8zuIg) - - -
paje|dwod
alom Uinop ue|d Jeisep
JaAy obueiQ Joy | yesp yinopw
VN SUON auoN | sue|d Js)sew yeiq | JoAry abuelp - - -
pals|dwiod
alom Aeg o8yon ue|d Jo1se
0] SUYor }S Hod 40} | yelp Aeg 89yo)
V/N BUON SuUoN | sue|d 19)sew Jeiq | 0} Suyor 1S Uod - - -
palajdwod alam
UIOIION Jod O} ue|d Jajseiy
feeq dipiapuoH Joj | yedp YOJION Mod
V/N BUON auopN | sueld Jejsew yeiq | 0} leeg diyepuoH - - -
[EIERIGEEIET
YMS/uoaiewe) | ue|d J9)SE Yelp
0} puelsyINg 10} V) S/uonieuse))
V/N SUON auoN | sued Jo)seW Yeiq | 0} puepaying - - -
padojaasp padojarap sugid
alom uoifal ocose)y | puwaid  wsuno)
10} sueld joupeld | uoibal ooie)

wisuno | 4o Juswipedaq g€ 8J0A
180, [erouBUIH 61/8 L0Z 104 Hoday [enuuy



[P Jeui}sap Jo JsquinN g Idd
padojaasp
sem (suosau
}1@bpnq)  sjonpoud
wis1No} pajejds pue SHosal
uonepowiwodoe | 1Bpng  ayr 1oy
ay) 1o} | |lepow jeuonelado
[opow |euonessdo | pue  diysisumo
V/N BUON SUON | pue diysisumQ | ue dojanaq - - -
soijlunuoddo
pajowoud | pue sjoofoud
pue padojarap sem JUBWI)S9AUY
senjunuoddo  pue | wisuno} pasnuoud
s)oafoud juswisaaul | jo sujadid
wsuno} pasyuoud | e ajowoud
V/IN SUON BUON | JO aujjedid Vv | pue dojanaq - - -
padojaaap
ydaouoo
padojansp juawdojaasg
sem sajsdwen Jouald
Aeg  s|ebnogop | seusdwen  Aeg
pue leeqdipopuoH | sjebnogop pue
Y/N BUON BUON | Jo} ydasuon 1eeqdi|yapuoH - - -

WSO | JO JusLLeda( :CE 8JOA
1894 [ejoueuld 61/8L02 104 Loday renuuy



s9

ay}

uo sdn-mojjo4
- emiogeleyd
"10J0BIU0D

ay) jurodde

0} SHOL pue
suolnesiioads
au}

usligelss [jim
S|y ‘Buikeains
pue| pue
sisAjeue apiaoid
0} ‘6102 Aey

| woyy a)Isuo
YJOM pawnsal
pue 6102 |udy
-piw psjuiodde
uaeq sey
Jo0uibus ay| -
9jen \uobueysg

104
‘'sueid pajelsp
jO  uopesijeuy

e|qeud
0} saolnles
J0AaAIns

pug| pue
[eaiuyosjoab

Jo Buunooud
ayr  poheep
ouunl - yolym

‘ajeo) wobueys
ioj sajepipued

ajgeyns
Aq  esuodsal
jood 0} anp
JasuiBua  IAID
JO juswjujodde
ul sAejop
alom alvy |

uaaq sey
emiogejeyd

Jo} (ao¥)
uols|oeQg

JO pi029y pue
pasijeuly Uu9aq

sey uobueysg
Joy  Josulbuzg
IAID ay}

JO juswiuiodde
JaAamoy * gnH
Auaoy ajiIpIAA

Bmioge|eyd
pue E11:19)
luobueys yjoq
10} pssijeuy
jou Sem
S10}JoRIJUOD

10 Juswjulodde
9yl

qnH Aoy
emioqe|eyd
‘pue
iuobueyg

PIIM
sjen

‘peuoddns

jou alem sypsloid
Jjuswiadueyus
uoneusep
Buimoy|o} ayL

anH Ayanoy

PIIM  emioge|eyd
ajeo) juobueyg
‘Ajlsweu
‘paiojuowl
sjooloud
Juswasueyus
uoneunsep jybie
Jo uonejuawa|duw|

:Ajaweu ‘payoddns syosfosd yuswesueyus uoneunsap ybig

SeAnenIu) useyid

anuan
uonelaidiajul
3ed  JUaWwnuop
abejusH |euoneN
Hed

jeuoneN  1abnuy

u gny Apanoy
PIM emiogejeyd
Jjed

[euoneN  Jabniy|
ul  jJuswdojansp
wsuNo}
iuobueys
‘paioyuow
saAneqiul
Jjuswiasueyud
uoijeunsep €
Jo uopeluswajduw|

ajeo

sem

ws1INoj Jo Juswipeda(q :gg 8joA
18 [eroueul 61/810¢ 40} Hoday [enuuy




99

. Jobue) [euiblLIO By} JO JUBWBABIYDE 3108184}
pue ajnpayas 10afold Jo }sal 8y} U Jo8yd UO Moouy e pey ssaooud siuyy ul sAeep ay) ‘ajed luobueyg sy} Jo UONONISUOD By} IO} 8L0Z ABW Ul paulelqo
sem (QOY — uoIsSIoa(] JO piosay ayy) uonesuoyny ayl ‘seis Buidweo pue dwed psjus) ‘aleb pasodoid sy} Joj saIPNIS aulj pooj) 1anpuod 0) paisanbal
os|e sem SHIBINYS ‘uonediidde juswssasse joedul [BJUSLIUOIAUS aU) Jo} selpnis pasieroads Sups|dwos ay) 0} uonippe u| s)eb souelue ay) jo uowsod
8y} Jo aoue)danoe SanIUNLWIWOD SU) SINSUS 0} JapJo Ul Auesseosu sem siyj (QOd) uoisioaq jo plooay auy jo Buinssi ay) Jeye pabpo| s|ieadde sy} Buisssippe
pue (dyg) Hodoy Juswssaessy olseq auj) 819|dwo o} ssao0ld UOHEHNSUOD SAISUSIXS 8y} 0} peinquie Ajuiew a1om Josfoid ajes) iwobueyg auy) 1o} sAejap syl ¢

I8AIY apAlg | JeAly apAig
:s100foad
YN Buimojjoy
8y} je pseuoddns
alom s109(oud
juswadueyua ;e syoelfoud (wn)
V/N SUON BUON uoneunsaq | $se20y  |eslaaiun
pajuelb
Buiaqg sjeacidde
ay} bumojjoy

Apdwoud suibaq
sesssoo.d guonesuoyine

Jayuny Joedwi
2INSUs 0} | [BJUSLUUOIIAUS
SISeq panuijuod ay) pasde) sey
B U0 pajeyjioe} | jo  uoilesijeuly | pouad |eadde
aqm(vI3) |u  Aejep B | BY) loye

JusISSassy | sem asey) ‘gnH | pesijeuly aq |m
Joedw| | AuARoY S|P uogesuoyne
[BJUSWIUOIIAUT emiogeleyd | pue  psuieiqo

WISLINO | JO Juswipeda( ‘€€ OJOA
B8 [eloueul{ 61/8 LOZ 104 Moday [enuuy



£9

V/N 9UON SUON anejaldisiu| aAljejaldialu) | uswdojaasp By wsuno] | sem Buipung

pauoddns

Slam SHM SHM

joopjsueeireq joopjsueeiaeqg

e anua) | je anua)

uonejaidiaju| uonejaidiojy|

V/N SUON SUON | pue |el] piedosT | pue |ies] piedoa
papoddns

Sem anua) anuan

uopnejaidisiu) uonejasdiaju|

V/N BUON SUOpN Jnesouiq Jnesoulq

aden wieise]

ul anI9say BainleN
agam) esam(g
8lelg

9914 Ul B8AIasay
ainjeN we( daueg
NZY Ul orlasey
awergy amniyn|H e
dwe) 1s9y doyiH
ebuejewndpy

ul SaS
wsunoj  ucAue)

aden wsise] ay)
Ul 8AI9S9Y aJnjeN
agam) esam(g
ole)s 99al4

ui 8BSy ainjeN
weq dauen
NZM

Ul 9AI9S9Y Buwexr)
amniyn|H e
dwe9 jsey doyjiH
ebuejewndp

ul salIS
wsuno| uoAuen

wisLno | Jo juswipiedaq :gg 2JOA

1Ba/ [eroueuld 61/8L0Z 404 Hoday [enuuy




89

8IN0Y oNuey-Ipu| anoy auop uonoe
onuepy-ipy | ainoy onuepy-pu| jo swuwelboid
‘peuoddns pue Jodal
SEM 108loud :pauoddns | :papoddns 1sfoud juswissasse
juswdojaasp juswdojaasp juswdojaasp spasu ajnol
V/N 8UON BUON | 8inol auQ | anol auQ | elnos auQ -| @aunseal] ZLN
SPON 00Je) ¥YS SPON

uoAuen | ooley (¥MS) Businec)

JoArY apAlg | Aely  sasjawio|y ul sbulp|ing

Yed |euoleN alenbg a)g abejusay | uolun e

BUILLBYISHS | uoAuen | uewpeeg yeleg | anlels elepuepy

JOAIY apAlg [elowsy Busineo

DAIeS9Y alnjeN yed [euoieN | usaas nyeInbneg | ul yueq wopaal
agamn esam( BuWILLBYISHS | Ned [euoneN [E}EN-N|NZEMY] Med PUueisan
aAlesay ainjep | a)eo) usplog) | ul 8)s ainyded osljebuews]
BAlesS9Y | agamo) Bsam(] | Yied JSijucisuel] | Bjspuely UOS|eN pupjuewny
ainjeN  equejn anesoy Ipebejeby ade) uwIBISOM | JO a|peln
ainjeN nequiei ui anuen (SHM) seXs
aAI9SaY oAlosay :sa)is abejuay [euonosiion) | ebellaH PHOM
ainjeN  amnuniH | aimeN amnynjH | jeuoneu 21U02I ul)suselq | om} Buimoyioy
:sois Jnoy Buimojjoy -so)is obejlay | ay) e abeubis
oluo9| |euolieu [S9)s | oY) e pajeyoe} | Jnoy  Buimojol uonejaidisiul
XIS Buimoyjo} | 21UO9I jBUOEU XIS | SEM abeubis | @y} ul padojaasp ws1No}
ay) ul pauswaldwi | w1 psjuswsidwi uonejaidiojul | sem abeubis | jJo juswdojorsp
sem obeubis abeubis | wisuNo) JO aAleladisiul | 8yl Jo} papiacad

6L0Z/8L02 _ | _

juswisasiyoy
aouewopad jenjoy

1spun jo seaie 0} jebuey 6102/8102 8102/L102 1029102 9102Z/5102
AWO0IaN0 suoljeinsp | pauue|d woiy JusWIA3IYDY 6L0Z/8L02 JuswaAalyoy JU3WaAaYOYy JuswanaIyoy
0) Abajens | uC  JusWIWOD uoneinag |enjoy | jeBue] pauue|d fenjoy |en}oy |enjoy

wisLNo Jo Juswipeda( €€ 8JOA

1eoA [e1oueuld 61/ 102 404 poday fenuuy




69

81049 ay| yeloid
ay) 3Inoybnoay)

pabeuew
ag [m slsquinu
oyl 1eak
leloueul xau
ay} jo | Jsuenb
u uels o
paubie aq |
uoneyuswsdu
jenjoe a8yl
Jeak  |eoueuyy

61-8L0¢
8y} Japenb jse
2y} u pajeiul
sem  sJapinoid
92I1AIBS Jo
Bunoenuoo pue
sjoeloud damd3
10§ JuswWaInooid

ueyy 19buQ)
Bupje) sisuped
yum sassaooud
Bujuueld
1oeloud pajejag
:Buipnjoul
suoseal
SNOLIBA

10} syoeloid
papun} dmd3

uleuso jo
uoneswsajdwi
ul shejep
alem aloy)
‘Mmalaal  Japun
Jeak ay) Buung

'sj09foud

pspuny
dMd3 0
uonejuswajdwi
ay) ybnouyy

pasieal

ale s314 oyl

pejesid
jou alom

_mno._ 314951 €

awwelboiy

WisSUNo |

1o} Bunjopn
ey} ybnouyy
pajealo 2JoMm

sqol 314 661 €

awlwelbold
WIsSUNo |

10} Bunjopa
|y} ybnouy)

sqol 314 66¢ 9

awwelboig
wsuno |

10} Bupopn
ay} ybnoayy
pajealo 219M

sqol 314 JGF €

awuwelboid
WSO |

1o} Bupop
ay) ybnoayy
pajesad aJom

sqol 314 v€. L

swuweibold
wsuno |

10} Bunpop
ay} ybnoiyy
pojeals  aiem

sqof 314 650 €

-y

_ dMd3 @y} uo sjosfoid wsLNo] 1oy BuBHOA YBnoiy patesio sqof s34 Jo Jaquiny i€ Idd

(dMd3) swweiboidg

S}YIOM 2lland pepuedx3 ayj uo sjosfosd wsunoj Joy Buppops ybnosy) pejeass sqol (314) jusjeainbe swi-yny :3ebiey ueld oifejenys Jealk-anlq

~ spelo

d wsynoy Buy uswsajdwi Aq m%_w:.memuﬁsgmasm a)eald 0] gl aApoefqo sibejensg

wis1No| Jo Juswpedsq g€ SJOA
183 [eroueuld 61/ L0Z 10} JOd8Y [enuuy




(474

WISIINO) Sulew pue [eI1Secd ajqeureisns ay} moib o} Japio ul Juswdol|aaap 10} }seod ay) Buoje sapou XIS 8y} Jo} SaAleniul oneway)
Xis paynuapl sey uejd (1IND) wsuno] auuep pue |eyseo) syl “Ayjediounw ay) Joy Buiuueld ay) ol psjesbejul aq ued i moy
pue wsuno} jo Buipuelsiapun Js)aq & Yyum Jsisse 0) (s|elono ooads-wsuno) Buipniout) Juswdojaaap djwouods [edo| pue Buuueld
[ediolunw uo Buppom sjepo jedidiunw J0LSIp pue [eoo] Joj Apenoited ‘Gujuueld uoneunsap wisuNo} Jo joadsal ul asuepinb
sapirod Jey) |00} e si [enuepy Buiuuelq uoneuseq 8yl “61/810Z Ul dom Buiuueld uoneunsap yim panuiuos sey juswpedsp ay|

s)ybBiyBiH jo aAneseN

‘sjo|id Jo
uoneuswa|dwi
ul pauwies|

SU0SS9|
uo peseq

JuswsAoadul
ubisep
AessoooN
‘sAejop
aAljelisIuILIpE
se

lloMm se spiq jo
ssauaaisuodsal
0} anp
sisjuswa|dwi
10 Juswainooid
ul sAejaQq
pajedionue

wsino | Jo Juswipedsd g€ 9JOA
1234 feroueuld 61/8 102 40} poday jenuuy




I/

806 626 £eY LEV vEY oor 8 Ly 86E v8 90 jeyol
14 GGO 6EE 659 6€¢ = 100 6€€ 100 6€€ wsunoJ 10} Buppopp
UORBUIPI00Y) JUSWISOAU]

- ovL S ovL S 866 / €8l 22 18/ 62 | pue  Buiuueld uopeunsaq

- €0 91 8€0 91 €99 066G 21 £Ge 81 Jjuswisdueyus wsuno |
Jswabeueyy

v06 969 2€. 00986  6eL| /996l 9086} |luewdopreg  uojeupseq

000 - 000.M

ainyipuadxgy ainypuadxgy

ainypuadxgy uonendoiddy

Japun/{1enQ) fenmoy ! Japup/(49AQ) jenjoy  leuly aweN swweibold -qng

ainjipuadxe swweiboid-qng

BUON
s)obue) pauueld o) sabueyn

‘puewsp pue A|ddns usamyaq deb ay) 8so[o 0} J9pI0 Ul 8)N0s pauueid 10}
sefiunuoddo spis Ajddns payguepl )} ‘psuoddns usaq sey 9)noy OUERY-IPU| U} JO JUSWOISASP S ‘BouIY YINOS Ul UOjeUSap

wisuno | jo Juswipedsq ;€€ SJOA
Jea fejoueulH 61/8 L0Z 404 Hoday jenuuy




44

papiroid sem papirosd
j1oUNoY Jsuey)D [I9UNo0Y) 18uey)D
J3dg-g wsunol J3gg-g wsuno]
aY) 0] SOJIAIOS 8y} 0} S90IAIBS
V/N BUON SUON Jeuelal0eg Jele)al0eg padojeasp
SEM 90D J0}08S
auop 8po9 J0joas | J3gg-g WsLNo)}
SEM 9p0Y) 101098 33g9-9 wsuno} | papuawe ay} Jo
J3gg-g wsuno| papuswe sy} | uonejuswadl
popuswe ay} | jo uoneusws|dwyi 8y} uo uodal
JO uoneswa|dw 8y} uo Buuopuop - -
V/IN SUON QUON ey} Jo Buuojiuop uodal Buuojuop
.:o_qumEo_nE_ 3388-9 oaoEo._a 0) _uwton_nzm mo>_uu;_:_ 231y}
Fibgs— S = wi 33ag-g sjowoid 0} papoddns saApeniul o JoquinN 3 |dd
WISLINO} 21}SaWop
10} [9AR1} JO a1nyno paacidwi pue s8poo J0)08s J399- g Wisuno} ay} Jo :o;mEoEm_aE_ 8y} Jo Buuojuop aom._ﬂ ue|d o1693e11S JROA-3A14
B _ﬂemw.Em_.Se__ mﬁ.ﬁs@ﬂm:tomwcg_ﬁsy sjela[e00e 0} G w>_uu&no oibajens sjens nm

sawwesbold

Buipjing-Aioedes wsLNO) sjel|Ioe) 0] ‘uonealo qol pue YmolB Jlwoucss aAIsnoul 0} 8jNquiuod 0} sasudisjue wWsuNo)
Jo ymolib pue JuswdojeAsp oy} S)e}|Io.) 0] “10}08S WSHNO)} 8Y) JO UOKELWIOJSURI) 8Y) 8)eIS|9008 0] :SaA13dalqQ dib6ajens
swiwelbold 8AJUSOU| WISLINO] ‘SBOIAISS

JOJISIA WSUNO] ‘uonewdojsuel| pue juswdojprsg esudiejul 90In0say uUelwnH Jojoag wsuno] :sawwelboid-qng
UOBUNSSP WSLNO]} 8ANNBdWIOD B SI BOL)Y

yinos 1ey; einsue o} juswdojsasp Woddns pue sjeAS| S||MS @SEaloul 'I0j08s By} JO uoheulojsuel) eoueyud :asoding

saoinleg Hoddng 10)0ag WSLINO] f swwelbold  pp

wsLno | Jo uswpedsd €5 910A
1BaA [e1ouBUl 64/810C 40} Hoday [enuuy



&L

S = o ~ uonesio
- U WSO} 40 Yo1B pue juswdojenep oY) SleN|e O i BAR9BIqo oiejeNns
pajonpuod
auom (senyigesip (semqesip
yum ajdoad yum ojdoad
pue ALiaple ay} pue Apepie sy}
‘qinoA) papoddns |  ‘YinoA) pepoddns
sdnoub pajeubisep | sdnoib pajeubisop
V/IN BUON BUON 10} SINO | 10} SINO | - - -
uoljeyjioe} [sAel} uoney|ioe} Alleussyu
1o} padojorap sem [oaen Joy | padojorsp sem suopoee
awayog wisuno] | padojaasp eweyos | aWweyds WsLNO) paumo
N BauoN SUON 211SSWOJ SUQ | WSUNO] [EID0S BUQ | |EID0S Jelp auQ -juswiuionoh
pajoajes
padojaasp 0] SS900E
padojanap sem wisuno} | uado syowoud
Sem Wsuno} | padojaAsp wWSLNO} [B100S ajeyjoe) | ey} pajejioe)
ol}sswop ajeyjioe) |  oNssWOop sley|ioe) | o} siojesado noy SoAleIUI
0} sJojesado 0} siojerado Buipoddns Joy wisno}
Jno) Buipoddns ano} Buioddns | somawelq yeiq [e120S Jno4 -
v/N BUON SUON 10} Jomawel 10} Yjomewel

iwsuno] oa13sawo( aje|nwi)s o3 papoddns saAeniul 984y

ey s o8

___ WsuNno} DSaWwop 8yenuis o}

PeLK

ddns seAeniul Jo JoqunN :Z |dd |

VN

BUON

pajonpuod
2IOM SaANEIU
Juswiamodws

WSLNO | Ut USWOAA

pajonpuoo
saAjelul
jusuiamodws
WSNO| U] USWOAA

wsuno| jo Juswpedsq :gg 810A

188 [BIOUBUIS 61/8 40 0 Hodey [enuuy




174

swuweiboud
sy} Jo ayeydn
pasesaioul
Siyt

'ssauIsng
WISKNO}
uoddns

0} Juswpuedap
ay}

Aq papiroid
SIS

uo SUOISSas
ssaualeme
apnjoul

0} suwopeld
juswsabebus
swwanob
|eoo|

pue |elouirosd
Buisn

Aq sINNS

0} yoeal

s}l pepuedxa
Jjuswpedsp
9yl

SINNS
€£9¢ [euonippe
ue 0] papirold

sem uoddns
juswdojoasp
ssauisng

SIANNS

£99 0} pepiroid
sem poddns

swdojarsp
ssauisng
_m_ocmcc.coz

S3INNS 007 0}
papiacid poddns

juswdojansp
ssauisng
_m_ocmcc.coz

e [ i (.

|[EIoUBUL-UON

juswdojansp 1o}
psuoddns aiom

www:a._ﬁcm oo¢

yuswdojonap
Joj pauoddns
alom
sasudisjue

leind 001

s seslidiajue JO JSqUINN : »E&

pue suojuaAIBul Ememm:mE mmm:_msn ybnouyy Ewan_m>m_o 10} thoga:w w@w:&ﬁcw LsUNO} oo@ jebue) ue|d 2 o_mmum.:w ._mo>.o>_u_

sowiwelboid uoeqnoul |

wsLNo | Jo Juswypedsq €€ 8J0A
Jea, feioueuld 61/810¢ 40} Hodey fenuuy




L74

“va3s Aq 1no Buipuny ay} 0} anp Jaypn} anUUOI Jou pinoo Joefoid sy asogeisy] ‘1oefoid
ay} Jo uopenunuod sy Buiosye ‘pasyuoudal sem 186png Jisy) Jey) pajesipul Jauped Bujuaweldwi Jno JesA ul SIS 00b Ulen o) Jabie) e
UM va3S Yim paseuled pey am JeeA |eloueul 61/8L0Z Ul ‘ewweiboid paumo yg3s e s| ewweiboid juswoabeuew ssouisng 931 34dINT UL o,

wsLIno Jo Juswiedaq :gg 8JoA
188 [B1oUBUIH 61/8 10T 10} LOdSY [enuuy

Je pasijeul} JoI\ ‘Bieqseuely mau g
usaq pey pauoddns :psuoddns pauoddns psuoddns
sueld 0z/6102 Jojeqnaul a1am slojeqnoul s10}egnoul | 8alem siojeqnoul
V/IN ayj ey | |euonippe suQ Busixa Jno4 Bunsixe saiy Bunsixe g

o S1ebuey

1ofoud jo

JuswaAsIyoe

SHueq pajoaye

[eIDJoWWOD yoIiym va3s saspudisjus
yum suoses. UlIM papunj-0d | Q0¥ 0} swwesboud

sdiysiauped |euonesado pue diysisuped u juswdojeasp | pedojensp sem
ybnouy) UMO S} 10} pajonpuo?d Buiuiel) suuofield pue | juswesunouosd
Jeak |eoueuly uonedioned jusweabeuew sj|Injs Buneyiew Aoijod jualino
02/610z2 ul S} MalASI O} ssauisnq pue Junoosoe uo paseq
pauoddns oq | pey Jauyed u sosudisjue 23138dANT | Juswsbeuew pue juswdojarsp
M STNINS | olrejuswajdul L€z | ybnouy; sesudiaus Koessy [ejoueuy asudisjus
Buipuejsino | sjuswpedsp | 03 papiaoid Jou 691 0} patayo JININGS WSLUNO) | 10} Ylomawel
ayl ayl sem poddng sem Joddng | Jeuoneu e no [joy wue)-buo

"siaquunu

pejabie)

uey} Jaybiy

ul Bupjnsal




74

VIN | SUON | BUON | BAlJuUadUl JNoH SS200Y JoYEN sswwesboud alom seale
:pajusw|dw| sswweibold aApuUadUl Jho 4 BAIJUBUI JNO4 Aoud 881y |
i I A LANE AL _____psu oid pasianuaou
‘pesijeul
uosaq uses
sey j0efoud
o) ‘JonomOH
'shejdp u ‘SHUEANVYS
onejuswaldwil yum diysisuped
100loud ul swwelboid
Aq pejoaye ‘parejdwiod uonegnou|
SEMm Jojeqnou| sem Ajjened aouBUBJUIB
Buiuie. | Joyegnou| paysiqelsa
eisueg ay; Buiuiel | :paysijqelse sem sJojegnoul
V/N | o uonesieu ejsueg ey | Joyegnoul mau auQ MBU OM |

‘woddns

0] anunuoo

0} pey
Juswpedap
ey} sJojegnoul
10 Jaquunu

ay) Buisesaoul
‘paysiqelss
SEM J0JBgNOU|
jeuonippe

ue ‘61/810¢
J0 pue ayy

pue ‘emiogejeyd

s10}EQNOU]
najeAuepy

pesijeuy

sem [epod
soeoines poddns
ssauisng
paysiigelss

aJem siojeqnoul

wisLNo| Jo Juswpedsa( £ 8J0A
B8, [eloueuld 61/8102 Joj Hoday jenuuy




L

ws1INoj Jo juswirieda( :gg 9JoA
JeBA [BIoUBUI 61/80Z 40} Hoday [enuuy

poddng

pepoddns alom

pasiajuaoul

pajejdwoo ueAsal — |eleN-NINZemy
SaluNWLWOoD | aq o) papasu JOYI0 yum YOoYSaISHA
payuapl sasudiajus juswebebua - glelg ol
aAl} 8y} | 8y} 0} woddns | Jsyuny 0} anp SaUNWWOD
0} Joddns jueasjal paouaLllIWIod pa)e|dwod OAl} Ul Uleyo
Jo uaisinold epiaoud 194 Jjou pey uaaq aAey Apnjs an|BA WISUNO)
ay} sjeniul 0) 0} dajs sesLudiayus Ajjiqiseay ayj pue | Jeus 0} papoddns
payeap uasq Aessoaosu ws1INo} SOIUNLIWIOD DAl sasudisus
aney sueid ay) se Apnys Ajunwitwos | sy} Ul uoneyNsuoD WSKNO}
ssauisng Aljiqises | 0} yoddns ay | Japjoysyels Ajunwwon - - -
e Serws s - T . U2 en[eA wsun g SLINO} AJUNWLIOD JO JBqWINN 19 Idd
(pung
uoljeulIojsuel |
wsLno] )
uofjewojsuel | (pun4g
Jojoag uojjeunolsuel |
(swwelboig Wwsuno|)
BANUSOU| uonjeulojsuel |
WsHNo | ussln)) 10199g (yond)
Kousioig ABisug (swweiboid Aqisseooe Aousioiye
awuwelboid BAIUSIU| |esiaAlun ABioug
Hoddng wsuNo | usalio) Aousioiye Buipeib
Buipeio) wisuno| | Aousioiye ABtsug ABieug WSLNO |
swiwebold swuweiboid | Buipesb wsuno] | ss990€ 19BN
Hoddng Hoddng $S9008€ Jo)Iel :Ajlpweu
SS90V JMNIeN Buipeib wsuno | :Ajpweu ‘aseyd
:pejusws|duul awuresboid ‘Buipuny yum | joid ayy Bunp
alom sawweibouid




84

V/IN

panrocidde
pue pajeajow
AInp usaq pey
uolelnsp ay

10U SeMm
BIoN7 1S Ul OIA
ay) esneoaq
sem siy |

anuan
uolBWIO |
JONSIA Aouaby
juswdojpasg
puey 1S9
pue anus9
uoljeuwoul
J0USIA
Aspaquiny "o’
‘pajuswadw
sem jo8foud
ay] alaym
sayis pabueyo
jusiupedsp
ayl

anua uoljewlo|
J0ysiIp Aousby
juswdojeaag

puey Isspm

anuas uoljewlolul
JoysiA Aspaquury
1SOM

ULON Ul spus)d
UONELLIOJU| JO)SIA
jied |euoneN
Biegsaue|id

:Sapou 9aIy)

ul payeoo| (SOIA)
S8J)USD UOIJeULIOjU|
JoysiA (g) @aiy

ul suop sem (L6l
SNVS) piepuels
20U8||90X] 82INBS
Jo uonesijddy

1S9M
UUON Ul aua)
uoneuLIoju| JOUSIA
Yed [euoneN
Bungsaue|iq

O3 ulenue)
uoljeulIoju| JOYISIA
suyor 1S Wod
NZM ul (enua)
uoljewioju|
e[nyyy) eonT i
.S9pouU 291y}

Ul pa1eoo} $auad
uoljew.Io| JOUSIA
SoIyl Ul L6 1

(SNVS) spiepuelg
S80U9[|99X] S2IMBS

Jo uoneoyddy

"'auop 9I8M
(>Hed |euoneN
Jobnuy|

ay} ul dwen
BZnynyg pue
puejs| ueqqoy
‘awen)
aueAuep)
sjonpoud
WSO}

92y} 1o}
(2611 SNVS)
swuwelbousd
poddns
pajeibajul
90UD||90Xd
20IMISS JOo U
oneyswsaldw

"auop (pue|s|
usqqoy

pue anlasay
aweo
aueAuepy)
sjonpoud
WISLINO) OM}
10} spJepue)ls
a0us||9ox8
9oIAIBS JO U
onejuswajdwy

:pojuswajdul S22IAI9S 103ISIA Bulinoadwi 10j saAReniul XIS

‘pPajeniul aq
pinos poddns
apinosd

0} JJom

8y} a10}8q

&
— —

sjuawedop

~ psjuswajduwi saoiaes JoysiA Buiaoidwil Joj sealenul JO JOqUINN 12 Idd |

izeyejip — Buaines
edwedwey

— IS8 M YUON
uIZIZEe\®

— |eleN-NINZem|

abejiA einyy|

wsnoj jo Juswpedsd €€ 8JoA
Tea, [ejoueuld 61/810Z 104 Moday fenuuy




6/

JO uoneypaiooe

10} JJomawely

8WIBY0S WSUNO)

VIN SUON QUON 1o} Ypomawe. Jo Juswdojereq | [elo0s Yeip auQ - -
sawelsiul saweljawl
saweljawl pasalibe paalbe
paaibe ay} ayj uiypm au} uypm
suie|dwod | uIyim uonnjosel uonnjosal uonnjosal
sjuie|dwo? jsunoy 1SUNO} JO Joj senuoyine | Joj senuoyne | 1o} senuoyine
Jo uawabeuew sy} Juswabeuew oy ojeudoidde | ojeudoidde 0} | sjeudoidde o)
ul Jepeys Auealep | ul Jaueyd AusAlep O} paldol | poudjal Slom |  pouojol 9Iom
80IAI8S BU] YJIM 201A8s 3y} Yim | alam sjuiejdwioo spue|dwoo sjuie|dwoo
V/IN SUON SuUON | oeoueldwod %00 | 2ouendwod %00L | ISHUNO} JO %001 | ISUNOY JO %001 | ISUNGY JO %001
o3
043 - suyor 1 Hod = SUyor is uod
NZM - Wizop NZX - luizop
ul :pajuswsiduwi
pajuawsjdw sem |  UONESI|E)AS] UMO)
uonesI|EUAS] UMO} -llews ay) jo ped
-[lews ay} Jo ued se sapiediounw
se sanlediounw | om} ul swwelbold
(2) omyur | (3S2r) @ous)j8ox3
VIN BUON auoN | swuwelboid 38zZr | eonieg o} Asuinopr - - -
umop
pauing pey
suyor 1s yod
ul DA 8y} pue
‘leuonelsdo

wssuno | jo juswueds( :£c 9)OA
18O [BfoURUI 61/810 404 Hoday [enuuy



08

V/IN

0} siesjueblo
wnio-

2y} yum

piey siom
suoljenoboau
‘saAnemul
SSOUBIEME
wsLNo}
uspeolq

0} Ajunpoddo
ue aq 0} sy}
Bunispisuo)
610¢

yosep G

— || Uo oam
uonos}oId
JawiNsuoy)
8)eIgale0
oj-ubledwen
ssaualemy
wior e
pauug|d pey
NZX ul wnio4
uonos)old
Jawinsuo)

"‘usyeuepun
sem ubiedwed

ssoualeme
jeuonippe auQ

Ajsjes wsuno |
Bulping jsuno |
92U8}}90x3 921M8g
juswabeueln
sjuie|dwon

1104 pajuswaiduwl
aJom subiedwed
ssausieme

ol uno4

Ajojeg wsuno |
Buiping isunoj
99Ug||9dX] 90IAI0G
yuswebeuep
sjuiejdwon

:10} pajuswo|duul subjedwed ssaualeme jutol aaay]

padojanap sem
SBWBYIS WISLINO)

awWaYos WsSLN0o)

jO uoneypasode

Ajjeuwssiuy
padojarap sem

wisiino | Jo Juswipeda(d €€ 8JOA
1eBA [eloueUld 64/8 10T 404 Hoday [enuuy




18

:pajuswejduiy saAReRIul (QuHL)

juswdojarag 321nosay uewnH wsunoj sawwesbold JuswdojeAasp s|is auIN

J

[ ! . 1 i - Pl el N | | o A hZd |
pajuswajdw] SaAneIUI

= - __sswweiboid Buipjing-A
(0g2) ododuwi
saoulrold (001) 31s9M YHON
Mmau ay (05) eyeg @914
ul slequwinu ododui (0S)
Mmalnal 1S9AA YHON ade) woayuopN
saAnoaiqo pue ubisep o)elg 9al4 (052)
swweiboud awuweiboid | aden ussyuoN (201) [BIEN-N|NZEMY]
}9aw 0} Joplo ay} JIsinal | |ejeN-ninzemy| aden uieise] (o01)
u| 9s}0J0X0 o] pepioap | aden uieisaps | (gez) ebuejewindpy aden wieisepp
melnel siyy Aq | uswedsp (¥61) Busineg (002)
pauuojui 8q | 8y} ‘seouiroid :saouiroud aden uis)seq
s seouinoxd | ¢ 1Sy eyl ul u | Buimojjo) ayy ui :seouinold | (0gg) ebuejewndpy
9 Jayjo | onejuswsiduwl pajuswa|du aaly) Bumojjo} (002) Businen
9yl uIuo | WOy paulIEs| jou | ay} uj pejuswsa|dw | :pajjoius SIOHUO
neyjuswsaldwy | suosse| Buisn sem Bujures | sem Buiures | WISLNO] 0S¥ |

Buipping Buipjing
Ayoedes ua] | Ayoeded ybig

| sewwelbold bulpjing-Ayoeded JO JoquinN :8 Idd
-9Ald

c__u__.:n- yoede) :jabie} ue|d oibejeng Jea

bBuipjing
Ayoedeo a4

C  WISHNO} d)eyjioe) 0 12 8ARILIqO 3]

S ——

'610¢ Yyorep
€1 0} 2l woyj
swuwelboiq

18y} Ul senssi
WSLINO)
oloads
apnjoul

Wwis|No| JO Juewpedsa( :£g 9J0A
Jea [eloueul 61/840 404 poday jenuuy




8

seplunpoddo SIS

juswAojdws Buiping jsunoj awweiboid

Jayjo pue "UBWIOAA YoB|g uononpu|

sjno doip 0} snp Jo} swwesboid WISLNo |

swuwelboud sy} wswdojaaeq JUBWILIBAOD)

Ul paulewsal YinoA aAlNosxXg |E007

15| ‘6102 yosiep 301N 301N swweiboid

L€ 1e ‘1aAaMOH (05) swuwelboid Ipny Jainssy

‘SyjuoW Inoy pue [eleN-nnZemy] uononpu| S|IMS Yelq Ajojeg poo-

sleak z Jo uoneinp | (0g) aden uia)seq wsHUNO | swuweiboid UPNY SINS

9y} 10J 9102 (oo1) JUSLULLIDAOD) uoionpu| 10]09gG :8uU0

u| swwelbolid ade)) uis)sapp [eooT] WSUNo| | aseyd :majasi

Buiure | ul swweiboud | Apog Buneuipio JUSWIUISA0S) ABejeng

yoeog Bej4 Buiures | yoeegq -0D QyHL [e007 (QuHL)

an|g 8y} u| pajjolud Bej4 enig ay) awweboid swuwelboid | juswdojeasg

alem YjnoA ul pg|joJud YinoA Rvjeg poo Rejeg poo 20In0sey

V/N BUON BUON pafojdwaun g0z pafojdwaun g0z swweiboid swwelboid uewnH

Buluies | aosmeg Buluies | wsuno |

AyeydsoH 20I1AIBg swuweiboid

‘uondaoul 9s.n00 Buluiel | AyendsoH ainsodx3

ouUis po||oJud Jajjpwwos 2sIno) Joyeonp3

aIoM SIBUIES) (dLDOAN) Buimes | (301N)

jeucippe awwelboid Jolpwwog | odx3 sissien

‘Buiraiyoe swweiboid Buiuies] spyn swwelbold Wwsuno |

jou jo ¥su ay) UINOA [euonieN | Bulutes] sjpyd jeuolieN

8y} ploAe pue oJu| paj|oiud d1DAN :Ajloweu :Ajloweu Ajpweu

so)el sjno alam ynoA ay} uj pajjoius d1DAN ‘poyusweidw | ‘psjuswsidwi | ‘peuswaldw

doup ybiy paAojdwaun a19Mm YjnoA uj pajjo4ud YINnoA alom alom olom

V/N ebeuew o | jeuonippe || paAojdwaun ggg pafoidwsaun ;G sowwelboud sawlwelboud sawweiboud
6102Z/8L02
aoueuuopad JUBLIBARIYDY
Jspun |enoy

J0 sease 0} 1ebie} 6102/810C 81L0zZ/L102 10zZ/9102 91L0zZ/5102

3WOJIBA0 suojjeinap | pauuejd oy Juswanelyoy 6L0Z/8102 JUSWBARIYDY | JUBWBABIYDY | JusWBARIYOY

0} ABajesg | U0 JUBWIWIOYD uoneina( jenjoy jebie) psuuejd jlemoy | enjoy [enjoy

wis1INO Jo Juswipeds(] :£E 8JOA
1BoA [ejoueUld 64/8 402 404 Moday [enuuy




£8

pajjodua ynoA

sem swwielbolid

awwelboig

V/IN BUON | joJaqunuey] | yinoA AyjendsoH | yinoA AyjeydsoH
swwelbosd
ay}
YpIM anupuoo
0} Jopio swuwelboid
ul pape)ls | ey juswsidw
-2J usaq sey 0} Jalddns
Jeyuswe|dwi a|qeuns swuweiboid
ue [ eAmuspiiou | ayjul pajolus pajjoiuse jou eiem awuweiboid
Joj sseooud pip sseooid | jou asam YinoA | swweiboid Ajejes Ajajeg poo4
juswainooud |  uswainooid pafojdwaun poo4 ay} ul yinoA Ul psjjoiua ymnoA
ayL oyl 00S | | peAojdwsun gog | | pafojdwaun Qpg |
sanunuoddo
juswAojdwe
Joyjo pue
sino doup 0} enp
swuwelboid ayy
ul paurewsal yinoA
2.2 ‘6102 Yyoren
L€ Je JoAeMOH
awweibold awwelboid
Buiuiel] ssBLIWIOS Buiures |
u pajjoJus Jolswog
a1oMm Yjnok ul pejjoJus ynoA
VIN BUON BUON pafojdwaun gog pakojdwaun gog

UinoA

Joy Bulures |
Aousjolyg
002IN0say
swweiboid

WSLNO| JO Jusipieds(] '€ 8)0A
12O [BIOUBUIS 61/840C 404 Loday [enuuy




v8

8y} peaoxe

1e ||is sem :SMOJ|0} (002)
8oUSLULLOD 1o0loid ay) se pajnquisip -ade) uig)se]
I 108foud se pasijeul} ‘swweiboud | (oge) ebuejewndpyy

ay} Jo uo jou sem ay) ut €9 (g29) Businen
nejuswejdul JuswiyinInal | 81am 8194} 6102
pue pasijeul alaym aden youep L§ je se
uLaq 2oUIS UIS)SOM JanamoH -Buiuien Buiuiesy
sey ade) pue ade) [enusuadxs |enuauadxe
UISYLION WisyLoN 10} SjueInNe)Sal 104 sjuUBINE)SOY
pue adep Aq Jo} 1061e) MOJBQ ul paoe|d pue uj paoe|d
UIB)SOAA 10} [ psjuncooe sl | 029 Sem YINoA | paulel) a1om YInoA | pue paulel) YinoA
JUBWSINS0I4 lejdoys ey | jolequnuayl | peAoidwsaun g2 | | palojdwaun g€ 2
(g82) ododwiy
(e6) sS4
(€02) MN
:SMOJ|0}
Se psjnquisip
swuweibold ay) ul
sloules| Lgg alom
8oyl 610¢ Yyaiepy
(1e | L€ e se ‘JonamoH
ododwiT ‘¢ ‘sobelonag abelanag
MN) dAH 8u} pue poo4 pue poo
o}ul pajjolus UOI}EPOLILLODY ‘UOI}EPOLLLLIODDY
sioueg| ul pajjolus ul pajjolus
¢ Aq 1obie) sioules| €9 siaules| 009
yum pauswsidw pouswaldwy

ws1noy Jo Juswpedsa( g 8J0A
1284 feloueuld 61/810Z 404 Hodey fenuuy




58

1510} jo Buypisdn

‘pajuswajduw
Apied sem auo
pue pajuawajduwi
Ajny a1am

sapinb jsuno)
ajejoede? 0)

:pajuswajdug
sapinb

}suNoj} ajejioede
0) sswwelboud

sowwelboud om| sauyyL
pejeyljioe} peajepjioe}
sem awwelBold awwelboly
Juswdojanrs Juawdojaraq
aAINoBxX] BAINoaX]
8y} Ul USWIOAA By} Ul USWIOAA
VIN BUON SUON O Jo Buluies | Ayoj jo Bujuies |
pausAu09
V/N BUON BUON sem JO1IN pausAuod 301N
(0) eden uisisopp
(0) edeg waypoN
(0v9)
[BYEN-hInZemy| (oot)
(¥91) ade) uieypoN
ade) we)seg (515)
(g1¢) ebuejewndpy [B}EN-N|NZEMY]
‘aseyd (515) Busineg (529)
Buiuueid

aden wvIsOM

wsLNo| Jo Juswpeds( :£c 8JoA

JB8A [eioueUl 61/840Z 40} poday fenuuy




98

swuwesboid ayy

Ul 81om sioules)
L¥ 6102 YoIen
LE 1 SE ‘JIOASMOH
‘aden) uIe)SOM
pue a)e)s 88l

aden UIS)SaA
alelg ool

aden welse]
:saoujaoad aauy)
ul sseulea] Apas
Joj pajuawdjdwy

‘adeq) uig)se] sawweiboud

2y} Ul swweiboid Bujuet|

By} ul pajnioal Y GITETRYITE |

VIN BUON BuoN alam siaules| 09 224nosay

‘paules) atam | saouiroud ododwi

saouinoid ododwij | pue aden uis)seq

pue adeq) uis)jse] ay) ui sepinb

oy} u1 sopinb JsuUNo} | JSUNO} Se Sjuenud

se sjuenua maN mau Jo Buiures )

"auop sem jied 3ed

[euonep Jebniy| jeuoneN Jobnuy

‘Buivien 12 sapinb }suno) 1e sepinb }s1No}

ayjow jo buyis-dn jo Buypis-dn

BWSoUSLLIWOD

ay) paAejep auop jou wopBup

aAey aden |  sem wopBury |elo|4 aden

WIBISOMA je10]4 ade) pue 3ied puepsp

ay} ul sauy pue ied ul paja|dwod osijebueulgl

pesaidsapim | sapinb }SLINO) | SEM 3led SPUBIapA ul sapinB

VIN 8yl |  jo Buipisdn osijebuels| | 1suno} Jo Bulpisdn
ul sepinb

wsLno | jo uswwiredaq g 910A
Iea/ [epueuld 64/840Z 10} Lodey fenuuy




L8

Jey} asoy) o} enp swweiboid ayj ul pajenpesb YiNoA ;i eyl pajou aq PINOYS )| "SYIUOW XIS 10} S8SSUISNG WSIINO) Ul
paoe|d aiem sesutel| ‘seouln0id (0Z) oyelS 98l pue (0z) adeD uisisapn ‘(0Z) eden wejseq ul “ABojopoyiapy uononpold
Joues|) pue AousiolYT 92IN0S8Y UO psaulel) SJam YINoA (g JO |EJO} B ‘90US|[90X8 8DIAI9S PUB SIBO JBWOISND B YONS SIS
Jayjo juswseldwod o} pue ‘Ayjiqeurejsns wisl-Buo| Jisy) ainsus o} pue ‘sjsoo Bunessdo aonpas 0) sOSSBUISNG JSISSE 0

"/61 1 SNVS Ui 8oueldwiod a1nsus 0) JSPIO Ul SSOUIAOI 6 BUIU ||B Ul SHJEd |EISUIACLH POUMQ JUSLLUISAOS
Je pajonpuod aiom sppny pue Buiulel) A)jqisseody [esiaaiun ‘syied |eipuinold Ul e21A1es Jawiojsno aAodwl O} JapIo uj

sjybiybiy jo aAneueN

sapou
[edna o} payui|
sajedionu
Ul pajeulpiooo
suoissas Buueys

uoneuLIou|

LUSLING)

Juswuieach

sepou |eoo] pue

[eanJ o) payul| |elouinold ano4
sanedioiunw uj :awwelbouid
pPajeuipIo-00 a1om Buipjing
suolssas Buueys -fjoeden
UOljBWJO)Ul WSLINO) Juawuianohb
JUBWLIBAOB |Be20| [eao]
V/N BUON BuoN | pue jepuircid INoO pue [eloulnodd

sjno doup 0} enp

wis1INo | Jo Juswipieds(] ;€€ 8JOA
1e8A [eouRUlH 61/810Z o) Hodsy fenuuy



88

"N Aousby Juswdojonap puey ISeAA PUB DIA Aslaquiny ‘Ajpweu 8sau] 10} Seale [epou sy} ulyim

Buijje) 10U sOIA Joyio om poddns Jsylel pue ‘sDIA oM} asay) o} poddns Jo uoisiacld SnUNUOISIP O} USHE]} SBM UOISIOap
V "UMOp paulng usaq pey DA SUYor 1S HOd aliym ‘uoielado Jou sem (aJjusn) Uoilew.oU| BjNYY ) BIONT 1S 1Y) PaJSA0DSIp
sem )| ‘eden uelseq Ul |JlU8) UONBLLIOU| JONSIA SUYOT 1S HOd Pue |eleN Ninzemyj ul (81ua) uonewlioju] enyy)
BIONT 1S Ul pa)edo] SOIA 1B /6L 1L SNVYS Jo uonejuswsaldwi o} piebas ypm psousuadxs atem sabusjieys ‘Jeak-piw Buung
sapou

€ Ul pajedso| saspuds) UOojjew.ioju] JONSIA € Ul (L6LL SNVS) SpiepuelS 92uaj[aaxg 82iA9S Jo uonesyddy :/idd
s)obue) pauue|d o) sabueysn

10)09s aU} 1o} 9010} JnOge| pa|iys & Jo JuswdopAsp oy} pajeljioe) Juswuedsp (9661) 2ol4Y YINos ul WSLINO |
JO uonowoid pue juswdojorsg oy} uo taded SIYM WSLNO] SY) UIM 8ul| U] "WSUNOo} Jo ymoiB oy} o} Jojqeus onuo
e S| 9oualiadxs JOJISIA 9oUByUS 0] S||IXS a)isinbal Jo Ajljiqe|ieAR 8y} ‘10)08S 82IAI8S B SY :JuswdojaAsp SIS JO}OaS WSLINO |

‘uleyd anjeA ws1No} 10a1ip ay) ul sjoafosd
JUSWISSAUI 10} SUOIINQUIUOD UMO pue sueo| uaamiaq }sixa Aew jey} deb Buipuny sy} sonpal o} osfosd sad uoliw Gy
0} dn Jo Buipunj Juelb 1oy Ajijenb pue 43N @u) ybnoay) Buoueuy 1qep Joy A|dde ued saluNWWOd pue sasudisjud ‘sI0)SaAUl
paumo-xoe|q BuiAyenb yoaiym ybnoay) ‘(43N) pun4 jusuusmodwiy [euoleN 8y} Yim uopieloqeloo ul psjuawsidwi si pund
ayl (411) pund uonewulojsues] wsunoj ay) pue ‘awwelbold Hoddng Buipess) wsuno] ‘swwelbold poddng sseaoy
19)4e ‘sioyio isbuowe ‘o pesudwod yoiym swwelbosd seAnusou| Sy jusws|dwi 0} psnuijuod sey juswpedsp syl

‘lenusjod
uonesso qol pue Ayjiqeulelsns ayy aaoldwi 0} Joplo ul pyoddns ssao0e Joyiew pue juswdo@Asp ssauisng uo Buisnooy
wisuNo) ul (SgNINS) seslidialug wnipspy 0 oIy ‘|lews o) Hoddns spiaoid o) psnuiuod sey juswpedsp ay] “sdnoib
papnjoxa Ajsnoiasad ay; jJo uonedioiied abeinoous 0} pasiuoud usaq sey juswdoeasp asudiejus ‘sanss| uoyewlojsuel)
yum Buijesp ul juswiiedsp sy jo ABajes)s sy} u| "sasldisiua wnipaw o) [|ews SJe J0}28S Y} Ul s8ssauisng au) Jo ¥ing syl

‘aoeds Aousiolye 8094n0ssal
BU} Ul |anuuUoD |IIm jey) sesudisjue wioj 0) wey) Jo} swuwelboid ssauipess YIOM 8y} Ul papnjoul aq |Im swwelBoid
Buiuies] Aousiolyg aoinosay ay) ui payenpelb oym siaules| /i oyl ‘ewwelboid sy} Bunedwos woiy way) psjuasald
yoiym saniunpoddo juswAojdwe Bunnoas 10 suoseal jeuosiad 10j swweiboid ay) Buiaes) Jayls Jo )nsai e se no paddoup

wisLINo | Jo Juawipeda( S5 8J0A
IBBA [eroueUld 61/8 10T 404 Hodey [enuuy



68

V.8 v 928 192 00 992 G99 8 LLL 162 Z8¢€ 00€ lejol
awwelboid

18 ¥ 191 0§l 820 6S1 vZl 9 69 €81 €65 681 SAIJUBOU| WISUNO |
- /86 L2 186 12 ¥t eLeve 169 ¥2 S80IAJSS JOYISIA WSUNO
uonewulojsuel] pue

€ ELE v¥ OLE ¥¥ 150¢ 89 ¥ .9y | uswdojereq asudisjug
juswdojpasg so0Inosay

- 90/ 2¢ 90/ Z¢ - L0V 0€ LO¥ 0 UewnH wsunoj
Juswabeuey seoinIeS

2 €99 Z1 €69 Z| - 056 8 056 8 Hoddng Jojoeg wsunot

000.d 000.d oood o000 000 000
aunjipuadxy  aunjipuadxy uonjerdoiddy ain)ipuadxy uonendoiddy

Japun/(1anQ) lenjoy jeurd Jopun/(i1snpQ) leuld  ewep swweiboid -gng
8102/2102 6102/8102

ainjipuadxa swwesboid-qng

wislno| Jo Jusiupiedaq (g 8J0A
1884 [eoueuUld 61/8 102 404 Hodey [enuuy



06

‘wisLNo} Joj waysAs Buipelb jeuoneu ay) sbeuew pue yuswajdwy

pue

‘uoneunNSap SJUSAS SSaUISNg B se Boujy Yinos sjowold o) saipoq sjgejins pue ajels Jo sueblo Joyio yum buisie| o
‘suonuaAu0D [euoneualul Joj Buippiq Buneulpiood

Aq uoneunsep wsUNO}

$sauIsNg Se Boljy YINOS loylew O} Nealng UONUSAUOD) [euolieN B ysijgelss Ja)siuly 8y} jo |[eaosdde syl YA
‘Buneyiew wsLnoy 0} bune|al Ja)ew Jaylo AUB Uo JOJSIUI Sy} SSIAPY

‘SSLN Y} pue 10y 8y} Jo saAloalqo sy sajowoud jey} wsunoy Joj ABsjens Bunexiew e juswse|dwi pue dojeasg
‘A||eoiisewop pue Ajjeuoneulaiul sajj|ioe) pue sjonpold uesiyy Yinos 1exiep

‘UoNeUlSap 1SN0} [BUOIIBUISIUI PUB J)}SSWOP B SB BJlJY YIN0S 1o e

pJeog WSLNO] UBdLY YINOS 8y} JO suopoun

(10Z 40 € "ON 10Y) 10V WISLINO]| 8Y] JO SULIS} Ul }SIX® 0} S8NUu0d pue (€661 JO T2
"ON 10V) 1oV WsLNOL 8y} Jo swia) ul paysiqelse (YINdd) Ainug 2diignd Ve 8INpayos e si pieog WsUNo| UBdU)Y YINOS 8y

pleog wWisSUNO| UedL}Y YINOS jJo ajepuely aAne|siba]
pleog ws1NO] uesLly YyInog :sanijua osiqnd o) sjuswied Jajsuel)  L'g

SININAVd d¥34SNVHL g

wisLINo | Jo Juswpedaq (g S10A
1884 feloueuid 61/8L0¢ 40} Hoday [enuuy



16

vl G

‘papeltb sjuswysijge)se UOIEPOWIWOIIE JO JSqWINN o
LGV /8 ‘eduly

yinog ul pajsoy sejebsjep ssauisng jo JaquinN e
102

‘BOUJY YINOG Ul pa)SOY SJUSAS SSauIsng JO JaquunN e
%6¢ (8102

09Q — uer) peasiyoe Apaisod puelq abejusoled e
%L, (8102

09 — UB[') paAsiyoe sssualeme puelq obejusoiad e

uollliq 9'62y :pueds Jo8lIp OlS8WOp [Bj0] e

uollfiq L'0LY :onuaaal Aepjjoy onsaIoq e
uoljjiw

0'€ :peAsiyoe sdu) Aepijoy O§saWOp JO JoquinnN e

uollliq 9'62Y :puads Joai|p ORSSWIOP [BJ0] *

uojjjiw 2°gl :peAsiyoe sduj o)jsswiop JO JaquinN e
uol|iiq ' 28Y :puads joauip ubleioy }suno} [ejo
uoljiw ¥'olL

paAsIyOe S|BALE }SINO} |euoleuIBlul JO JOGWNN e

882 621 |

8¥0 802 |
(000.3)
fus
(000.¥) fanus aqnd oy
olqnd ayj Aq 0} paiisysues
juads junowy junowy

(Lv's Jo ypne ayy o} Joolgng)
A3ua o1jqnd ay} jo sjusUBABIYIY

'Spiq
Jo} uoddns epiaoid
pue uoljeunsap
sbBunesw e se

BOMJY yinog 19)epN

‘sjonpoud
WwIsSuNo} Joj soueinsse
Ayjenb apinold

‘puBlq WSWNO) B SB
BOU)Y UYINoS 1oxEp

‘A||eonsawop

pue  Ajjeuoneussiul
uoneulsap WISUNO |
}SUNO} e se ueoLy
o)y yinog Jexiep yinog

Anug
aliand
JO aweN

fue a1qnd ayy Aq
palapual SaJjAI8SG

wisLINo | 4o Juswipedaq :€¢ 8JOA
1eBA [e1ouBUl 61/810 40} Loday jenuuy




6

6102 UoJel\ LE 018102 [udy | pouad sy} o) apew sjuswAed sajsuel) ay) sjo8|jal mojaq a|qe) sy

"JOBJJUOD IO Juswoalbe
diysiequisw ‘ueld ssauisng ‘uswealbe Jo wnpuelowaw B Ul PaISA0D ale joaltay) Buuojiuow ay) pue paiisjsuel
sjunowe ay} pue ‘(YIN4d) 1oV Juswsabeuey soueui{ 211gnd sy jo ()(1) 8¢ uonoss yum paljdwos juswpedsq sy

‘spjoyasnoy pue suonnysui yjoid-uou
‘sjuswiulanob ublelo) ‘(wsuno] s ‘Aiue agnd ay) Buipnjoxa) seouabe |ejuswedap 0} apew aiam sjuswAed Jgjsuel |

fnue 21qnd uey) 1ayjo suopesiuebio jje o3 sjuswied Jajsuell 7'

wsLnoj Jo Juswyeds(q g€ 8J0A
Ieaj [eroueuld 61/8L0Z J0f poday fenuuy



£6

(VL3ISSHLVD)

Auoyiny Buiures |

pue uoneonp3g

10)00g spodg

"Jeak pue AyjendsoH

olwapeoe g0z ul uoRNqUIU0D salua wsLnoj

juads aq o} spun4 - 6.1 SaA Buiuies SS9UISNG-UON Hy ainyn)

. ' Sjuno22Yy pue salouaby [ejuawiedag

s1089/0.d (dMd3a)

ainjonJyselyul swuwelsboid

wISUNo} SHIOM

9|qeoijdde joN 61012 610 LL S9A jo JuswdojpaeQ spjoyasnoH | olgnd papuedx3
"Jeak ylomawel

olwspeose gL0gZ Ul yoleasay (seaholdwy

Juads aq 0} spun4 - 6.6 € S9A | wsunoj |euoneN sp|oyasnoH UON) sauesing

abeyoed Jjouag

ajgeoidde JoN 8yl L 9|qeoidde JoN 90UBIOADS spjoyasnoH | aoinag aakojdwg

(seohojdwg

a|qeol|dde 10N 099 099 a|qeoydde joN Buiuies | sSp|oyasnoH UOpN) sauesing
sjiyausq

ajqeoidde JoN 809 809 s|qeoldde JoN | [eioos askojdwig sp|oyasnoH Anyelb aaean

i SpP|oYashoH

suonesiuebiQ (OLMNN)

|[euoneulaju| uonesiueblQ

pUE SJUBLILLIBAOL) WISUNO | PHOAA

9|qeoi|dde joN 6vE T 6VE 2 djqeoydde JoN | 83} diysiaquisiy ublaio suofeN pajun

spunyj juadsun

1o} uoseay

000

juaidioal
Aqjuads junowy

wistinoj fo wawindag € 9104
D3, [pIUDU 6T/STOT J0f 10day jponuuy

000.d
pallajsued)

junowy

VINdd 9y} jo
(r)(1)8g uonoeg
yym asuerdwon

suoljesiuebiQ [euoeulaju] pue SjU3LLUIBAOL) ubla1o4

spuny
jo asoding

uonesiuebip
jo adA|

aalajsuel]
Jo aweN




v6

jeroueul 0¢/610¢ uopesodio)
ui Juads aq o) aie BAIJUADU| juswdojoneq
spuny Buiureway - 000 Z SOA WwsuNo| usalg) Ajpu3 ongnd |euisnpuj
$S900y sosudisug awwelboid

ajqeonddy 10N 6£6 8 656 8 SaA 19)JE\ WSKNO | 9)eAld | @AnRuUadu| wsunoj
sasudiajug ajeaud pue suoneisodiod) aljgnd

(eseyped)

leak eouyy yinos

jeloueul} 02/6102 eseypad JO UcREeINoSsyY
ul Juads aq 0} ale Jo suojesado suonnisul AnjejdsoH
spunj Buiuieway 2Ly Zly SOA 0} uopngujuoy) Woid-uoN pajelape
suonnjsu| 3yoad-uoN

(43N) pung

juauwamodwg

Jeak JeuoneN

[eloueulj 0¢/610C pung a8y} yym pun4
ul Juads aq 0} aue uonewJojsues | Kouabe uoneuwlojsuel |
spunj Bulureway - 000 O SOA WSKLNO | |[euswpedaq wisuno |
Hoddng wIsuno |

ajqeoljdde JoN 00€ € 00€ € soA | buipess wspno) Ayu3 olgnd uedu)y yinog
8L0¢ wsuno

a|qeoijdde JoN 86€ L1 86¢€ L1 SSA Swa9 usppiH Auz ongnd ueduly yinog
wisKNo |

a|qeot|dde JoN 068 0S8 SSA | 810¢ PHOM NLEI Ayu3 ongnd ueduly yinog
saua pieog wsuno|

9|qeoydde JoN 8YC ¥ 8ve ¥ S9A 301N SSauISNg-UoN 1SS\ YUON

spuny juadsun

000.d

juaidioau

000.d

patiajsued]

VINdd 9y} jo

(r)(1)gg uonoag

spuny

uonesiuebip

oal9 suel |
Jo aweN

10} uoseay

wstinoy fo Juawlipdaq (g€ a10A

Aqjuads junowyy

iDa4 [DIo2UDUI4 6T/810Z 40f 140day [pnuuy

jJunowy

yum asueijdwon

jo asodind

Jo adA)




6

Jeah
|eoueul} 02/610¢ uopeiodio)
ui Juads aq o) ale JuBWSaAL| Juswdojaaaq
spuny Buiuieway - 000 02 SOA | 9ANuUSOU| WSLINO | Ayu3z onqng |elysnpu|
Jeah
[eloueul} 0¢/610¢C pun4 uoneiodio)
ul Juads aq 0} ale uonewojsuel | Juswdojaaa(
spuny Buluewsy - 000 O SOA wisuno | Apuz olgnd [edisnpu|

Jeah

spunj juadsun
10} uoseay

000.d
juaidioal

Aqg juads junowuy

000.d
paiiajsuel]

Junowy

VINdid dyi jo

(r)(1)gg uonoeg
yim asueldwion

spuny
jo asodind

uonesiuebip
jo adAy

aalsjsuel]
JO aweN

wisnoy fo awupdaq € 210A
1034 |DIdDULULY 6T/8TOZ 40f 140day jpnuuy




96

‘Kinseal] |euonep eia ainjonys buniodeay

Jouop ayj Aq wsiueyosw Buuojuopy

BUON spunj Juadsun 10} suoseay
(000.Y)

66, 22Y Jswuedaq ay) Aq Juads Junowy
66. 22 Y (000.4) paniedal Junowy

Juawdojarsp ubisap jdaouod ‘ue|d ssauisnqg ay} Jo uoneledsld ;| aseyd

paAaiyoe syndino |enjoy

a4)usd UOEWLIOJUI JOYISIA pue aAnaldiaul a)g abejusH PHOAA Joopjsueelneq

sjndyno payoadx]

‘a)IG abeysaH pUOAA Joopisueeineq pawieoold
ODSINN 94} Je 81juad UojeIo)U| JOYSIA SAIJORISIUI pUB 2ANSIdIaJU| U JO UOIIONIISUo)

Buipuny sy} Jo asoding

sieal aaiy |

JUSWILUWOD JO pouad

019 LSY

(000.4) Buipuny ay} Jo Junowe |Ing

uolun ueadoing

Jouop Jo sweN

'6L0Z YoIBW LE 0} 8102 [Mdy | pouad ay} Buunp paAisdai Spuny JOUOP JO S|ielap SSOjoSIp Mojaq 3|qe} YL

wspnoy fo wawndaq (g€ 310/
1034 |opubUl4 6T/8T0Z 40f 110day [pnuuy

paAlaoal spunj Jjouoq

SANNd ¥ONOd 9




Annual Report for 2018/19 Financial Year
Vote 33: Department of Tourism

PART C: GOVERNANCE
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1. INTRODUCTION

The department continued with the institutionalisation of mechanisms and building the capacity
which is necessary to promote good governance in conducting its business. These efforts
included promoting good ethical conduct necessary to combat and prevent fraud and corruption,
implementing risk management, proper delegation of authority, proper management of
information, communication, technology and other mechanisms required to entrench good
governance.

2. RISK MANAGEMENT

The department is committed to implementing and maintaining an effective, efficient and
transparent system of risk management as required in terms of the Public Finance Management
Act Section 38(1) (a) (i). An annual implementation plan was developed to effect both the
approved Risk Management Strategy and the Policy. During the year under review, the
department has conducted zero based strategic, operational and fraud risk assessments taking
into consideration the external environment, recent audit ouicomes and other pertinent risk
information. The department took action to strengthen its business continuity management
capacity, finalising the policy in this regard. The department will continue to develop its maturity on
enterprise-wide risk management.

Notable progress has been seen in the management of risk as a result of implementation of risk
management strategy, which has translated into improvement in departmental performance in
relation to risk related targets. Continuous identification and assessment of risks is done as part of
risk monitoring to ensure that emerging risks in the performance environment are adequately
managed.

The department’'s Risk Management Committee (RMC) consists of senior management of the
department and is chaired by an external chairperson. The RMC meets quarterly and its duties
include providing oversight and advising the Accounting Officer on the overall system of risk
management. The committee at its quarterly meetings reviews the implementation of the
mitigating strategies of all risks where the residual rating is at unacceptable levels.
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Details of RMC meetings held:

i ] 2 5
Name and Surname Designation T Bl £ =

< ® 3 ® Qo =0

© o <3S wm0o |wo

o AN NN =Z 0N |~
Ms Romeshni Govender Chairperson P P P P
Ms Nomzamo Bhengu Chief Risk Officer | A P P P
Ms Shamilla Chettiar Member P P A A
Ms Aneme Malan Member R P R P
Ms Morongoe Ramphele Member R R P A
Ms Lulama Duma Member P P R P
Mr Ralph Ackermann Member R P P P
Mr Albert Mafanele Member P A P P
Ms Mmaditonki Setwaba Member R P P P
Ms Lerato Matlakala Member P P A P
Mr Blessing Manale Member N/A P P P
Ms Thoko Sibiya Standing invitee P P R P
Ms Reneilwe Motshegwa Secretariat P P P P

Legend:
P Present
A Apology

N/A | Not a member during that period
R Representative/Proxy

To promote combined assurance, the Chief Audit Executive is a standing invitee to the Risk
Management Committee, and the Chief Risk Officer is a standing invitee to the Audit Committee.
The risk report is reviewed by the Audit Committee (AC) at its quarterly meeting for the AC to
monitor the effectiveness of the risk management system.

3. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

The department has an approved Anti-Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy and Strategy, a
Whistle Blowing Policy, as well as an Ethics and Fraud Prevention Implementation Plan. This
policy framework articulates the department's philosophy on fraud prevention and adopts a
comprehensive approach to the management of fraud risk. The Fraud Prevention Plan had
prioritised, amongst others, the fraud risk assessment, implementation of integrity framework and
awareness creation of fraud prevention and anti-corruption. To implement these, the department:

Conducted a fraud risk assessment and the identified risks are continually monitored through

mitigation plans by the risk owners.
Monitored other remunerative work outside of public service, potential conflict of interest, public

servants doing business with the state.
Implemented an awareness campaign on fraud prevention, ethics and integrity in the department
with the assistance of the Office of the Public Service Commission.
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The department encourages officials and members of the public to report suspected cases of
fraud and corruption, using various mechanisms including the Presidential Hotline, National Anti-
Corruption Hotline, suggestion boxes, the departmental Call Centre, as well as any appropriate
body. The department investigates reported cases of fraud and corruption and reports these to the
relevant authorities depending on the outcome of the preliminary investigations.

4. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The objective of Chapter 2 of the Public Service Regulations, 2016 is to identify any conflict of
interest in order to promote just and fair administrative actions by officials in senior positions and
to protect the public service from actions that may be detrimental to its functioning and that may
constitute unlawful administrative actions as a result of ulterior motives. SMS members are
obliged to disclose their financial interests, and thereby placing a responsibility on the employer
(i.e. Executing Authority) to determine whether the employees’ financial interests will not
negatively impact on the execution of their duties. This was conducted through an online process.

The department implemented the Public Service Regulations, 2016, Regulation 16(c), 17(2) and
18(3): Determination on Other Categories of Designated Employees to disclose their financial
interests.

5. CODE OF CONDUCT

The department promotes adherence to the Public Service Code of Conduct. Awareness raising
campaigns are conducted regularly to ensure that employees are familiar with their obligations in
terms of the Code. If there is an alleged breach of the Code of Conduct, it is investigated as
possible misconduct and handled in terms of PSCBC Resolution 1 of 2003, Disciplinary Code and
Procedure.

6. SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT (SHE)

The Department has an approved internal Occupational Health and Safety Policy which is aimed
at safeguarding employees and all visitors / clients through providing and maintaining as far as
reasonably practical, a working environment that is safe and without risks. In order to ensure that
such an environment exists, the Department has provided, and maintained safe offices and
equipment that pose no risk to the health of employees and visitors / clients. The Department has
appointed Health and Safety Representatives, Fire Marshals and First Aiders who have
completed their training on Basic First Aid and Fire Fighting. Inspections are conducted in the
workplace to identify and minimise hazards that will affect and expose employees and visitors /
clients to health risks. Training is conducted annually to ensure that representatives are well
equipped to save lives of the employees, visitors and guests should there be an emergency.

Fire equipment is serviced annually and routine inspections are conducted on all the equipment to
ensure that it is in working order. Continuous testing of systems is conducted to ensure its
effectiveness during evacuation

Evacuation drills are conducted annually to ensure that all employees are aware of the exit routes
and to test the state of readiness in case of emergencies that will warrant the department to
evacuate all occupants
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The Department continues to provide various internal communications tools including awareness
sessions, intranet, internal newsletters and information sessions amongst others, to raise

awareness on SHE issues.
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7. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE ON TOURISM, AND SELECT COMMITTEE ON TRADE AND
INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS

Committee meeting dates and matters raised by the Portfolio Committee on Tourism,
Select Committee on Trade and International Relations and other Parliamentary
Committees and how they were addressed by the department.

The Portfolio Committee on Tourism (in the National Assembly) and the Select Committee on
Trade and International Relations (in the National Council of Provinces, or NCOP) were
respectively established in terms of sections 55 and 69 of Chapter 4 of the Constitution. Their
primary role is to oversee the actions of government, to assure Parliament of such oversight role,
and also to provide assurance that government is able to provide services to all citizens.

PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE ON TOURISM (NATIONAL ASSEMBLY)

7.1.1. Briefing by the Department on the National Tourism Sector Strategy (NTSS) on 30
May 2018.

The committee was informed that the department looked at emerging trends at a global level as
well as in key sectors. The reviewed strategy places greater emphasis on partnerships and
institutional capacity. The reviewed strategy was widely supported by key stakeholders.

Issues that the committee raised:
s Support to local governments was a concern and the committee recommended that co-
ordinated support and level of awareness to all local municipalities should be intensified;
e Concern on the methodology of collating tourism statistics;
e Transformation in the tourism industry is still a major concern for the committee; and
e Domestic Tourism is a priority and should be the backbone of the tourism industry.

Requests from the committee:

o Work stream implementation plans should be submitted to the committee as the Reviewed
NTSS (2016-2026) is a high-level document. The committee wants to know and understand
the implementation plans.

e The committee also indicated that the Annual NTSS Implementation Reports need to be
submitted.

Response by the department:

¢ During the restructuring process a new unit was established, which is dedicated to the local
sphere of government.

¢ The committee requested a detailed briefing on the latest status of transformation in the
tourism sector. It was done on 29 August 2018 by the Tourism Business Charter Council.

o The Department undertook to submit the Annual Implementation Reports of the NTSS to
the committee.

e The Department undertook to submit the work stream implementation plans to the
committee.

s The Department took note of what was said about the look and feel of the NTSS document.
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7.1.2 Briefing by the Department on the 2017/18 Fourth Quarterly Performance Report on 15
August 2018.

The commitiee welcomed the department’s fourth quarter performance report for the financial year
of 2017/2018.

The following issues were deliberated on:
e Cost to create full time equivalent jobs for infrastructure is higher due to the cost of capacity
building programmes;
¢ Transformation;
Alignment of training to CATHSETA and the Tourism Human Resource Development
Strategy (THRDS);
Upgrading and skilling of the department’s staff;
Tabling of the Tourism Bill;
Online platforms in the sharing economy;
Working with municipalities through COGTA;
The Department started to link SMMEs to commercial banks; and
The status of each Blue flag beach must to be maintained and more beaches should be
assisted to obtain blue flag status.

Furthermore, the department was mandated to give special attention to the transformation of the
sector; and to consider the tourism infrastructure across the country.

7.1.3 Briefing by the Department on Bilateral Agreements and MoU’s between South Africa
and other countries on 22 August 2018.

The committee welcomed the presentation and the work done on bilateral arrangements and
MoU’s and mandated the department to:

¢ Find better ways of handling the MoU’s and avoiding the lapse without implementation;
e Engage provinces and municipalities in co-ordinating the signing and implementation of
twinning arrangements between provinces and cities.

The deliberations covered the following issues:
e BRICS and IBSA relations;
SADC Tourism Master Plan;
Affiliations to International Fora and the future of RETOSA,;
Skills and capacity building; and
Twinning agreements.

7.1.4 Briefing by the B-BBEE Tourism Charter Council on the State of Transformation
on 29 August 2018.

The council explained the results of transformation in the tourism sector emanating from the
baseline study. Transformation in the tourism sector was not progressing well. Members felt that
council members, as stakeholders themselves, need to drive transformation in the sector and be
mentors.
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The following issues were deliberated on:

Mentoring of new entrants; consultations and targets; youth participation in tourism; absorption of
learners; ownership and management control by provinces; perceptions about the benefits of the
B-BBEE; access to finance; lack of awareness; alignment with the Department of Small Business
Development and Economic Development; networks and monopolies and lastly Human Capital
and the standard of qualifications.

The committee welcomed the findings of the study and recommended the following:

¢ The committee must be briefed as soon as the action plan is completed;

o The Council needs to create an awareness campaign about the Tourism B-BBEE Sector
Codes and the Scorecard;

e The Tourism B-BBEE Charter Council must be

e The Council needs to engage the Tourism Business Council of South Africa and encourage
it to fully participate in the transformation of the tourism sector;
All stakeholders must work together for the benefit of all South Africans; and
Universities must be asked to offer the Women Executive Training programmes similar to
the one offered by UNISA School of Business Leadership

7.1.5 Briefing by the Department on the 2018/19 First Quarterly Performance Reporton 5
September 2018.

The committee welcomed the presentation on the first quarter performance report for the financial
year of 2018/19.

The following issues were discussed:
e Air Access;
Delays in procurement processes;
Delays with the Tourism Transformation Fund;
Executive Women Development;
Incubation Programme;
Stringent qualifying criteria — NEF and IDC;
Tourism impact; and
Underutilised tourism assets.

® & & ¢ o o o

The committee recommended that:

The Department should find better and practical ways to avoid unnecessary delays in
procurement and approval processes to facilitate the effective implementation of projects. The
Department took note of the recommendation pertaining to delays and is working on ways to
improve the procurement.

7.1.6 Briefing by the Department on the Annual Performance Report for the 2017/18
Financial Year on 10 October 2018.

The committee welcomed the overall Annual Performance Report for the financial
year of 2017/18 and the following matters were discussed with the department:
e Training of youth to do data capturing for municipalities;
e feedback on the GTAC process; programmes that are biased towards the previously
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disadvantaged and the poor; and
e the NEF funding mechanism and improving project participation.

Concerns were raised with regard to the regression in audit outcomes. The department took note
and will deal with the issues that were raised.

Requests by the committee:

The Department was asked to provide a list of the Municipalities that attended the Induction
Tourism Programme for local Government; and

The committee requested the department to give a detailed briefing on the Oceans Economy and
mapping of tourism products along the South African Coast. The briefing was done on 31 October
2018.

7.1.7 Briefing by the Department on the Full Oceans Economy Plan on 31 October 2018.

The committee welcomed the presentation and requested that the department the
Department should provide an update on the implementation of the programme around February /
March 2019.

The following matters were discussed:
e Amounts that need to be invested towards the 2016 targets, as only estimations were
provided;
¢ Blue Flag Beaches - Despite the high cost of creating job opportunities, more opportunities
for employment should be created;
Concurrent functions and constitutional matters;
The involvement of Communities;
The role of Traditional Leaders;
The impact of land reform;
Roads and other infrastructure challenges;
A skills audit for CMT;
The Tourism PPP Toolkit and funding model; and
A Tourism planning manual to assist with destination planning.

Action by the department:

The Department undertook to do more work on the amounts invested towards the 2026 targets
No date has been identified as yet by the committee for the department to provide an update on
the progress towards the implementation of the Oceans Economy Programme.

7.1.8 Briefing by the department on the Second and Third Quarterly Performance
Reports for the 2018/19 Financial Year on 27 February 2019.

The committee commended the department the Department’'s good work as well as the efforts
made towards addressing the shortfalls, in particular the project management issues that have
been raised by the committee during the 5th Parliament’s term. The department was urged to
work on the shortfalls that were identified.

The commiittee deliberated on the briefing and raised the following concerns:

» The B-BBEE Charter Council Secretariat should be completely independent;
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Data collection;

The high number of drop-outs and loss of interest in capacity building programmes;

The information given by the department on incubators was seen as

contradictory;

The committee reiterated the importance of forward planning to eliminate delays

experienced in project implementation;

e The slow procurement processes that cause the department not to achieve its quarterly
targets,

¢ The committee urged the department to observe SMART principles when it set targets to
ensure that all the stakeholders involved in projects are in agreement with the goals and
will be accountable for their role for successful projects;

¢ The committee recommended that the Women in Tourism (WiT) conference is hosted in

either August, to coincide with Women’s Month, or alternatively, in September, to link it to

the Tourism Month activities.

Action by the department:

e The Department advised the committee that the term of the B-BBEE Tourism Charter
Council has expired;

¢ The Department took note of the committee’s concerns in terms of shortfalls and undertook
to give it the necessary attention;

¢ The Department elaborated on the status of incubators. Through virtual incubators more
businesses will be reached and served,;

¢ In terms of procurement, the department is addressing challenges by setting up a panel
that will pre-qualify companies that can be considered when tenders are issued.

The Department also advised the committee that the Tourism Bill was in the Cabinet process and
will be gazetted for public comments in April; and « The Department acknowledged that it would
be better to have the WIT conference in August or September than in December or January.

7.2 SELECT COMMITTEE ON TRADE AND INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS
(NATIONAL COUNCIL OF PROVINCES)

7.2.1 Oversight visit (31 July to 3 August 2018) to Limpopo (Mopani District Municipality) by
the Joint Select Committee on Trade and International Relations and Business and
Economic Development. 30 July — 3 August 2018 (2 August 2018 - Ba-Phalaborwa Local
Municipality)

The purpose of the oversight visit was to assess progress in implementing government
development projects and identify challenges. Projects of the departments of Energy, the DTI
Agriculture, Economic Development and Small Business and Tourism were visited.

The Department, in co-operation with SANPARKS, arranged a site visit to the Phalaborwa Gate of
Kruger National Park, the place where the Phalaborwa Wildlife Activity Hub will be developed by
SANPARKS. The Department of Tourism and SANPARKS gave presentations on the proposed
Wildlife Hub.

Observations:
e The Joint Select Committee noted the efforts of government to create tourism assets that
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will benefit communities.

» |t noted that, for the project to succeed, partnerships with the public, private and civil
society and the local community are needed to enhance this
economic growth.

Limpopo has a high unemployment rate, particularly among women and youth. The district
is part of the Greater Limpopo Transfrontier Park that presents great economic
opportunities for eco-tourism, game farming and other spinoffs for SMME'’s.

¢ With quality tourism products to offer tourists, Ba-Phalaborwa prides itself as the best
tourism hub in the district. However, it needs public—private support initiatives to support
informal trading entities as well as all three spheres of government.

e The Ba-Phalaborwa Municipality has identified the possible winding down of some mining
activities that might lead to more unemployment. Thus the tourism industry has been
identified as one of the sectors that will need to stimulate economic growth. The town’s
close proximity to the Kruger National Park can help enhance economic growth. However,
the municipality needs to invest more in tourism infrastructure and facilities.

e Poaching was identified as a big threat to the tourism potential. Collaborative efforts with
the national and provincial governments to implement a strategic plan to fight rhino and
other animal poaching are needed. The community should be educated on poaching and
made aware of the adverse impact it has on tourism and economic development.

Recommendations:

The local municipality indicated that for the tourism industry and associated spinoffs to grow, they
need support from the national and provincial governments as well as the private sector. This
would entail providing skills development programs for the youth and unemployed community
members;

Improve access to Ba-Phalaborwa. Partners should use the two airports (Phalaborwa and
Hoedspruit) and help establish these commercial facilities as catalysts for economic development;
Improve the Information Communication Technology infrastructure; and

Partnerships can also be extended to the neighboring countries to maximize economic
opportunities, especially in the tourism sector.

7.2.2 Briefing by the Department and SA Tourism on the Progress Report and
interventions to stimulate Domestic Tourism on 5 September 2018

The Department and SA Tourism briefed the Select Committee on Trade and International
Relations on interventions and progress made towards stimulating Domestic Tourism.

Issues raised during the deliberations were:

e The cost of travelling, especially air travel, for the domestic tourist, and the recession;

¢ |Infrastructure and transport availability. Travel by road is expensive due to the high cost of
fuel and bad state of roads;

o The revival of underutilised Budget Resorts and Municipal Resorts to cater for the new
tastes of the new traveller. Some resorts are no longer in good condition; Safety and
security risks;

A framework to support tour operators and permit applications;

Destination marketing companies (DMC) and transport licences;

The public and school kids in particular should be encouraged to visit other provinces and
be taken to National Parks in other provinces;
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Transformation - Township tourism and accommodation ventures are still lacking; and,
It was said that SA Tourism has a pivotal role to play in unlocking employment
opportunities.

Recommendations:

SA Tourism needs to promote experiences at specific destinations and products;

A timeline for the implementation of the Framework for Tour Operators is required,

All communities need to know which tourist products and attractions are in their area
(Municipality and Province) in order to inform tourists albeit international or domestic;

The Department should in future give a comprehensive explanation about its co-operation
with municipalities;

SA Tourism should promote traditional functions and events as possible tourist attractions;
Improve integrated government relations by following a multifaceted approach, and get all
stakeholders involved e.g. municipalities, provincial governments, and traditional leaders;
Improve the exchange of information between provinces;

The Department needs to discuss the case of Tourism with SALGA;

Stokvels to be used as possible vehicles for domestic tourism;

Visits to museums must be part of school assignments;

Use Taxis to market tourist products and the Sho'left campaign; and

The Department does not need to present to the committee, as a letter can be sent to
request assistance, or to inform the committee. For example, if the department sends a
letter regarding the applications of tour operators, the SC might be able to assist to speed
up the processes, as it is also now busy with the National Land Transport Bill.

Responses by the department:

The Department and the Department of Basic Education are working together to organise
children visits to national parks;

The Department and SA Tourism are working with designated groups, e.g. elderly citizens,
children and people with disabilities, to expose them to a culture of travel;

The Department is busy working on commercialisation guidelines, with the DBSA; and a
SANPARKS concession policy which will also enhance transformation;

Youth will be trained to do maintenance of parks and to protect local resources;

The Department is planning to embark on a national roadshow in March 2019 with the Tour
Operator Framework;

At the quarterly meetings with provinces, SA Tourism discussed issues like the barriers to
tourism. The provinces requested assistance with domestic tourism strategies;

SA Tourism is developing applications for mobile platforms that will make available
information on events and conferences — traditional events, museums etc. for delegates
and tourist; and

The Department confirmed that provinces and local municipalities are

involved in tourism month.

7.2.3 Briefing by the Department on their Annual Performance Report for the

2017/18 Financial Year on 31 October 2018.

The Department was congratulated on its unqualified audit but cautioned to make sure that no
misstatements / findings by the AGSA occur again.
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Recommendations:

» The committee perceived destination development as vital for the creation of jobs and
urged the department to intensify its efforts to develop township tourism;
Safety is a major concern;
Action plans for all beaches not yet covered in planning;

e The Department was requested to provide the Committee with additional information on the
Blue Flag Beaches; and

¢ The department must alert the committee when it does training in municipalities or
conducts any awareness programmes.

Action by the Department:

o The Department explained its action plans in terms of tourist safety monitors and their co-
operation with provinces, the SAPS, TBCSA, SATSA, SA Tourism and Business Against
Crime.

¢ Transfrontier tourism activity. The department briefed the committee on the closure of
RETOSA, the Marketing arm of SADC. Additionally, it explained that SADC would identify a
new vehicle for regional marketing.

7.2.4 Oversight visit to KZN - eThekweni, 16-19 October 2018, by the Joint Select
Committee on Trade and International Relations and Business and Economic
Development.

The purpose of visit was to do oversight of how government policies and objectives are translated
into practice. The Department made arrangements in co-operation with the eThekweni
Municipality (Durban Tourism) and the Provincial Tourism Planning Unit for the Joint Select
Committee to visit tourist products in the area. The members were picked up on 18 October 2018
at Dube Trade Port by a tour operator and a tour guide. From there they went on the Inanda
Heritage Route to visit tourism projects.

Observations and recommendations by the Joint Select Committee:

e The Joint Select committee emphasised again the need for government to co-ordinate
supply chain management interventions and integrate them with demand-side
management. This approach would influence the growth of the South African economy.

o The Durban Chamber of Commerce has working relations with the eThekwini Community
Tourism Organisation in support of the promotion of Durban as a destination for business,
investment and tourism.

e The Joint Select Committee has stressed the importance of partnerships between the
government and the private sector. Development initiatives should stimulate the growth of
SMMEs, particularly for previously disadvantage persons.

o The three spheres of Government should synchronise their economic development plans to
reduce inefficiency in funding and implementation of projects. In this way more resources
will be available for job creation and economic growth.

e The committee observed that the failure of SMMEs could be attributed to a general lack of
support from government on all levels. Thus, it was recommended that the Committee
monitor government to ensure they contribute to SMME support in the full value chain
through supplier support and timeous payment within the 30 days rule. SEDA should also
coach and mentor company directors.

¢ |t was recommended that the Department of Small Business Development should develop
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a five-year plan with a financial package to keep SMMEs afloat and avert impending
insolvency and accompanied with a tax holiday of 3-5 years until they are more viable and
sustainable.

e The metro has established a multi-stakeholder forum which includes (SAPS) EPWP, safety
volunteers, the Metro Police, the Durban Chamber of commerce and private security
companies.

7.2.5 Taking Parliament to the People 19-22 November 2018 — GAUTENG

The Minister and Deputy Minister as well as the Director- General had prior commitments and
could not be part of the panel discussion on “The impact of migration — deepening co-operative
governance for accelerated service delivery and development”.

7.3. OTHER COMMITTEES

7.3.1. Briefing by the Department and SAT to the Portfolio Committee on Economic
Development on “Tourism and Economic Development” on 13 June 2018

The Portfolio Committee on Economic Development identified the Tourism sector as one of the
areas for oversight for 2018 as the sector plays a crucial role in the economic development of the
country. The committee requested a briefing on the department's role in the economic
development of the tourism sector. The Department described the work done by its different
branches, gave an overview of the sector’s performance and explained the NTSS.

The following issues were raised by members:

¢ Capacity building programmes - the numbers are still very low and the department should
monitor the employment of the trainees
The 4th Industrial Revolution;
Attracting more international conferences;
Barriers to arrivals like ebola, visas and crime;
The communication around tourism opportunities is the department and SA Tourism do not
share their visions or information on opportunities. The lack of information on the ground is
making it difficult for Members of Parliament to promote tourism opportunities in their
constituencies;
¢ |t was said that, although the Eastern Cape Province has enormous potential, it is lagging
behind in tourism development and numbers of visitors;
Grading of B&Bs versus Air B&Bs;
Intergovernmental relations;
Road infrastructure; and
Transformation.

Partnerships with other departments should be enhanced as Tourism is everybody's business.
Government departments should create a conducive environment for economic growth in the
tourism sector. The committee felt that another briefing session should be arranged.
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7.3.2 Briefing by the Minister and Department to the Select Committee on Petitions and
Executive Undertakings: Progress Report on the Undertakings made by the Minister of
Tourism to the NCOP Plenary sessions held on 17 May 2016 and 7 November 2018

The Minister was requested to give a progress report on 7 November 2018, but neither him nor
the Deputy- Minister, or the Director- General, could attend. The department did prepare a
presentation and the Acting Director-General attended the meeting. However, the committee felt
they wanted the Minister to give the progress report himself. The delegation had to leave.

7.3.3 Briefing by the Minister and Department to the Select Committee on Petitions and
Executive Undertakings: Progress Report on the Undertakings made by the Minister of
Tourism to the NCOP Plenary meetings held on 17 May 2016 and 6 February 2019

Subsequent to the above the Minister was again requested to give a progress report on his
undertakings made in the NCOP Plenary on 17 May 2016. The Minister attended the meeting with
the Director-General and his team. The Department was commended for its work promoting
tourism growth.

The Minister and the department team gave feedback on the progress of the

following undertakings:

(i) Enhancing four iconic national heritage sites that depict significant milestones in the life of our
former president Nelson Mandela;

(ii) The Social Responsibility Implementation Programme (SRI) will provide work opportunities
across the country;

(i) The Department will promote access to selected government-owned attractions through
negotiated discounted rates. This project will target learners, youth, pensioners, and people living
with disabilities and others who cannot afford to go to these places.

(iv) The new Tourism Charter Council will be tasked with developing transformative strategies as
well as monitoring and reporting on the state of transformation.

Concerns were raised on the following:
The lack of sighage at many destinations and sights; and,
The lack of tourism development in the Eastern Cape.

Response by the department:

The Department explained that it is only involved with interpretative signage at tourism attractions
and that SANRAL and the respective municipalities are responsible for road signage.

The Department gave a detailed explanation about its work in the Eastern Cape in terms of
destination development. To this end, it collaborated with the provincial and local governments
and mapped a master plan for the Wild Coast region. This masterplan will consist of
comprehensive tourist development and include the necessary support for infrastructure such as
water, sanitation, telecommunication, roads, etc.

The Department submitted supporting documents to the committee on 18 February 2019.
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8. SCOPA RESOLUTIONS

The Department has no Standing Committee on Public Accounts (SCOPA) resolutions on which
to report.

9. PRIOR MODIFICATIONS TO AUDIT REPORTS

No matters were reported by the AGSA in the previous financial year and therefore no
modifications were done to prior audit reports.

10.INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

The Department of Tourism has a new establishment which was implemented on 1 April 2017 and
it makes provision for a Deputy Director: Internal Control. The post is currently still vacant. The
Directorate: Financial Management and the Directorate: Supply Chain Management fulfil the
function of an internal control unit, as submission, forms, route forms and delegations are
compiled in such a manner so as to ensure compliance.

11.INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

The Internal Audit Unit provides assurance and consulting services. It conducts its affairs in terms
of an approved internal audit charter. The unit follows a risk based audit approach, in terms of
which the Department’s risk strategy and the Internal Audit Unit's assessment of risks are the
drivers of internal audit activities and the approved internal audit plan. The internal audit plan was
formally adopted and approved by the Audit Committee.

Below are audits performed by the Internal Audit Unit during the 2018/19 financial year:

SCM - Quotations;

assets Management;

ICT governance;

contract management;

occupational health and safety;

pre-determined objectives;

annual report review;

follow-up on AGSA Report;

performance Audit: DD — National Monument Heritage Programme;
EPWP Project Site Visits;

Tourism Incentives Programme — Transfer Payments; and
Logical access control review.

Progress on the implementation of the plan was monitored and reported on at each Audit
Committee meeting.
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The primary purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Department in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities, and to ensure that the Department has and maintains effective, efficient and

transparent systems of financial, risk management, governance and internal control by:

The table below discloses relevant information on the audit committee members:

Internal or

external

If internal,
position in
the

department

| Date appointed

Date Resigned

supporting management in respect of financial reporting and a system of internal control;
enhancing business ethics and trust in the Department;

ensuring and enhancing the independence of internal audit activity;
ensuring that risks facing the Department are identified, and that appropriate procedures
are implemented to manage and minimise risks;
ensuring the proper functioning of the audit process;

monitoring compliance with laws, regulations and codes of conduct.

No. of
Meetings
attended

Prof Hde | DCom (Acc); CA (SA) External 1 August 2015 | 31 July 2
Jager RGA 2018
MrR B. Com (Hons); H. Dip External 1 August 2015 | 31 July 2
Rajcoomar | Tax; MBA; Post 2018

Graduate Diploma in

Accounting Science
Mr PR LLB; Post Grad External 1 August 2015 4
Mnisi Certificate in and re-

Compliance appointed 20

Management. October 2018
Ms HN B. Compt Hons; M Com | External 1 August 2015 5
Masedi (Computer Auditing); and re-

Higher Diploma in appointed 20

Computer Auditing and October 2018

Post graduate Diploma

in Management
Ms C Le CA (SA) External 20 October 3
Grange 2018
Ms MP CIA; Certifed Ethics External 20 October 3
Ramutsheli | Officer; Masters in 2018

internal Auditing.
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12.AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2019.
Audit Committee Responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from Section 38
(1) (a) (ii) of the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit
Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit
Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all
its responsibilities as contained therein, except that we have not reviewed changes in accounting
policies and practices.

The Effectiveness of Internal Control

The department's system of internal control is designed to provide reasonable assurance, inter alia, that assets are
safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital are efficiently managed. Based on the approved
annual internal audit plan setting out the scope, control objectives and risks, for the period
covered, various reports were submitted by the internal auditors.

The results of the internal and external audits indicated that controls have been operating as
intended in certain areas, while in others attention should be given to strengthen, improve and
monitor the controls. Where control weaknesses and other matters were reported, the Audit
Committee has considered management’'s responses to address the matters and to facilitate
corrective actions, improvements and monitoring the controls and procedures. Implementation of
such corrective actions is monitored through the implementation of an issue tracking report and
the follow-up review reports submitted to the committee on a regular basis.

Our review of the findings of the Internal Audit work, which was based on the risk assessments
conducted in the Department revealed certain weaknesses, which were then raised with the
Department.

The following internal audit work was completed during the year under review:
SCM - Quotations;

assets Management;

ICT Governance;

contract management;

occupational health and safety;

pre-determined objectives;

annual report review;

follow-up on AGSA Report;

performance Audit: DD — National Monument Heritage Programme;
EPWP Project Site Visits;

Tourism Incentives Programme — Transfer Payments; and

Logical access control review.
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Area of concern:

Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP). The shortcomings in the Expanded Public Works
Programme was the reason for the Qualified Audit Report as clearly indicated in the Report of the
Auditor General.

In-Year Management and Monthly/Quarterly Report

The Department has reported monthly and quarterly to National Treasury as is required by the
PFMA.

Internal Audit
The Internal Audit Unit conducts its affairs in terms of an approved Internal Audit Charter. The
charter is reviewed on an annual basis. The Internal Audit Unit follows a risk-based audit

approach, whereby the department's Risk Strategy and the Internal Audit Unit's assessment of the
risks drivers are taken into account.

The Internal Audit Plan was formally adopted and approved by the Audit Committee. Progress on
the execution of the plan was monitored and reported on at each Audit Committee meeting.

The Audit Committee is therefore satisfied that the internal audit function (in house) is operating
effectively and that it has addressed the risks pertinent to the department in its Audit Plan.

Risk strategy

The Department has a risk management strategy in place and actively monitors and takes
appropriate action against the risks identified as per the risk register.

Evaluation of Financial Statements
We have reviewed the Annual Financial Statements prepared by the Department.
Auditor General’s Report

We have reviewed the department’'s implementation plan for audit issues raised in the previous
year and we are satisfied that the matters have been adequately resolved.

The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the qualified audit opinion of the Auditor-General
South-Africa (AGSA) on the Annual Financial Statements and is of the opinion that the Audited
Annual Financial Statements be accepted and read together with the report of the AGSA.

There are no unresolved issues between the AGSA and the Department.

Chairperson of the Audit Committee
30 September 2019
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1. INTRODUCTION

The information contained in this part of the annual report has been prescribed by the Minister for
the Public Service and Administration for all departments in the public service.

2. OVERVIEW OF HUMAN RESOURCES

The status of human resources in the Department

Human resources is one of the most strategic resources that is managed with great care and
diligence within the Department.

An efficiently run Human Resources Component provides the Department with the requisite
organisational structure and the concomitant human resources required to enable the department
to meet its objectives in pursuit of its strategic goals by managing the Department’s most valuable
resources namely, its employees. The Human Resources Component is strategically positioned
to:

retain, engage and attract outstanding employees;

promote a workforce that is diverse and inclusive;

provide a safe and healthy, learning and working environment; and
develop employees to their fullest potential.

Human resource priorities for the year under review, and the impact of these priorities

e To recruit a suitably qualified, capable and skilled workforce
To promote employment equity

* To have skilled, motivated, capacitated and empowered employees who are equipped to
deliver the mandate of the department

¢ To develop high-quality leaders and managers who exemplify the core values of the public

service and the Department, and committed to service delivery

To promote effective performance management systems

To effectively manage employee health and wellness in the workplace,

To coordinate special transformation programmes

To promote sound labour relations between employer and employees

Workforce planning and key strategies to attract and recruit a skilled and capable
workforce

Workforce planning is about having the right people with the right skills in the right jobs at the right
time and the reasonable costs. It identifies the gap between current workforce capabilities and the
workforce capabilities required to achieve the Department’s strategic goals in an ever changing
operational environment. This is what the department has been striving to achieve during the year
under review.
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Workforce planning is guided by the Department’s strategy. The legal framework in this regard
consists of the Employment Equity Act, Public Service Act and Public Service Regulations. During
the year under review, the implementation of the Human Resources Plan 2017-2020 continued in
order to guide the process of attracting, recruiting and developing a skilled and capable workforce.
This has been achieved and is exemplified by the quality and number of employees that have
been attracted into the organisation

Employee performance management

The Department annually commits to 100% implementation of the performance management
development system (PMDS), as guided by the departmental PMDS Policy and relevant chapter
of the Senior Management Service (SMS) Handbook. The Department has also implemented the
revised PMDS directive as from 1 April 2018. Workshops are conducted to provide knowledge
and understanding on the development of performance agreement and work plans as well as on
how to assess performance.

Employees’ performance assessments are conducted at the end of the financial year, and
performance outcomes implemented. Employees who performed outstandingly were afforded
performance rewards and pay progression according to policy guidelines. Steps are taken to
address poor performance such as retraining and other interventions

Employee wellness programmes

The traditional human resource management approach entailed either hiring people with the
required skills or training employees to develop the skill sets required for the organisation. The
challenge for human resources in the new order is to ensure an employee-employer fit.
Management assisted by HR is expected to ensure an employee-organisation fit through the
implementation of effective recruitment strategies. During the period under review there were 30
out of 53 exited officials which constitute 56.6% level of participation on the exit interviews by the
exiting officials, of which 19 exited officials were as a result of internship expiry resignations, 1
retirement, 1 contract expiry, 3 transfer out, 1 resignation, and 4 promotions out.

Achievements and challenges faced by the Department, as well as future human resource
plans/goals

The Department exceeded government's targets for persons with disabilities and currently stands
at 4.5% representation for this group. At SMS level, the Department has reached 50.7% female
occupation of posts.

Looking at future human resource plans/goals, the Department’s existing human resource
policies, procedures and systems (codes of practice) and the HR Plan 2017-2020 provide an
effective framework for recruiting, developing and retaining staff in a fair and supportive
environment. To this end, the goals listed in HR Plan 2017-2020 are as follows:

Strategic partnerships with core business

Employee championship

Organisational development and design

Recruitment and employee life-cycle management, with two sub-categories:
Human resource utilisation
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¢ Human resource development
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PART E: FINANCIAL INFORMATION



Annual Report for 2018/19 Financial Year
Vote 33: Department of Tourism

4. Report of the auditor-general to Parliament on vote no. 33: Department of Tourism

| Report on the audit of the financial statements

Qualified Opinion

1.

| have audited the financial statements of the Department of Tourism set out on pages 163 to
228 which comprise the appropriation statement, the statement of financial position as at 31
March 2019, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and
cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified
opinion section of this auditor's report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Department of Tourism as at 31 March 2019, and its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Modified
Cash Standard (MCS) as prescribed by the National Treasury as required by section 40(1)(b)
of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and the Division of Revenue Act of South
Africa, 2018 (Act No. 14 of 2018) (Dora).

Basis for qualified opinion

Immovable tangible capital assets

3.

| was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that immovable tangible capital
assets was properly accounted for in accordance with the requirements of the MCS chapter
11, capital assets. This was due to the inadequate status of the accounting records including
the lack of a credible asset register. Some capital assets recorded in the register as completed
assets could not be fully verified as some deliverables could not be physically verified. In
addition, | was unable to confirm the status of completed projects disclosed in the capital work
in progress disclosed in sub-note 29.4 to the financial statements. | was unable to confirm
these assets by alterative means. Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any
further adjustments were necessary to immovable tangible capital assets stated at R256
million (2018: R263 million) and capital work in progress stated at R236 million (2018: R295
million) as included in note 29 and sub-note 29.4 respectively to the financial statements.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

4,

The department did not include the full extent of fruitless and wasteful expenditure in the notes
to the financial statements, as required by section 40(3)(I) of the PFMA. This was due to
excessive payments made on immovable tangible capital assets, | was unable to confirm the
full extent of fruitless and wasteful expenditure included in the notes to the financial statements
as the department did not quantify the full extent of fruitless and wasteful expenditure. | was
unable to confirm this by alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to determine whether
any further adjustments were necessary to the fruitless and wasteful expenditure stated at
R120 million (2018: R 0) in the financial statements.
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Context for the opinion

5. | conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of this auditor’s report.

6. | am independent of the department in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional
accountants (IESBA code), parts 1 and 3 of the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) and the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in South
Africa. | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the IESBA codes.

7. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my qualified opinion.

Emphasis of matter

8. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Restatement of corresponding figures

9. As disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March
2018 have been restated as a result of errors in the financial statements of the department at,
and for the year ended, 31 March 2019.

Other matter

10.1 draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Unaudited supplementary information

11.The supplementary information set out in pages 230 to 244 does not form part of the financial
statements and is presented as additional information. | have not audited these schedules and,
accordingly, | do not express an opinion on them.

Responsibilities of accounting officer for the financial statements

12.The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the Modified Cash Standard as prescribed by the National
Treasury as required by section 40(1)(b) of the PFMA and the Dora, and for such internal
control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

13.In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the
Department of Tourism’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,

matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
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appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate the department or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

14.My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

15.A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included
in the annexure to this auditor’'s report.

‘ Report on the audit of the annual performance report

introduction and scope

16.1n accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and
the general notice issued in terms thereof, | have a responsibility to report material findings on
the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected
programmes presented in the annual performance report. | performed procedures to identify
findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

17.My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the
approved performance planning documents of the department. | have not evaluated the
completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators/ measures included in the
planning documents. My procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or assertions
relating to planned performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that
may be included as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do
not extend to these matters.

18.1 evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in
accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting
framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected programme presented in
the annual performance report of the department for the year ended 31 March 2019:

Programmes Pages in the annual
performance report

Programme 2 - Tourism research, policy and international

. 51-61
relations
Programme 3 - Destination development 62-71
Programme 4 - Tourism sector support services 72-89

19.1 performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was
properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved performance
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planning documents. | performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators and
related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported
performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

20.1 did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information for these programmes:
¢ Programme 2 - Tourism research, policy and international relations
¢ Programme 3 - Destination development
¢ Programme 4 - Tourism sector support services

Other matters

21.1 draw attention to the matters below.

Achievement of planned targets

22.Refer to the annual performance report on pages 52 to 94 for information on the achievement
of planned targets for the year and explanations provided for the under/ over achievement of a
number of targets.

Adjustment of material misstatements

23.1 identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing.
These material misstatements were on the reported performance information of programme 4:
Tourism sector support services. As management subsequently corrected the misstatements,

we did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information.

[ Report on the audit of compliance with legislation

Introduction and scope

24.In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, | have a
responsibility to report material findings on the compliance of the department with specific
matters in key legislation. | performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather
evidence to express assurance.

25. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislations are as follows:
Submission of the annual financial statements

26.The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the
prescribed financial reporting framework and supported by full and proper records as required
by section 40(1) (a) and (b) of the PFMA.

27.Some material misstatements of disclosure items identified by the auditors in the submitted
financial statements were corrected and/or the supporting records were provided
subsequently, but the uncorrected material misstatements and/or supporting records that could
not be provided resulted in the financial statements receiving a qualified opinion.

- 158 -



Annual Report for 2018/19 Financial Year
Vote 33: Department of Tourism

Procurement and contract management

28.The preference point system was not applied in some of the procurement of goods and
services above R30 000 as required by section 2(a) of the PPPFA and treasury regulations
16A6.3(b). This non-compliance was identified in the procurement processes by implementing
agents on behalf of the department.

29.Some of the bid documentation for procurement of commodities designated for local content
and production, did not stipulated the minimum threshold for local production and content as
required by the 2017 preferential procurement regulation 8(2).

Expenditure management

30. Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure amounting to
R26.5 million as disclosed in note 22, as required by section 38(1)(c)ii) of the PFMA and
treasury regulation 9.1.1 . The maijority of the irregular expenditure disclosed in the financial
statements was caused by the preference point system not being applied by implementing
agents on behalf of the department.

31.Effective steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as required by
section 38(1)(c)ii) of the PFMA and treasury regulation 9.1.1. As reported in the basis for
qualified opinion the full extent of the fruitless and wasteful expenditure could not be
quantified. The majority of the fruitless and wasteful expenditure disclosed in the financial
statements was caused by expenditure incurred on infrastructure projects.

Other information

32.The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report. The other information does not
include the financial statements, the auditor's report and those selected programmes
presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported in this
auditor's report.

33.My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information
and compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and | do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

34.1n connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
and the selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, or my knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

35.If based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement in this
other information; | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.
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| Internal control deficiencies

36.1 considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported
performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective
was not to express any form of assurance on it. The matters reported below are limited to the
significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for the qualified opinion, the
findings on the performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation included in
this report.

37.Previously reported deficiencies relating to oversight regarding the financial reporting process,
including detailed reviews of the financial reports by delegated officials, compliance and
related internal controls were not adequately addressed. Although corrective action plans to
address the audit findings were implemented by management, the plans were ineffective in
timeously addressing the reported control deficiencies as an appropriate level of governance
structures did not adequately monitor the status of addressing the findings to ensure that the
lack of progress was escalated for further intervention.

38.An evaluation was performed by both the department and the auditors on some of the stalled
projects on the department’s Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP). The evaluation
revealed serious concerns regarding project management by the department on these projects
and these included the following:

¢ the department did not have adequate capacity and appropriate competencies to ensure
that appropriate oversight is excercised; the department did not obtain certified engineer
and quantity surveyor certificates for infrastructure projects;

e there was inadequate project management to ensure that appropriate oversight is
exercised over infrastructure projects and that adequate records are kept for immovable
tangible capital assets;

o there was lack of detailed feasibility studies before approving projects;

o there was lack regular site visits being conducted during the construction of projects as part
of project management, and

e implementing agents did not procurement prescripts when procuring goods and services on
behalf of the department.

| Other reports

39.1 draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties that had, or could
have, an impact on the matters reported in the department’s financial statements, reported
performance information, compliance with applicable legislation and other related matters.
These reports did not form part of my opinion on the financial statements or my findings on the
reported performance information or compliance with legislation.

40.During the financial year, criminal investigations into allegations relating to some of the EPWP
were being undertaken by the law enforcement agencies.

41.As previously reported, the Government Technical Advisory Centre (GTAC) has been
requested to review the Social Responsibility Initiative projects, which include the EPWP
projects to ensure finalisation of these projects in an effective and efficient manner. The review
covered a sample of EPWP projects not yet finalised since inception of the department till 31
March 2018. At the date of the report, the review has been completed.
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Auditor-General

Pretoria
30 September 2019

AUDITOR-GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA
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Annexure — Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, | exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the procedures performed
on reported performance information for selected programmes and on the department's compliance
with respect to the selected subject matters.

1.

Financial statements

2.

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor's
report, | also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the department’s internal control

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the accounting officer.

conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting officer's use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. | also conclude, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Department of Tourism ability to continue as a going concern. If |
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are
based on the information available to me at the date of this auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause a department to cease continuing as a going concern

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation

Communication with those charged with governance

3.

| communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that | identify during my audit.

| also confirm to the accounting officer that | have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to have a bearing on my independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

- 162 -



Annual Report for 2018/19 Financial Year
Vote 33: Department of Tourism

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
DEPARTMENT OF TOURISM
VOTE 33

————

for the year_efidéa
31 March 2019

-163 -



Annual Report for 2018/19 Financial Year
Vote 33: Department of Tourism

-164 -



DEPARTMENT OF TOURISM
VOTE 33

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2019

Table of contents

Appropriation Statement

Notes to the Appropriation Statement

Statement of Financial Performance

Statement of Financial Position

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (including Accounting policies)

Annexures

- 165 -

24

27

28

29

30

31

65



-994 -

€96 6ST Z T094S2¢T
ainpuadx3 ajuBWIOAd [eldUEUL JO JUSWDLER)S J13d SjUNOLUE [BNIY
Suipuny Jnoyum parosdde ainjipuadxa pasuoyineun 1eai Jolid
£86 ST 664 7T SouB)SISSE PIY PPV
I8CTL9T T 8602827 {SnuaAay [e301) IdueWIOM jelpueuly J0 Juawalels Jad syunowe [endy
1486 ST 66LTC DUB)SISSE Py
- - s1d1309y 4UN
8ETT 41 R4 s1d122aJ [eauswMedaqg
PPV
SDUBWLIONI |e[DURULY JO JUILLDILIS YIM UOIEIIDU0IDY
9L6 EET T 95T 0T T %886 ST0 LT 0B VEZ T LI8192¢C - - L1871922 101
98 192 00£ 992 %T'L6 599 8 LTL 162 78€ 00 Ttz 9) €59 90€ $201u95 Woddng Jopes wsunog ¥
625 €€V LEV YEY %6'L6 0ot 8 LYt 86E L¥8 90 €605 - ¥SL T0Y wawdojaaag uoneunsag €
€PL 961 T TYT L6T 1T %L°66 [4444 806 €87 T 0€T 887 T SET 9 - S6618C 1 suolie[ay [BuoeUINU| pue AJI[0d ‘YdJeasay wsunol
848 1HT 848 1PT %6°L6 8¢S 0££ 09T 8GY 992 (256 v) - STV 142 uopensiuiwpy T
awwesdoid
0004 000,4 % 000,4 000.4 0004 0004 0004 000.4
uoneudoidde
ainypuadxy uonendoiddy |euy Jo % aunypuadxy uonendoiddy spun4 uoneudosddy $95.8Y2 3334/ pue Spunj paion
[enydy Jeuid | seainypuadx3 Ruenep |enpy jeulq WdIWANA 3o Buniys paisnipy
st/Lt0z 61/8102

awweJSoud sad uoneudosddy

6402 Yosey L popud Jedak oy} 1o}
ANIJWILVLS NOILLVIMdOMddV

€€ 310N
WSRINOL 40 INJFWLYVdIa




-491 -

12T €% Tzl v %616 9TLY 81S €S ¥£Z 85 - 15021 U1y 80UB1SISqNS pue [3Ae. )
V86 € v86 € %0°00T - 901 ¥ 90T ¥ - (t96) 190§ sjuswAed Auadold
8ELSE 8EL SE %0°00T - 09T €V 092 £ - 974 SIS €€ sased| Sunesado
ov0 € ov0 € %0°00T E STET SZET - (zv9 €) L96 S sajjddns aoyjo pue Sujjuid ‘Alauonels :gewnsuod
vt 1Z4A %0001 - 8891 8891 - (806 T) 965 € sajjddns ajqewnsuo)
PTET VZET %0001 - 8991 899 T - (oLt} 8€T 2 (Hodsues) Jojow JuswuIRAeS Bulpnjaul) s3IABS 18314
ST ST %0°00T - 6L 6L - (t:74] L0t 1T TTEARCHTE
€L €L %0°00T - 1434 YEY - [A" z0€ $33IA495 padunosino / poddns pue AyuaBy
07 S 6VE6 %0°00T - SPS YT SPSYTT STT 60T 0zeS si0penuUe)
v61 6T %0°00T : {78 {28 - [457 STY saojAIes jeds
€6 2T 886 €7 %EEY 9,9 £T 129 €2 L6T LE - (o6v 82) £64 99 53019 Alosiape pue Ss3ulsNg :SIUBYNSUOD
SOLTT SOLIT %0'00T - [4X44)3 Tz ot - (181 S1) €5¥ ST $a21AIBs J9INdwo)
ores ovz S %0°00T - TeLS TeLS - (trr 1) 7989 ($°99) uonesunwwod
¥69S v69 S %0°00T - TIv S TIrs - €0V T 800 € sa|yAide [ejuawiedaq :Bupae)
8Yv T shrT %0'00T - sve S8 - {Tes 1) 9€8 ¢ saaho|dw] :sapesing
9809 9809 %0'00T - 1559 1859 - [44] 6209 |euJa1X3 153500 Upny
[44:] 129 %0°00T - 0.8 0.8 - (61ST) 68€¢ s3ass@ JOUlN
8T0 ¥ 0zo v %0°001 - wse ws e - (e€9) SLOE Buispuanpy
699 699 %0001 - b9 t¥9 - 434 s 93} BApEAS|UIWPY
858 ¥6¢ 098 662 %5°S6 z6€ 81 989 £6€ 8.0 TTY Zve £9 609 ZOT LTI OV $20IAI3S pUe SPo0D
¥ vE T vE %896 vzet ¥TL9€ 8¥6 LE (sez) 8zeT S56 98 SUoNINGLIUOD |ela0g
966 19¢ 609 792 %0°86 9§ 8TL9LT SOv Z8¢ SEZOT {sze ) 86€ €42 sadem pue sape|eg
0vZ 96C €58 962 %8'L6 1069 [434343 €SEOTE 000 0T - €S OT€ soahojdws Jo uojesuadwo)
860 165 €14 965 %6°56 €67 ST 8ET £65 1Eb 229 e EL {tes 2) 08Y 955 syuawdhed ua.1n)
000,4 000,4 % 0004 0004 000.4 000, 4 000.4 0004
uonendosdde
aanyjpuadx3 uonendosddy [eus §o % ainypuadxy uonepdosddy spung uoneudosddy
|enpy leud | se ainjipuadxy adueuepn |enpy Jeuld | jusWAIA Jo Sundiys paisnipy
81/L102 6L/8102

uonesyIsse(d dlwouodd sad uopepdoiddy

6L0Z Yo4ep LE papus Jeaf ay) 1oy
ANIFWILIVLS NOLLYIMHOYddY

€€ 310N
WSRINOL 40 INJFWIHdVYdIa




-89/ -

9LEEET T 9STOvT T %8'86 s1042 208 vET T LT819T T - - LT8192¢ LT
6TT 6T1 %E°00T () L6€ 96€ - 96€ - sjasse [epueuyy 10§ Juawheqd
W T W T %0'00T - 818¢ 8187 - £19¢C S0t s}asSe 2|qI3UBIU JaYI0 pue BI1EMYOS
€L6 ¥ 9.6 ¥ %0°00T - 989 £ 989/ - 68€ T 167 S uaidinba pue Alauiyaew Jay10
9/91 9/91 %2001 (@ £98 198 - 198 - juswdinba Jodsuel]
699 7599 %0°00T (@) 6758 LyS 8 - 0ST€ 162§ awdinbs pue Aauryoeiy
- T - - - - | {pve £12) - 6 L12 $34n12N.1S paxy JBYI0
9zs ¥1e 975 ¥1T %166 45 L8T ¥6 6EL V6 209 ST (€15 09) 059 s3uip|ing
9Z$ ¥1e LTS 11T %66 [41 L8T ¥6 6EL V6 (zve £9) (eT509) ¥65 81¢ S3UNjaNAIs paxy Jayio pue s3uip|ing
919 722 029 222 %566 0ss PSS SOT vOT 90T (zve €9) (059 vs) 960 ¥ZZ s1asse [ended 1o} syuaiiAed
€02 06 902 06 %0°00T - LT 89 i1 89 - (829 91) 758 8 SP|oYasnoy O} SI3ysuesl JSY10
€76 ¥76 %EQ0T 4] LS4 5S4 - SSL - 5342Uq [e130S
9T 16 0ET 16 %0°00T (2} T€6 89 626 89 - {ez6 ST) S8 v8 sployasnoy
09S 09S %0°00T - [44 4 (44 - - (444 suopnuIsul Jyo.d-uon
996 LV 61T 8Y %L°86 S10T 6E6 GL 56 9L {000 01) (086 ££) €6 09T saslidiaius a1eald 03 s19)5URSY IBRO
996 L7 6LT 8V %L'86 ST0T 6E6 GL 56 9L {000 0T) (086 £2) €6 09T $35110433UD d)eAlld
996 LY 6LZ 8Y %L'86 ST0T 6€6 SL ¥56 92 {000 oT) {086 €2) ¥€6 09T saspidJa3ua aleaud pue suoneiodiod dgng
6t 9 8€99 %9°€6 09t 8v€ T 806 T - - 805 T suonesiuesio |BUOIIBLIBIUI PUE SIUBWUISA0E uSialoy
L60VLT T L60VLT T %0°00T - €T0VLT T £C0VLT T - 8vS T SLYTETT {sannua ssauysng-uou) ssjpuase [eluswiedaq
L60VLT T L60 VLT T %0°00T - EZ0VLTT E20VLET - 8YS It SLYTETT $3UN0J9e pue saiuage [ejuawedaq
EVT 0ZET vOLOZET %666 €LTT ETLTIZVT 988 TV T (000 o1) {sS€ 8t) IPZI8Y T S2IPISqNS pue ssojsuel]
611 8LTT %0°00T - 6Ty 6z v 112y [4" Buly pue jejusy
EV8 €T EV8 €T %0°001 - 9ES 6 9¢56 - (90z 9) weLstT SSIM|19€) pUE SANUIA
8/6€ 8L6€ %0°00T - 12LS 12LS - 9T T FAs44 suawAed Bunesado
8¢I £CT 8CT €CT %0°'00T - €L256 €42 56 Ve €9 9/9 6T SST T juswdo|saap pue Sujule))

6L0Z Yo1ey LE papus 1eaf ay) 104
ANFWILVLS NOILVINHONddY

€€ 310N
WSIINOL 40 INJWLM¥Vd3Ia




- 69} -

SS86 5586 %0°00T - 699 6 6996 - (s65 2T) ¥92 2T s82)A195 JoIndwio)
186 € 186 € %0°00T - 129 v 1297 - 6 (4534 (s} uonedUNWwo)
L€61 LE6T %0°00T - ovLT orLT - 811 €55 saiANIe [E3usWedaq :Supale)
syr 1T 8y T %0°00T - Sy Sv8 - {Te6 1) 9€87 saado|dw] :salesing
9809 9809 9%0°00T - $85§ S8S S - (vew) 6109 [BUIRIX] 151500 YPNY
(47 8L¥ %0°00T - 472 TsL - (£29) 62 T s)asse Jouln
918 1 9181 %0°00T - 137 A iz A - {96T) L89T Suisianpy
STT 81T %0001 - 9€1 g€t - (z2) 802 $33) sAnensuIWPY
€10 86 21086 %L'66 LLE 0v9 ZIT LTOETT - (rLe s) T6€ 81T $82|AJ3S pUE SPOOD
T€09T TE0 9T %696 SES 999 91 T0Z LT (see) {8L1) #T9 LT SUoIINQLIIUOD [B120S

9y TZT Lyy TTT %996 69Z ¥ 605 12T 8LLSTT (zeet) 8L1 TTE OET sagem pue salie|eg

LIy LET 8LV LET %9°96 7081 SLT8€T 616 THT {£s6 ) - 9€6 LT saahojdwa 4o uonesuadwo)

06t S€T 06V S€T %0°86 181§ S180ST 966 §ST (256 ) (bee s) £2€ 992 sjuawAed usun)

UOI3EDIJISSE]I JOUOD]

88 1THZ 8.8 1¥C %6°'L6 8zZLS 0€L 092 85992 (56 ¥) - STy TLT leroL
919 8¢ 919 8¢ %0001 - 566 bir S66 v - S9v £ 0£s L€ UOIEPOWWODIY BIYO  §
90€ € 90€ € %5'86 6€S 19 SE EST 9€ (622 1) L26T S56 VE juswadeuey jeueuly ¢

¥9T THT ¥9T ZHT %8'96 090§ LyL €ST £08 8ST (s6z €) {o9s o1) 99Ut uawadeueip ajesodiod €

S96¢ 596 7 %1°86 Ls 0€6 Z 1862 20¢ (14 5997 wowaleuey
L8 St LT85T %L'66 (4 v €2 9Ts €2 (sez) 8rT €09 €7 Ansuiy T
awwesdod gqng
0004 000.4 % 000, 000.4 000,4 000, 000,4 0004
uofierdoidde
3ungipuadx3 uoneudoiddy |euyy jo % ainypuadxy uojendolddy spung uoneudoiddy
[emay [euld | seaimipuadxy ddueUEA |eny leuly | JUBWBNA Jo Suyiys pasnipy
8T/LT0Z 61/8102

6102 yoaey Lg papus 1eaf oy} oy
ANIWILVLS NOILVINJOHddY

£€310A
WSRINOL 40 INJFNIHVYd3d

uonensuIWpY T swweiSold




-041 -

818 TV 8.8 1HZ %6°L6 8TLS 0€£ 092 85t 99¢ {£56 ¥) - STY TLZ feloL
Ixd ¥ %8°00%T (1) ozt 61T - 61T - s}asse {eloueuly Joj JuawAed
6SET 6SET %0°00T - g18¢ 818¢ - €292 S6T 518558 3|qIBUBIUI JBYIO puE 3IemYos
600 € 600 € %0001 - 080§ 080S - 9101 90 ¥ uawdinba pue Aiauiyoew 13y10
€€ 33 %2001 (2) £98 198 - 198 - swdinba podsued |
Yo € o€ %0°00T (2) EV6 S 6 S - LL87T 90 ¥ uawdinba pue Aisuiyoe
- - - 41 - (471 - (86) 0s9 s8uip|ing
- - - [43y - <88 - (86) 059 $31Nn12nJ3s paxy} Jaylo pue sulp|ing
Tov 00 ¥ %T'¥6 0ss 19,8 ITE6 - wry 606 ¥ s1asse |eyded Joy syudwAed
zee TEET %0°00T - 099 099 - 099 - SP|OY3sNOY O} SIYSULL] 13YI0
TEY 1€V %0°T0T (2) S6T £6T - £6T - s)jau(q [e120S
€941 E9LT %Z°00T t4) 958 €58 - £58 = SpjoyasnoH
L61 L6T %0°00T - 6LT 64T - - 6LT {saiua ssauisng-uou) sapusde [puawuedaq
L6T L6T %0°00T - 6.1 64T - - 64T sjunoJ2e pue sapuade |puawuedaq
096 T 0961 %2°00T (@) vEOT TE0T - £58 6LT S3IpISgNS pue siajsued]
vLT VLT %0°00T - psv T vS¥ T - Py C 0T Suuy pue |ejusy
TIST TIST %0'00T - POET YOET - {9ev 9) ovLL Je) pue sanuap
1091 TO9T %0°00T - EEET E€EET - SLOT 8621 syuswAed gunesado
808 T 808 T %0°00T - S6L T S6L1 - {zs9) A4 swdojaasp pue Juiuied|
0€9 ¥T 0E9¥T %9°'L6 LLE 8LT ST §59 ST - 811 £LES ST 0UIISISANS PUE [dARIL
¥96 € ¥96 € %0°00T - 90T ¥ 90Tt - {rse) 090§ sjuawAed Auadoud
8€L € 8ELSE %0°00T - 09Z €F 09¢ € - 5666 S9T €€ sased| Suiesado
¥8LT ¥8LT %0°00T - 091 0291 - {005 1) 0zl € saljddns asyyo pue Suiupd ‘Asauoiiels :ajqewnsuo)
PETT PETT %0001 - €LTT ELTT - (9ze6) 660 say|ddns 3jgewnsuo)
¥ZET VIET %0001 - 8991 8991 - (g9t} TET T (1iodsuel) 1010w JUBWUISA0S BUIPNIDU) SADIAIDS 133)d
6 6 %0001 - 9z 9z - 4 74 SUCTTNSTETE |
€L €L %0°'00T - 962 96¢ - {9) zog $a21A125 Pa2InosINo / woddns pue Auady
192 € 192 € %0°00T - 106 € 106 € - {v67) S6T ¥ s1010B13UC)
1€ 1€ %0°00T - voT ¥0T - (9¥2) 0s€ sadlalas [eFa]
SYIS SPT S %0"00T - €€5 8 €ES 8 - 8€C L S621T $20IA13S AIOSIAPE pUE SSauIsng :Sue)nsuod

6102 YyaJepy Lg papus Jeak ayy 1of
INIWILV.LS NOILVINDONDdY

WSI—HNOL 40 LNJWL1HVYdId

€€ 310N




74

596 ¢ S96 Z %186 (4 0£6 ¢ L86C Z0€ /14 599 ¢ |e30L
€ € - - - - - - s19ss€ |ejaueuly Joj JuswiAed
V4 L - - - - - (0g) 0s uawdinba pue Assuiyoey
iz Ix4 - - - - - {0s) 0s sjasse jeyded 10} syuswied
8.8 8.8 %1001 (1) 66L 861 - 0L 8TL $2J1MBS pue spooH
£50¢ S0 %Y'L6 85 T€T ¢ 681 ¢ 0€ - L8871 saahodwsa jo uonesuadwio)
SE6¢C S€6¢C %1°86 LS 0E6 T L8613 <0€ 0L S19¢ sjudwhed Juaan)
000.4 0004 % 000.4 000.4 000.d 000.4 0004 0004 UolIEI1ISSE|I JjWouU0d]
uoljendosdde
a4njipuadxy uonendoiddy |euy jo 9 ainupuadxa uopjendosddy spun4i uoneudosddy
|enlyy jeulqy se aanypuadxy auelen |emoy feuly JUDWDIA 30 Sunyys pasnipy
st/LT0T 61/8102
Juswafeuey iz'T dwwesSosdgng
£78 5T [X4:3T4 %L°66 eL b €T 915 €¢ (s€z) 14 €09 €2 €0l
8 8 %0°00T - 0s 05 - 0s - sjasse [elueuly 1o} Jusuwided
1€L TEL %0°00T - 9gE 9€E - 91 01z uawdinba pue Alaujyaey
TEL TEL %0°00T - 9EE 9€E - 9T 01¢c s1asse |ejided 4o syudswhed
799 799 %0°00T - 8t 14 - 8y - Spjoyasnoy
799 €99 %0°00T - 14 ki1 - :14 - SApIsqns pue siajsuedt
6£86 8£8 6 %0°00T ) 86 £V8 6 - (92} 6166 S93IAIS pUB SPO0YH
L8S T 885 vT %b'66 74 99T €1 6£T €T (se2) - PLV ET ssaAojduwia jo uonesuaduwio)
9Zv vZ o9zv vz %L'66 72 010 £2 T80 €2 (sez} (9z) €6€ £2 syuawAed uan)
000,d 000.4 % 000.4 000.d 000,d 000.4 000.4 000.4 uoneayissepd sjwouody
uoljendosdde
imypuadxy uojedosddy feuy jo % aunypusdxy uonendosddy spung uonendosddy
|enioy leuly | seasnypuadxz ajueMep |eny leud | juswaNA | jo Sunjys paisnipy
st/Lr02 61/810Z

Ansimp) :1°1 :dwwesSosdqng

61L0Z yodey L& papue seaf ay) 104
INIWILVLS NOLLYIMHOYddY

€€ 310N
WSRINOL 4O LNJW1YYd3Ia




-¢l-

SLE SLE %0°00T - 1081 1081 - 2LT 56 s1asse [exded Joj syuawied
8€8 8 8£88 %0°00T - 0£ES 6 0ES 6 - TeCT 60€ 8 SBVIAISS puE Spoon
680 €2 680 €¢ %8'L6 6€S €8¢ ¥ [44:3 74 {62L1) - 185 9¢ s2aA0|dwa Jo uonesuadwo)
LT61E LT6 1€ %86 6ES €18 €€ ISE bE (6zL 1) 1244 098 vE suawded uann)
000.4 0004 % 000.4 000,4 0004 000,34 000,¥ 000,4 UOREIYISSE[D JILIoU0I]
uopjeudosdde
ainyipuadxy uopeudosddy |euly jo o, ainypuadxy uoneudoiddy spung uoneudoiddy
|enyy Jeuly | se ainypuadx3 ajueliep lenioy leul | wBWANA Jo Suiyiys poisnipy
8t/LT0? 61/8102
jJuawaseue}y |eueuld 1 :awwesSordgns
¥9T ZVT y9T 2V %8'96 090S LhL €ST £08 8ST (s6z €) (09s o1) 299 ZL1 leloL
4 a %Y’ 10T () 0L 69 - 69 - s1955€ [eloueul Joj Juswhed
6SET 6SET %0°00T - 818 ¢ 818¢ - €79¢ S61 s1955e 2|qI3uelu] 13410 pue a1emios
606 T 606 T %1°00T () 908 € v08 € - 56 60L € juawdinba pue Alsuiyepy
- E - Z5S = 7sS - (86) 059 $24N19N.13S paxiy J3y10 pue sSuipjing
892 ¢ 897 € %ET6 0ss 299 | 7AW - 029¢ pSsS vy s1asse |eyded Joy syuawhed
1011 T0TT %T°00T (2) 108 508 - 508 - spjoyasnoy
161 16T %0'00T - 64T 641 - - 64T sjunodde pue sappuade |eluswuedag
8671 862 T %2001 (4] 986 ¥86 - 508 6LT S3IPISqNS pue sidysuel)
<8 6€ <8 6€ %66 6L€ Ly LY 168 LY - (S0 vT) S06 19 $30JAISS pUe SpoonH
vl L6 oL L6 %096 121974 565 86 6ZL T0T (s6zZ €) - 20 90T saahojdwa Jo uoyesuadwo)
985 LET 985 LET %0°L6 €IS ¥ £90 9v1 08S 0ST (s6z €) {so t1) 626 19T sjuawAed Jus.ny
000.4 000.4 % 000,4 000.4 0004 000.4 000, 4 0004 UOREIYISSE]D Wwouod]
uoneudoidde
ainypuadx3 uoneudoiddy |euy jo % ain3ipuadx3 uopyeldoiddy spunjg uonendosddy
lemyoy Jeuld | se ainypuadx3y aouenep |eny jeuld | juawaanp Jo Buiys paisnipy
8T/L102 61/8102

uawadeuey aesodior :g°1 :dwwesdoldgng

6102 Y24y Lg papus 1eaf ay} 10§
AINIWILYVLS NOILYINdONddY

£€ 310N
WSIRINOL 40 INIWLYVYdId




-84l -

ZST 95 20£ 95 %bv6 90 b 02989 89T SET9 (rse) T€6 99 sjuawiAed Juan)
uonedyisse]d uwouody
€V 961 T YT L6T T %L'66 (<447 806 €8T T 0ET 882 T SET9 - S66 182 T leloL
08Z €2 YIS €T %€°98 789 € YT £2 9v89¢ (sse) (¥81) S8C LT uonesadoo) pue suonjejay |euoeusai|
88T 6CT 1T 88C6ZI T %0°00T - 8V080Z T 8r0 80T T - - 80802 T WsLINCL UBdLYY YINos ¢
€68 0T €68 0T %0°00T € 8SLTT T9LTT 6751 (Lev 1) 60L 1T ASajens pue Suluueld Adljog €
STL LT 8TL LT %0°00T - 881 €€ 88V €€ LLEE €18 € 86792 Juswageueln S8pajmouy pue ydieasay 7
1S5S 80LS %EE6 LES osv L L8611 vr T (est 2) 6598 JuswWaBeueA SUONE|DY |BUCHEUITIU| pUE AJI|Od ‘UYoJessay wsunol T
awwesdoud gng
000,4 000.4 % 000,4 0004 000,49 000, 000.4 000, 4
uonendoidde
a3an)puadx3 uonepdosddy |euy Jo 9% aanypuadx3y uonendosddy spung uonedosddy
Jenyoy Jeuly | seainjipuadxy JduBlIeA |enpy |euld | JUBWIALA Jo Bunyys paisnipy
8T/L102 6T/810T
SUORE[OY [euoljeuIdIU| pue Adijod ‘YdJeasay wislINoy :Z awweiSold
919 8¢ 919 8€ %0"00T S66 v 566 iy - S9t L OES LE |elol
919 8¢ 919 8¢ %0°00T - 966 vt S66 b - Sov L 0ES LE S32IAI3S pue Spo0g
919 8¢ 919 8¢ %0°00T - §66 ¥t S66 iy - S9Y £ 0€S LE syuawied Juaun)y
000.4 000, % 0004 0004 000.4 000,4 000,4 000, UOLEINISSEJI JlWIou03]
uoneudoidde
ainypuadx3 uonendoiddy leuyy jo % ainupuadxl uonendoaddy spung uonendosddy
|eny leuld se ainypuadxy ELlT-TT1-7.8 feny feuly JUBWIAIA 30 Suiyiys pasnipy
81/L10C 61/8102
UOREPOWIIONY 32140 :§°T :3wwesdosdgns
90€ Z€ 90€ ZE %5'86 6€S 19 SE €ST 9€ {6zL 1) LT67 SS6 VE lezoL
v ¥ - - - - - - - $)9SSE |eloueul) Joj JuawAed
SLE SLE %0'00T 10871 1081 - 90L T S6 wawdinba pue Asdujyoey

6L0Z Yd4B LE papus 1eah oy 104
ANIWILVLS NOILYIMdOYddY

€€ 310N
WSRINOL 40 INJFWIHYd3Ia




aey
¥6E9
88¢ 67T 1T
88¢6CIT
V6B 6ETT
98¢
8979

6ITT

€9¢
TEE Y

€LE
6

1€1
66
600 T
T4
59z
206
85

0s

£9
Wy 9T
6LV ¥
T€Z S

0T 6E

(4244
8€9 9
887 6IT 1
887 6TT 1T
SETOVT T
98¢
8979

6ITT

€9¢
VEEY

€LE
6

TET
66
6ST1T
9ttt
S9¢
206
85

0s

€9
65 9T
6LV v
TETSE
0TZ 6€

%0°00T

%9°€6
%0°00T
%0°00T
%0°00T
%0°00T
%0°00T

%0°00T

%0007
%0°TL

%0001
%0°00T

%0°00T
%0°00T
%0°00T

%0°00T
%0°00T
%0'00T
%0'00T
%0007
%0°00T
%0°001
%L'€8
%9°96
%E'66
%066

091

8ES €

8ES €
(4174
f443
es

6L6 €
8VET
8¥080Z T
8r080C 1T
SLEVIZT
06

rEE

9ST ¢

€0S
560 6

[444
6

LE
6tl
1474

29
fA44
EEE
9€S

[43
i

ov

vSS LT

€8LS
€8¢ S
990 1§

~vil-

616 € - - 6L6 €
805 T - - 805 T
870 80T T - - 84080 T
8V080T T - - 870807 T
SES YIZT - - SESHIZT
06 - 06 -

VEE - €64 6vS T

9sT ¢ - {85) vize

€0S - {ozT) £29

£€9 71 - ¥eL9 606 S

- - {o02) 002

444 - {z9p) 689

¥6 - (00€) v6€

- - {2) L

LE - (€T) 0s

(145 - 6z1 -

762 - 11T LbT

- - {os) 0s

z9 - (g6T S) (52§

Lty - (€ss) 00z T

£E€E - (s81) 8TS

9€S - 9€T oor

[43 - {L15) 6vS

fa4! - (6z€) Tiv

or = {602) (374

260 1T : (v8e) UV IT
S86 S = €4S avs

509 S SET9 {€£9) £¥0 O
065 1S SET9 - SSt S

610Z Ya1e L papus 1eaf oy} 1oy
INIWILVLS NOILYIMOYddY

€€ 310N
WSRINOL 40 LINIWLYVdIa

SpIOYasnoy
suones|uegio [euopeusaiul pue syusluIaAos udpiog
{se1313ua ssauisng-uou) sapuade [euawedsq
sjunodde pue sapuase |eyuswpedaq

SIPISQNS pue siaysuel]

Suuiy pue [e3uay

JBj pue SaNUIA
sjuawAed Sunelsado

juawdo|anap pue ujuiesy

30U31SISONS PUE [JABL]

sased| Sunesado

salddns a0 pue Sunuud ‘AJauoieis 9|qewnsuo)
sa1|ddns a|qewnsuo)

(1odsueJy Jorow JuaWLIBA0S Bulpn|aul) S3d1A13S 3133]4
awulenu3

5391135 Pa24nosino / Joddns pue Adualdy
$10)9RAUOD

sa319s (ede

5301A19S AJOSIAPE PUE SS3UISNY :SIUBYNSUOD

$931A4S Jandwo)

{$'3D) uonesunwWwWo)

s31pAnRDE [eluswHedaq :Buuale)

S)asse JoujN

Suisisanpy

S22} SANBIIS|UIWPY

S3JJAI9S pUE SPOCDH

SUO[INGIIIOD |B120S

sa8em pue salie|es

saaiojdwa Jo uonesuadwo)




74

LBEST L6E ST %0'00T - 958 8T 95881 LLEE S9 Iy ST savAo(dwa jo uonesuadwo)
80 €T 810 €2 %0°'001 - 9€Z 62 9£¢ 6T LLEE €S9 ¢ 902 22 syuawied juaiin)
000.4 000,4 % 0004 0004 000,84 000.4 0004 0004 uonREeIYISSe|d djwouod3
uopeudosdde
ainypuadxy uonjendosddy leuy jo 9 aimypuadxa uoneudosddy spung uonjeudosddy
jlenpy lewd | se3asnupuadxz dduelep |enpy Jeur4 JUBWIBIIA J0 Suiiys paisnipy
8T/LT0Z 61/810Z
luawaseueyy adpajmou) pue Yaueasay :z'g :awwesdosdgng
458§ 80LS %E'E6 L85 oSt £ 86 L LA (zs1 ) 5598 1e3o01
- - %0°00T - T T - T - S19sse [elueuy 10) Juswied
9s LS %0°001 - 0€T O€T - (09) 061 juawdinba pue Ajauiydein
95 Fi5 %0°00T - (17134 (134 - (09) 06T syasse |eyded oy syualuhed
601 Ve T %6°'69 L€9 et P8LT - (e122) 966 € S3IIAIBS pUE SPO0H
12Y144 vov v %0007 - 708 209 1A 61T 69t ¥ saalojdw Jo uonesuadwo)
T05S 159 S %L €6 LES 6TEL 958 L VeVl (€60 2) S9v 8 sjuawAed Jualan)
000,4 000.4 % 000.4 0004 000.4 0004 0004 000.4 UOREd|YISSEJI AIWOoU0I]
uonedoidde
ainyipuadxy uoneudoiddy |euls Jo % ainypuadxy uoneudosddy spung uonendoiddy
|eryoy |euly | se ainjipuadxy Jduelep |enjay leuty | JuswWBLA Jo uiyiys paisnipy
8t/L102Z 61/8102
judwaSeuely suoilejaY [euolleUISIU] pue Adjjod ‘Yoleasay wSMno) :T°Z :swwesdordgns
EVLIGT T TrT L6T T %L°66 (144 806 £8Z T 0ET 88Z T SET 9 S66 1821 |elol
8 8 %0°00T - L L - L - $)3SSE |eIdUBUL 10§ JudlARY
z8 8 - - - - - - - s13s5e ajqiduelu] 13410 pue a1emYyos
L09 T19 %0001 - 906 206 - LLE 629 juawdinba pue Asusydew 13y10
£09 Ti9 %0°001 - 206 906 - LLE 678 wawdnba pue Assuiyaepy
689 €69 %0°00T - 906 906 - LLE 625 syasse jeyded Joj syualuAed
aTy ay %0°00T - 6.6 € 6L6 € - - 6L6 € Spjoyasnoy 0] sJ3)suell JBYI0

6L0Z Y4B LE papus teak oy} 104
ANIWILVLS NOILYINIOY DY

EC€JI0ON
WSIRINOL 40 INJWIHYd3a




-9/1 -

88C6ZT T 88Z6ZI T %0'00T - 8V08BOCT 870807 T - - 8v0B0CT |ejol
8876711 88¢6LT T %0001 - 8¥080C 1T 8v080Z 1T - - 8v080C T s3unodde pue sajpuase [ejuswiiedsq
882 62T T 88Z6ZIT %0°00T - 890 80Z T 8v080Z T - - 8v080Z T S3IPISqNS Pue SJaysuel)
000, 000,4 % 0004 000,4 000,4 000,4 0004 0004 uofjeslissep Jlwouaod]
uonepdoidde
aanupuadxl uonelidoiddy |euy jo % Jinypuadxy uoijerdoiddy spund uonedoiddy
lenay feuld | se ainMpuadx3y ajueuep |enyay leuld | wuswanp Jo Sunpiys paisnipy
8T/L102 6T/810Z
WISNOJ UB3IY YINos iz :3wwesdoidqns
€68 0T €68 01 %0°00T € 8SLTT T9L 1T 6¢ST (Lv 1) 60LTT |ejoL
18 L8 %0001 - 12" 147" - Y1 9 juawdinba pue Asaulydep
L8 L8 %0°00T - ST ST - i1 9 syasse [eyiden Joj syuawAed
8€ET 8EET %0°00T - 9L 9L T - (529 1) L8E € SVIAISS pUE SPOOH
89 8 89v 8 %0°00T € 8 6 a8 6 6¢s T - 91E8 saako|dwa jo uolesuadwo)
908 0T 908 0T %0°00T € 09 TT L09TT 62S T {sza 1) €0LTT sjuawAed uain)
0004 0004 % 000,4 000,34 0004 000.d 0004 0004 UOIEIYISSe[D dILoU0d]
uoneudoidde
aunypuadx3 uoneudosddy jeut} jo % ainypuadxg uoneudosddy spung uoneudoiddy
jenpy |euld | se ainypuadx3 ajuelep leny leuld | 3UBWBAA J0 Sunyiys paisnipy
81/L102 61/8102
Adajens pue Suluueld Adljod :€°2 :awwesSosdqng
STL LT 8TL LT %0°00T 3 881 €€ 881 £€ LLEE €18 € 86¢C 9T leloL
8 8 - - - - - - - S}asse [elaueuly Joj Juawhed
8 8 - - - - - s31asse a(qISuelU| 13410 pue aJemyos
SLE 8LE %0°00T 5 €4T €LT - 091 €11 uawdinba pue Asuiyoeln
LSt 1214 %0°00T = LT £LT - 09T €T sjasse |eyided 10) spuawied
[4Y4 4 acy %0001 - 6.6 € 6L6 € - - 6.6 € spioyasnoH
[A T4 aet %0°00T - 6.6 € 6/6 € - - 6L6 € S3pISqns pue sidysued)
1894 189 £ %0°00T - 08€ 01 08€ 0T - 885 € 6L 9 S3JIAITS pue SpoonH

6102 YoJeW LE papusd Jeak oy 4oy
ANIWILVLS NOILYINHOHddY

€€ 310A
WSIINOL1 40 INJNWLYYdIA




-LlL-

8€091 8€0 91 %S¥L 86S L €81 7T T8L 62 €18 € {Lze 1) S69 LT UCIIBUIPIO0D JUBWISAAU| pue Bujuueld uoleunsag €
ovT St ov1 St %196 €99 065 LT £S5 8T ezt (116 2) 296 81 juswiadueyuz wsuno),  Z
969 ¢£ 009 €€ %E'66 6ET £99 6T 908 61 (ove) (s92) TTe 0C uawaseuey JuawdopAq uoneUnsag T
Jwuwesdosd gng
000,4 000, 4 % 0004 0004 0004 000,4 0004 000.4
uoniendosdde
sanypuadx3 uonedosddy |euy jo 9 aunypuadxy uopeudosddy spung uonedoiddy
{eny Jeuly | se ainypuadx3y adueuep [endy Jeuld | juawWANA 30 Sunyys paxsnipy
8t/L102Z 61/8102
juawdojanaqg uoneunsaq !¢ awwessSoid
082 €¢ ves €2 %E'98 Z89 € 9T €T 9t8 92 (ssz) (vet) 582 L2 1ejol
= - %0°00T - 9 9 - ] - 51as5€ jelpueuly Joy Juswied
68 68 %0°00T - (23 6vE - 621 (a4 Juswdinba pue Assuiydep
68 68 %0'00T - 6b€ (373 - 62t 0ze s1asse [ey|ded 10 sjuawheq
¥6E 9 8€99 %9°E6 091 8rE T 8052 - - 805 ¢ suoljes|uedio |euorleudaiul pue syuawuiaacs usdiaiod
¥6€ 9 8€99 %9°E6 091 148 805¢T - - 805 ¢ SAPISYNS pue ssysuel)
9S€S 98€§ %185 100 € 9T ¥ 9T L - (seT) TOE L $22IAI3S PUB SPOOD)
Ty 11 PP TT %696 128 96T 9T L1891 (sse) (v81) 98z LT saatojdw Jo uonesuadwo)
L6L 9T L6191 %E'S8 (2443 19% 02 €86 £2 (ssz} (61€) L8512 sjuswAed juaun)
0004 0004 % 0004 0004 000,Y 0004 000,4 000,34 UOREIYISSE JIWOU03]
uonendosdde
aJnypuadx3 uoneudosddy euly jo % ainypuadxy uonendosddy spung uonendosddy
|enyay jeuld | se asnypuadx3 ECLTITTY lenmpy leuld | JUSWRAIA Jo Supgiys paisnipy
81/L102 61/8102

uopesadoo) pue suoie|ay jeuoieusaly) :§ g :3wwesgoidgng

6L0Z YoIep LE papus seak ay) 1oy
ANIWILVLS NOILVINIOHdY

€€ JLOA
WSIHNOL 40 LNFWLHVYdIa




-8.L1 -

1€9 58 pe9 s8 %0°00T - 095 €9 095 €9 - (eT€ LT) €808 S3IPISANS PUE SISjsuRLL
- - %0°00T - vEY 1734 - 43 4 Suy pue |euay
86¢ 86¢ %0°00T - £e8 €28 - (0s6) ELLT S311)]198) pUE SINUIA
142 474 %0°00T - 314 [3:17 - {91€) 108 sjuswAed Supesadp
8GSSTT 855 STT %0°00T - 968 €8 968 £8 e €9 600 €1 S5 L uawdojaaap pue Suiuiel]
€6T L €6T L %LT6 108 S6T 0T 966 0T - S87 T T1L6 3dURlSISqNS pue janed |
0z (074 - - - - - () L siuawhed Auadoud
96t a6k %0°00T - 8GE 8G€ - {rvo 1) worT sa)|ddns as1o pue Sujjulid ‘AJauoliels 13jqelnsuo)
L6 L6 %0°00T - 06T 06T - {€os) €68 so|ddns ajqewnsuo)
[4 z - - - - - (z) [41 wswuensu3
Wi wt %0001 - 100 OTT T000TT - €05 60T 867 SI012RIUCD
¥9 ¥9 %0001 - ¥9€ v9€E - 6VE sT $301MBS 289
¥80¢ 886 ¢C %E6F 865 L 06€ L 886 1T - (666 21) 186 LT $221A195 AIOSIAPE PUE SSBUISNG :SIU.YNSUOD
085 08S %0°'00T - 95T 95T - (e€8 1) 686 T saopues Jandwo)
8.5 84S %0°00T - 06€ 06€ - (692) 659 (5%8D) uoneatUNWIWO)
971 9T %0'001 - 99¢ 99¢ - 89 86¢ s3l1AlRE [R}URWMEdR(Q SulBle)
- - %0°00T - 859 85S - 8PS oT |euJaixd 151500 upny
5 4’} %0°00T - 4 4] - (ot2) 792 S1asSe Joully
896 896 %0°00T - 9T 9T - (9zg) e Buisiusapy
L1 FAs - - - - - 174] 124 $334 SARISIUILPY
610 62T €6 62T %E 96 66€ 8 L9 ST €L0¥ZT e €9 105 90T 0£Z ¥S S2IAISS pue 5poon
LESS LES S %0"00T - €909 €909 - L0E 9SL S SUO[INGLIILOD [B1D0S
4434 9Ty €V %0001 1 €9€ L ¥9€ Lt €605 (Log) 8LST¥ safiem pue salie|es
£96 80 £96 8Y %0°00T 1 9Z¥ €S LTr s €605 VEE 8Y saahoidwa Jo uonesuadwo)
786 LLT 988 841 %0°'S6 oor 8 00T 65T 005 £9T SEP 89 (66¥ €) $9s 20T syuawAed jua.un)
UOIIEIRISSEPD JIMOU0DT
625 €€V LEV VEY %6°L6 00t 8 Lbb 86€ L178 901 €605 - ¥SL TOY ledoL
SS9 6EE 659 6E€ %0°00T - £00 6EE £00 6€€ (zg9) €06 v 98¢ vEE wsunoy Joj Jupiom ¥

6102 YoIEW LE popus Jeaf oy 104
ANIWILVLS NOILVINJOYddY

WSRINOL 40 LNJN1HVd3a

€€ 310N




-6L4 -

89Tl 85T %0°00T - 69 69 - i) o1 awdinba pue Alauiyoepw
000 82 000 82 %0°00T - 0LL2T oLt - 0LLTT - $9UN12N.35 Paxyy Jayio pue sSulpjing
85T 8¢ 8ST 8¢ %0°00T - 6E8 7T 6€8 C1 - vZ8 1 ST syasse |eyded sof suawied
- - %0°00T - ot o1 - ot - spjoyasnoH
- - %0°00T - 114 [1]4 - Q4 SBIPISHNS PU. SiBjSues]
T6ET S6T ¢ %L°96 6ET 60T v 8v Y ) (ves z1) 780 (1 S23]AI2S pue spoon
2483 j2d %3 %0°00T - 60L 2 60L T {ovT) (992) VIZ € saako[dwa Jo uoijesuadwo)
SEs v 6Er S %0°86 6ET 8189 L569 {ovz) (660 £T) 962 0T sjuawAed jJuaind
0004 0004 % 000,4 000.4 000.1 000.4 0004 0004 uonedyIsse|d Jwouody
uonepdosdde
aumypuadxy uonetdosddy euy 10 % ainypuadxz uopendosddy spuny uopeudosddy
feny leuy | seainmypuadxg asueep fenloy feuld | jwawalp | Jo Sunpys paisnlpy
8t1/L102 61/8T02
juawadeuely Juswdo|anag uoneunsaq :1°g :awweldosdqng
625 €€V LEV VEV %6°L6 oor 8 Lbr 86€ L8 90V €605 N vSL10b |e10L
6 6V %0'00T - 8.1 8.1 = 8L1 s1asse [eppueuy Joj Judwihed
6vL 6vL %0°00T - €5 €SL 08¢ €LE uawdinba pue Alaulydew Jaylo
6% 6VL %0°00T - €52 €5/ - 08€ €L Juawdinba pue Aaujeiy
B 1 - - - | (vv6L1T) - r6 L12 $4NIONJIS paxy JAYIO
81T 69T 8TT 69T %0°00T - 958 9 958 ¥9 209 ST (9v2 68) - sauipping
8TT 691 611691 %0001 - 998 ¥9 958 ¥9 (zve €9) (ov2 68) ¥¥6 L12 $24N1IN.3S paxIy Jsyio pue sdulppng
£98 69T 898 69T %0°00T - 609 59 609 59 (zve £9) {99€ 68) L1€ 812 s1asse [eyded Jo syuswihed
659 v8 799 8 %0001 - SES €9 SES €9 - (8E€ £T) €48 08 Sployasnoy o) siajsuely Joylo
(413 413 %0°00T - sz st - 74 - sajauaq (oS
T€0 S8 ¥€0 58 %0°00T - 09S €9 096 €9 - (eT€ LT) €808 sployasnon
009 009 - - - - - - sasudiaua aeard o) siagsuely 1310
009 009 - - - - - - sasudiaua dlealld
009 009 - - - - = - - sasidiajus aeard pue suonelodiod dlgnd

6402 Yoe LE papus Jeaf ey} 1of
AINIWILVLS NOILYIIdOYIdY

€€ 310N
WSIRINOL 40 LINIW LY YVdIa



-081 -

TT0vT TZ20¥T %0°00T - 8176 91 8¥6 91 €18 € ¥9s TLSCT saaAo|dwa jo uonesuadwo)
L16 ST L16 ST %L VL 865 £ S0LTZ £0€E 62 €18 € (ss02) SbS LT syudwAed Jua.n)
0004 0000 % 000,4 000.4 0004 0004 000.4 000.4 uonedyisse|s Jlouody
uoneudosdde
aimyipuadxy uonedosddy {euy Jo % 4nypuadxy uonendosddy spung uoneudosddy
fenay jeuld | se ainypuadxg aueLEA |enyoy [euld | juswRup 3o Sunpys paisnlpy
8T/L102 61/8102
UoIIEUIPJO0) JUIWISIAL| pue Suluue|d uoneunsaq :g'g ;dwwesdoidqns
[Ca%14 ovT St %96 £99 06S LT €52 8T 207 (t162) 296 8T eloL
€ € %0°00T - € 3 - € S13sSe [epueur) Joj JuawAhed
1314 1514 %0001 - 6¢T 6¢T - 6L 0s wawdinba pue Asauiyden
000 8¢ 000 8¢ - - - - - - - $84NJ2NJ1S Paxyy Jaylo pue sduping
19282 15282 %0°00T - 62T 621 - 6L 0s sjasse feyded Joy syudiAed
- - %0°00T - ST ST - ST - spjoyasnoy
009 009 - - - - - - - sasudialua aieald pue suonelodiod Jljgng
009 009 %0°00T - ST ST - ST - Sa1pIsqns pue siaysuel]
€8T ¥ €31 ¥ %E'S8 €99 CEBE Sev v - (eLzg) 89/ L §9I]AISS pUB SPOODH
€0T Tl €01 TT %0°00T - TI9 €T TI9€T [dtI 44 Q9¢ 241 saaho|dwa yo uonesuadwo)
987 91 987 9T %E'96 €99 £bb LT 90T 81 w077 (800 £) TT6 8T sjuawied Juannd
0004 000,4 % 000,4 000.4 0004 000.4 000.Y4 0004 uoIeIISSE]d JIWou023
uonendoidde
ainypuadxy uonendosddy |eul} 4o % ainypuadx3 uonendoiddy spund uogendosddy
|enjoy [euly | se ainmipuadxy JUeLIBA leny leuld | JUBWIIA Jo Sunyiys paisnlpy
81/L102 6L/810Z
JUBWIDUBYUT WISLNOL :Z°€ :swweidoidgng
969 ZE 009 £€ %E'66 6€T 299 61 908 6T (ove) {592) TTE 02 lel0)
3 £ - - - - - - - S18SSE [elpUeUly J0j Juawied

6102 Yo4B LE papus Jeak ayj 104
INIWILVLS NOILYINHONddY

£€ 310N
WSIHENOL 40 INJWLYVdId




- 181 -

€991 €99 CT %0001 - 0568 056 8 T€L (09 t) 6L9TT uawaseuely sISG Hoddng Joosg wsnol T
awwesdoid qng
000,34 000.4 % 000.4 0004 000,43 000,4 0004 000,84
uonepdoidde
ainjipuadxg uoneudorddy jeuy J0 % ainypuadxy uonetidosddy spunj uoneydosddy
|enpy leuld | seaanypuadxy ajueleA leny leuid | uswauyA | jo Sunjiys pasnipy
81/£102 61/810¢
saonas Joddng 10329 WsUNo] i awwesdold
559 6€€ 659 6€€ %0°00T - £00 6£€ L00 6EE (e89) €06 v 98L vEE |ej01
114 I %0°00T - 01 1] 4 1)) - $13SSE [epueuyy Jo) Juawied
1 X44 1x44 %0°00T - e e - 8 8sT juswdinbs pue Aauiyde
8TT ETT J6IT ETT %0°00T - 980291 980 79T (zpe £9) 121X 6 L1Z $3IN1oN13s paxy Jayno pue sdulpjing
6EE ETT OFE €TT %0°00T - 980 29T 980 29T (zve €9) 895 L 20T 812 s1asse |ejded 104 syuswied
TE0 S8 €0 S8 %0007 - SES €9 SES €9 - (s€e L1) €4808 Spjoyasnoy
TE0 S8 reo S8 %0001 - SES €9 SES €9 - (8€€ £1) €48 08 SaIpisqns pue siajsuel)
6rs1et 6vS 1CT %0°00T () 816 202 S£620C reEEsS LTT ST 90F T S9IIAISS pue Spoon
569 61 S69 6T %0°00T T 85T 0T 69T 0T (zg9) (98} sov 12 sasAojdws 4o uonesuadwo)
e Ivi e Ivt %0°00T - PEL ETT VET ETT 099 29 £99 ¥T TI8 S€ syuawAed juaiin)
000.4 0004 % 000.4 0004 000,y 0004 000, 4 000,4 UoneINISSE|I JWoU0IT
uonendosdde
anypuadxy uoneudoiddy jeul} Jo 9 ainypuadx3 uonendoaddy spung uoneudosddy
jenjoy Jeuld | seaimypuadx3 aouepsep |lendy jeuly | wowanA | jo Suys pasnipy
81/L102 6T/8102
wsKNoy Joj Supjlop g :awwesSoadgng
8€0 9T 8E09T %S VL 86S L €81 7T 8L 62 EI8 E {eect) 569 LT |elol
(4 [4 %0°00T - SOt 9T - 59T - S1asse jelueuy 10j Judwied
6TT 61T %0°00T - €1 £TE - €91 0sT juawdinba pue Alauyoey
6TT 61T %0°00T - €1€ €1€ - €91 0ST s19sse [ejide Jog sjuawhed
968 T 968 1 %5'8€E 865 L TAYA 4 §SETCT - (6192) L6 V1 58JIAI3S pue 5po0g)

610Z Yyaiely Lg papus seak ay) 4oy
ANIWILVLS NOILVINdONHddY

€€ 310N
WSIHINOL 40 INIFWIHVH3d




-¢8i -

¥18 4% %0001 - 4772 A 72 - €9 ¥8C sjuawAed Sunesado
66¥ S 667 S %0°00T - 606 6406 - 65V L ov9 T juawdojaasp pue Suiuel)
96 9T ¥96 9T %0°00T - 056 8T 056 8T - 0£6 8 02001 22Ud)sisqns pue [aAei]
- - - - - - (0s) 05 sasea| Sunesedo
L8€ L8€ %0001 - 140 Szt - (1€9) 952 sayjddns adiyo pue Bunuid ‘Alsuonels :ajqewnsue)
10T 10T %0001 - €T 1€ - 1z (1] ¥4 sa||ddns sjqewnsuoc)
- - %0°00T - 9T 91 - (s) 12 JuswueU]
- %0°00T - 6 6 - 6 - s291A4aS Pa2INosINo / yoddns pue Adualdy
L9871 S18%S %0°00T - (343 6YE - (1€1) (o214 51010BJIUOD
- %0'00T - 6SE 6S€E - 6SE - sa01M3s |eda
969 T 969 ¥1 %L'SS 809 9€9 L PILET - (ovs L1) ysT1E $92IAI95 AJIOSIADE PUE SSBUISNG 1SJUBYNSUOD
144% T - - - - - - $201AU95 JaIndwo)
oTP otv %0°00T - LLE LLE - {969) €01 (s130) uonedwnwuio)
62LC 62LC %0"00T - 69LC 69LC - z101 LSLT sanAnIe [Bjudwedaq Suliaie)
- - %0001 - 80t 30% - 80v - |eusa1xg 1$1503 Mpny
3 €€ %0°00T - vE 123 - (sT1) (348 s)asse Joul
8T T 98T T %0°'00T £v6 £v6 - 81€ 529 Suisiyanpy
T 1944 %0'00T 89v 89% - LEY 113 $93} SARRISIUIWLPY
¥8€ TS £€ESS %L'88 8L09 8T8 LY 968 €9 - 998 T 00 ¢S S3JIAI3S pue spooo
L618 L618 %Y ¥6 L8¥ 718 6698 - 9zs €LT8 SuolINGHIUOD |BROS
€68 T9 S0S 79 %E°86 S80T €579 859 €9 6TLE (929) S5 09 sadem pue salees
060 0L T0L0L %8'L6 TS T S8L0L LSETL 6TLE - 829 89 ssaAojdwa Jo uonesuadwo)
vivy 121 SE09ZT %6°E6 0s9 L €09 81T €52 92T 6zLE 998 T 859 02T syuawded Jua.n)
uoljedtyisse|d Jjuouody
978 197 004 99T %1°L6 S99 8 LTLT6Z Z8€E 00€ (t£29) - £59 90€ |exol
L9T 0ST 8€0 SST %8°96 ¥2ZT9 69% €8T €65 68T (8T 6) - 111 86T swweldold dAUIU| WSHINOL g
(86 1T (8612 %086 1217 €12 ¥T £69 7T 6L1 695 T 6176 7T SIOINIBS JONSIA WSUNOL ¢
ETE VY 9TE ¥ %9°56 150¢ ¥89 vir L o (i) {Lov ) 759 6% uollewIOjsuR ) pue JuRwdo|aAsQ asudduI €
90L TE 90L TE %0001 - T0¥ OE 107 O e 8SES 965 2¢ JuBWdo[3A3Q 324N0STY UBWNH WSUNOL

6102 Yosel LE Popus Jeak oy} 10y
INIWILVIS NOILLYRIdO¥MddY

WSKHNOL 40 INIWIHVdId

€€ 310A




~€84 -

Lz TILE %0°00T : LIV E LIV E TEL (te) 194 ¢ saakojdwa o uojresuadwor
16 1T 126 TT %0°00T - [31%] 6SE8 TEL (645 t) L0ZZT sjuawAed Juanngy
0004 000.4 % 000.4 000.4 000,34 000.4 0004 000.4 uonelyLsse|d dwouandy
uonedoidde
ainypuadxy voneldosddy jeus jo 9, ainupuadx3 spung uvopnetidosddy
lenpdy feuld | seainupuadxg aduepen |enjy jeuld | juawesa | jo Sunyys paisnipy
8t/L102 61/8T02
Juswadeuely s921A19€ Yoddng J0as wsnoy :T'p :awwesSoidgng
978 T9¢ 00£ 992 %1°L6 5998 LTILT6T Z8¢€ 00€ {tez9) - €59 90€ (21
SE b1 %0°00T - <6 6 - (43 - S19SSE [eIoUBUN 10) JUdIARY
- - - - - - - (o1) o1 $195Se 3|qISueiul J9Y10 pUB S1BMYOS
809 109 %0'00T - L6 L¥6 - 919 1€€ wswdinba pue Assuiydew Jaylo
132 EP9T - - - - - - - Jswdinba podsues )
152¢ 0sz¢ %0°00T - Ly Ly6 - 919 TEE uswdinba pue Assuiyoep
80F St 80F St %0°00T - TEE 67 TEE 6¢C - TEE 6¢C - s8uip|ing
80% S 80F St %0°001 - TEE 62 TEE 6¢C - TEE 62 - $34N3oNJ1s paxyy 1aylo pue sSulp|ing
659 LY 899 Lt %0°00T - 8Lz o€ 8LZ 0E - LE6 6T e syasse |eyded Joj sjuawied
(1740 121 %0°00T - LES LES - LES - Sijauaq jenos
0zt 171 %0°00T - LES LES - LS - sployasnoy
09s 099 %0°00T - [444 (444 - - (444 suoamnIsu) Jyold-uoN
99¢ LY 649 Ly %L°86 ST0T 6E6 SL 56 9L (000 01) {086 €2) €6 09T $9sHdIa1U3 31eAMd 03 SiajsuBl} JAYI0
99¢ LV 69 LY %L'86 ST0T 6E6 5L ¥S6 9L (000 0T1) {086 €£) €6 091 sasudIa)ua aleAld
99¢ L 649 LY %L'86 ST0T 6E6 SL ¥S6 9L (000 0T) {086 £2) €6 09T sasiidiaua aeald pue suonelodiod algngd
<19 v 9 v %0'00T - 964 99 964 99 - 8¥S T 8v e (sannua sssuisng-uou) sapuade jeyuawuedag
(45844 [A%:244 %0°00T - 964 99 96L 99 - 8rS Ty 144 {4 sunodde pue sauade (euawnedaq
85926 66 %E'66 S101 oL YT 65L €T (000 o1) {568 1€} ¥59 58T Sa|pIsqns pue siajsuel)
619 819 %0°00T - 15¢1 TS2T - 7521 - Buuny pue [ejuay
99L S 99/ S %0°00T - 901V {90V - £BE 083 € Salj|loey pue sanU3A

610Z Y21y LE papue tesk oy} 104
INFWILYLS NOILVINIOY DY

€€ JLON
WSRINOL 40 INIFWI1HYd3q




- ¥84 -

LLT Y 6LT ¥ %9°S6 L5072 (43244 680 9v (vvv) (ves 2} LTS 6Y syuawAed a.uny
0004 0004 % 0004 0004 0004 000,4 000 0004 uoledyIssepd dIWou0d3
uonendoidde
ainypuadxg uoneudoiddy Jeuy Jo 9% asnjppuadx3 uonendosddy spung uoneldolddy
{enyoy jeuld | seasmypuadx3 ERUTITLY {enlay jeuid | JudWAMA 30 3upjys paisnipy
8T/L102 61/8102
uonewIojsuel] pue Judwdolaaaq asudiag gy :swwesdosdgng
90L € 904 TE %0°00% - TO OE TOY 0E LT 8SES 965 7T el0L
v T - - - - - - s19s5€ [EIDURUL 104 JUBWARY
6€ 6¢ %0007 - 61T 61T - 61T - uawdinba pue Alaujyden
6€ 6€ %0°00T - 61T 61T - 6TT = syasse |ejiden Joj sjuaiuded
- - %0001 - LES LES - LES - Sp|oyasnoH
9P 19 v %0°00T - 8vZ v svivy - sve v sjunodoe pue sapuade [ejuswedag
ot ot %0°00T - S8LY S8LY - LES 8y v Sa|pIsqns pue siajsuel)
Z0r 9 wor 9 %0°00T - 8584 898 L b (4144 9LE € $3JIAISS pue SpooYH
6€9 12 6E9 TZ %0001 - 6E9 LT 6€9 LT FA 2 X4 (V744 L6 T soahojduia Jo uonesuadwod
160 8¢ Tv0 8¢ %0°00T - L6V ST L6Y ST (2144 0L Y 8Y7E 8T spuawAed jusiin)y
0004 000.4 % 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 0004 0004 uonedyisse]d Kwouody
uoneudosdde
ainypuadx3 uonendoiddy Jeuly Jo % amupuadxy uonepdoiddy spung uoneidoiddy
Jenyy |leuly | seainnpuadx3z asuelep lenyoy leuly | judwAMA Jo Suiyys paisnipy
8T/L102 6T/810¢
jJuawdo|anag 224N0S3Y UBWINY WSKNO] 1z :awwelSosdqns
€99 T €S9 CT %0°'00T - 056 8 0568 T€L {ost v) 649 TT €10l
(49 T %0'00T - 9 9 - 9 - §13SSE |elaueuyy Joj Juswied
091 091 %0007 - €Tt €11 - €11 - wswdinba pue Aisuiyden
091 09T %0001 €117 €T - £1T - syasse [epded 10y syuawided
095 095 %0°00T Uy (447 - - (447 suopmsul 1yosd-uoN
095 09s %0°00T oy Uy - - Ty S3|pisqns pue ssajsuel]
602 6 01z 6 %0'00T - f4:3:84 [4:3:24 - (8ss v) ovv 6 SSIIAITS pUE SpO0H

610Z Y218 LE papud 1edf 8y} 40}
AINIWILVIS NOILYINdO¥ddY

€€ 310N
WSIRINOL 40 INJFNI1HYd3a



-§81 -

6402 Youe LE papus teak oy} 104
ANIWILVIS NOILYINHOYddY

€€ 310N
WSRINOL 40 INJFWIYdVYdIa

aJnypuadx3y uonjeudosddy |euy §o % ainypuadx3 uoneudosddy spung uoneudoaddy
fenjoy |eul4 se wh-_u_v-._waXN duelep [enyy jeuly JUIWBNA jo M:_u.,—_-._m ﬂwum-..__u<
8tT/L102 6L/8102
awwei30.d ARUIIU| WSNO] 5" :FwwesSoidgns
. l8eTZ £86 1T %0°'86 1414 £TZ 2 £69 ¥T 64T 695 T 6v6 22 leloL
- - %0°00T - 89 89 - 89 - 5}3sse [eloueu) toj Juswhed
¥SZ vST %0°00T - 8¢ [4:14 ZET 0s uawidinba pue Aszuyre
- - - - - - - $31N32N.3s paxy Jsylo pue mm:_ﬁ__:m
214 psz %0°00T - [4:14 8¢ - [414 0s syasse [eyded Jof spuswhed
St St 2 - - - - - - SpioyasnoH
14 14 - - - - - - - S3IPISQNS pue sioysued]
Lesy FA4 4 %0001 - 8btr S 8y S - 69T 1T 6LT ¥ S3IIAISS pUe Spo0Y
19T L1 19T LT %V'L6 L4114 ST¥ 81 668 81 6.1 - 0zL 81 saaAojdws Jo uoiesuadwio)
889 1T 889 T %0°86 1414 €98 €T LVE HT 641 69C1T 668 ¢C syuawdied jusuin)
000.4 000, % 0004 000,4 000.4 000.4 0004 0004 uonesyisse|d djuiouody
uoneudosdde
aanypuadxy uonjerdosddy [euy 3o 9 aimipuadx3 uopendosddy spung uopeudoiddy
|enjay jeuty | sesinypuadxy ajuelep |enpy leuld UDWIA 30 Sunyys paisnipy
8t/L102 61/8102
S3IAJIS JOYSIA WISLINOY ' :awiesSoldgng
353 44 9TE vt %9°56 1502 v39 vt Loy (vt} (£9v 2) 759 61 jeloL
6 6 %0°00T - 81 8T - 8T - 5313SSE [elaueul 10} JUawihed
- - - - - - - {ot) or s1asse 9|qI8ueiu} JSY10 pue uemYyos
L9 9 %0°00T - 124 14 - 61T STT uawdinba pue Alaulyaeln
L9 L9 %0°00T - PET vEe - 60T ST siasse [ejided o} syuawhed
09 19 - - ps - - - - spjoyasnoH
09 19 - - - - - - SaIpISqNS pue sidjsues]
968 ¢ 868 ¢ % s6 8T 1 15 TA 74 €E¥ ST - (se€2) 878 LT S3J|AL3S pUe SPooo
182 6T 18261 %8'56 si8 18102 95012 (vtrv) (68T) 669 12 saaiojdwa jo uopesuadwiod




-984 -

_ f9t0ST 8€0 SST %8°96 vZT9 69V €8T £65 68T {rsT 6) - LLL 86T leyolL
TELT 0ELT %0001 - 661 661 - €€ 991 wawdinba pue Aadulyoeiy
80V S 80v St %0°00T - TEE 67 TEE 67 - TEE 6T - $24N1aN13s paxyy Jay3o pue s3uIp|ing
6€T LY 8ET LY %0'00T - 0€£S 62 0€S 6T - P9€ 6¢ 99T s19sse jeuded Jo) syuawied
99¢ LY 649 Ly %L°86 ST0T 6€6 GL 56 9L {000 01) {086 €£) ¥€6 09T sasiidJajus ajeaud pue suonesodiod dljgng
000 O 000 O %0°00T - 8vS 19 8YS 19 - 8vs Tv 0000¢ SUNOJI2E pue sauade |eyuawiedag
T8€ L8 v69 L8 %E"66 STOT L8V LET 20S 8ET (000 o1) (zer 2¢€) €6 08T S91pIsqns pue siaysuel]
0sE9 96Z 0T %Y'CS 968 ¥ 6LES SL2 0T - 890¢ L0z L SVIAIBS pUe SpooH
1676 0166 %186 €T¢ €/01T 98¢ 1T 918 - oLy ol saaAo|dwsa jo uonesuadwo)
L¥9 ST 90Z 0C %EIL 60T § (4148 195 1¢ 918 890 € LL9 LT sjuswaed Jua.n)

0004 000, % 000.d 000.4 0004 000.4 000.4 0004 uopeslyisse|s alIouod3

uonendoidde

6102 Yd1epy Lg papus 1eaf oy 1of
AINIWILYLS NOILVINHONddY

WSRINOL JO INJFWLYYVdIa

€€ 310N




-481 -

610Z Yodey Lg papus Jeaf oy} 40]
AINIWILVLS NOILYIMHOY Y

€€ 310N
WSIINOL 40 LNIWIHYdIa
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NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2019

Details of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after virement)

Details of these transactions can be viewed in the note “Transfers and subsidies”, as well as
Annexure 1 (A-E) to the annual financial statements.

Details of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after virement)

Details of these transactions can be viewed in note 1, “Annual appropriation”, to the annual financial
statements.

Details on payments for financial assets

Details of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the note “Payments for financial
assets” to the annual financial statements.

Explanations of material variances from amounts voted (after virement)

4.1 Per programme Final Actual Variance | Variance as a
appropriation | expenditure % of final
appropriation
R'000 R’'000 R'000 R’000

Programmel: Administration

Compensation of employees 142 979 138 175 4804 3.4%
Good and services 113 017 112 640 377 0.3%
Transfers and subsidies 1032 1034 (2) -0.2%
Payment for capital assets 9311 8761 560 5.9%
Payment for financial assets 119 120 (1) -0.8%
TOTAL 266 458 260 730 5728 2.1%

Explanation of variance - The bulk of this underspending lies within Compensation of Employees due to
strict policies adhered to by the Department to reduce expenditure on salaries and wages.

Final Actual Variance | Variance as a
appropriation | expenditure % of final
appropriation
R’000 R'000 R’000 R’000
Programme 2: Tourism Research, Policy and
International Relations
Compensation of employees 51590 51 066 524 1.0%
Good and services 21092 17554 3538 16.8%
Transfers and subsidies 1214535 1214375 160 0.0%
Payment for capital assets 906 906 - 0.0%
Payment for financial assets 7 7 - 0.0%
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TOTAL 1288130 1283908 4222 0.3%

Explanation of variance - The underspending is due to cost containment measures implemented by the
Department to reduce spending on Goods and Services during the financial year.

Final Actual Variance | Variance as a
appropriation | expenditure % of final
appropriation
R’000 R’000 R’000 R'000
Programme 3: Destination Development
Compensation of employees 53427 53426 1 0.0%
Good and services 224073 215674 8399 3.7%
Transfers and subsidies 63560 63560 - 0.0%
Payment for capital assets 65609 65609 - 0.0%
Payment for financial assets 178 178 - 0.0%
TOTAL 406 847 398 447 8 400 2.1%

Explanation of variance - The underspending is primarily related to projects payments to consultants for
research and advisory services which could not be processed as milestones where not reached as per
contractual agreements.

Final Actual Variance | Variance as a
appropriation | expenditure % of final
appropriation
R'000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Programme 4: Tourism Sector Support Services
Compensation of employees 72357 70785 1572 2.2%
Good and services 53896 47818 6078 11.3%
Transfers and subsidies 143759 142744 1015 0.7%
Payment for capital assets 30278 30278 - 0.0%
Payment for financial assets 92 92 - 0.0%
TOTAL 300382 291717 8 665 2.9%

Explanation of variance - The underspending is primarily due to the delays experienced in the finalisation of
contracts with project implementers of the Tourism Incentive Programme.
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4.2 Per economic classification

Current expenditure

Compensation of employees

Good and services

Transfers and subsidies

Departmental agencies and accounts
Public corporations and private enterprises
Foreign governments and international organisations
Non-profit institutions

Households

Payments for capital assets

Buildings and other fixed structures
Machinery and equipment

Software and other intangible assets
Payment for financial assets

TOTAL

Final Actual Variance | Varianceasa
appropriation | expenditure % of final
appropriation
R’000 R’000 R'000 R’000
320 353 313452 6901 2.2%
412 078 393 686 18 392 4.5%
1274023 1274023 - 0.0%
76 954 75939 1015 1.3%
2508 2348 160 6.4%
472 472 - 0.0%
68 929 68 931 (2) 0.0%
94 739 94 187 552 0.6%
8547 8549 (2) 0.0%
2818 2818 - 0.0%
396 397 (1) -0.3%
2261817 2 234 802 27 015 1.2%
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

REVENUE

Annual appropriation
Departmental revenue
Aid Assistance

TOTAL REVENUE
EXPENDITURE

Current expenditure
Compensation of employees
Goods and services

Total current expenditure
Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies

Aid Assistance

Total transfers and subsidies
Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible assets

Intangible assets

Total expenditure for capital assets

Payments for financial assets
TOTAL EXPENDITURE

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR

DEPARTMENT OF TOURISM
VOTE 33

for the year ended 31 March 2019

Note

w N =

~N

Reconciliation of net surplus/{deficit) for the year

Voted funds

Annual appropriation
Departmental revenue

Aid assistance

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR

13

2018/19 2017/18
R'000 R'000
2261817 2140156
2482 1138
22799 25987
2287 098 2167281
313 452 296 240
393 686 294 858
707 138 591 098
1421713 1320143
22799 25987
1444512 1346 130
102 736 221175
2818 1441
105 554 222 616
397 119

2 257 601 2159963
29 497 7318
27015 6 180
27015 | [6180
2482 1138

29 497 7318
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Note 2018/19 2017/18
R'000 R'000
ASSETS
Current assets 26 878 6 018
Cash and cash equivalents 9 25496 4830
Prepayments and advances 10 742 650
Receivables 11 640 538
Non-current assets 849 430
Receivables 11 849 | [430
TOTAL ASSETS 27727 6 448
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 27 212 6232
Voted funds to be surrendered to the revenue fund 12 27 015 6180
Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the revenue fund 13 170 6
Payables 14 27 46
Aid assistance unutilised 3 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 27 212 6232
NET ASSETS 515 216
Represented by:
Recoverable revenue 515 | 216
TOTAL 515 216
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Note 2018/19 2017/18

R'000 R'000
Recoverable revenue
Opening balance 216 252
Transfers: 299 (36)
Debts recovered {included in departmental receipts) (108) (107)
Debts raised 407 71
Closing balance 515 216
TOTAL 515 216

-193-



DEPARTMENT OF TOURISM
VOTE 33

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2019

Note
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts

Annual appropriated funds received
Departmental revenue received
Interest received

Aid assistance received

w NN

Net (increase)/decrease in working capital

Surrendered to revenue fund

Current payments

Payments for financial assets

Transfers and subsidies paid

Net cash flow available from operating activities 15

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

S0

Payments for capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2
Net cash flow from investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase/(decrease) in net assets
Net cash flow from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 16
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2018/19 2017/18

R'000 R'000
2287 054 2167 243
2261817 2 140 156
2311 996
127 104
22799 25987
(632) (498)
(8 498) (91 019)
(707 138) (591 098)
(397) (119)
(1444 512) (1346 130)
125 577 138 379
(105 554) (222 616)
44 38
(105 510) (222 578)
299 (36)
299 (36)
20 666 (84 235)
4 830 89 065

25 496 4 830
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Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which have been applied
consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. Management has concluded that the financial
statements present fairly the department’s primary and secondary information.

The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise indicated. Management has used
assessments and estimates in preparing the annual financial statements. These are based on the best information
available at the time of preparation.

Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the
financial statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA),
Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA.

1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash Standard.

2 Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

3 Presentation currency
Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the
functional currency of the department.

4 Rounding
Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand
(R’000).

5 Foreign currency translation
Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African Rands using
the spot exchange rates prevailing at the date of payment / receipt.

6 Comparative information

6.1 Prior period comparative information
Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial statements.
Where necessary figures included in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to
ensure that the format in which the information is presented is consistent with the format of the
current year's financial statements.

6.2 Current year comparison with budget

A comparison between the approved, final budget and actual amounts for each programme and
economic classification is included in the appropriation statement.

7 Revenue

71 Appropriated funds
Appropriated funds comprise of departmental allocations as well as direct charges against the
revenue fund (i.e. statutory appropriation).
Appropriated funds are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the
appropriation becomes effective. Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments budget process are
recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the adjustments become effective.
The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the relevant revenue fund at the reporting
date is recognised as a payable / receivable in the statement of financial position.

7.2 Departmental revenue
Departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received and is
subsequently paid into the relevant revenue fund, unless stated otherwise.
Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a payable in
the statement of financial position.

7.3 Accrued departmental revenue

Accruals in respect of departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the notes to the
financial statements when:

it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow
to the department; and

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.

Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable from
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collecting agents.
Write-offs are made according to the department'’s debt write-off policy.

Expenditure

8.1

Compensation of employees

8.1.1

Salaries and wages
Salaries and wages are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

8.1.2

Social contributions

Social contributions made by the department in respect of current employees are recognised in the
statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

Social contributions made by the department in respect of ex-employees are classified as transfers to
households in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

8.2

Other expenditure

Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments for capital
assets) is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. The expense
is classified as a capital expense if the total consideration paid is more than the capitalisation
threshold.

8.3

Accruals and payables not recognised

Accruals and payables not recognised are recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost at
the reporting date.

Accruals and payables not recognised are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the
goods are received or, in the case of services, when they are rendered to the department or in the
case of transfers and subsidies when they are due and payable.

Accruals and payables not recognised are measured at cost.

8.4

Leases

8.4.1

Operating leases

Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current expenditure in
the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

8.4.2

Finance leases

Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital expenditure in
the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements and are not
apportioned between the capital and interest portions.

Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured at the lower
of:

cost, being the fair value of the asset; or

the sum of the minimum lease payments made, including any payments made to acquire ownership
at the end of the lease term, excluding interest.

Aid Assistance

Aid assistance received

Aid assistance received in cash is recognised in the statement of financial performance when
received. In-kind aid assistance is recorded in the notes to the financial statements on the date of
receipt and is measured at fair value.

Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any unutilised funds from aid assistance that
are required to be refunded to the donor are recognised as a payable in the statement of financial
position.

9.2

Aid assistance paid

Aid assistance paid is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
Aid assistance payments made prior to the receipt of funds are recognised as a receivable in the
statement of financial position.

10

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement of financial position.

Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position as a current
liability.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
deposits held, other short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

- 196 -




DEPARTMENT OF TOURISM
VOTE 33

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2019

C11 Prepayments and advances

Prepayments and advances are recognised in the statement of financial position when the
department receives or disburses the cash.
Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost.
Prepayments and advances are expensed when there is a contractual obligation between the
department and the service providers. Details for such prepayments and advances are recorded in
the notes to the financial statements.

12 Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost plus accrued
interest, where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off. Write-offs are made
according to the department’s write-off policy.

13 Investments
Investments are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost.

[ 14 Financial assets

141 Financial assets (not covered elsewhere)
A financial asset is recognised initially at its cost plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of the financial asset.
At the reporting date, a department shall measure its financial assets at cost, less amounts already
settled or written-off, except for recognised loans and receivables, which are measured at cost plus
accrued interest, where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.

14.2 Impairment of financial assets
Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset, an estimation of the reduction in the
recorded carrying value, to reflect the best estimate of the amount of the future economic benefits
expected to be received from that asset, is recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

15 Payables
Loans and payables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost.

16 Capital Assets

16.1 Immovable capital assets
Immovable assets reflected in the asset register of the department are recorded in the notes to the
financial statements at cost or fair value where the cost cannot be determined reliably. Immovable
assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction are recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition.
Immovable assets are subsequently carried in the asset register at cost and are not currently subject
to depreciation or impairment.
Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for
use.
Additional information on immovable assets not reflected in the assets register is provided in the
notes to financial statements.

16.2 Movable capital assets
Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost. Movable
capital assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date
of acquisition.
Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the movable capital assets
are measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the movable assets are
measured at R1.
All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at
R1.
Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or
impairment.
Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when
ready for use.

16.3 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost. Intangible
assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair value as at the date of
acquisition.

Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the
department commences the development phase of the project.
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Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably, the intangible capital assets are
measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the intangible assets are
measured at R1. All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG)
may be recorded at R1.

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject fo depreciation or impairment.
Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for
use.

16.4

Project Costs: Work-in-progress

Expenditure of a capital nature is initially recognised in the statement of financial performance at cost
when paid.

Amounts paid towards capital projects are separated from the amounts recognised and accumulated
in work-in-progress until the underlying asset is ready for use. Once ready for use, the total
accumulated payments are recorded in an asset register. Subsequent payments to complete the
project are added to the capital asset in the asset register.

Where the department is not the custodian of the completed project asset, the asset is transferred to
the custodian subsequent to completion.

17

Provisions and Contingents

171

Provisions

Provisions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a present legal or
constructive obligation to forfeit economic benefits as a result of events in the past and it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. The provision is measured
as the best estimate of the funds required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

17.2

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a possible
obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the department or
when there is a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

17.3

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when a possible asset arises
from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not within the control of the department.

17.4

Commitments

Commitments (other than for transfers and subsidies) are recorded at cost in the notes to the financial
statements when there is a contractual arrangement or an approval by management in a manner that
raises a valid expectation that the department will discharge its responsibilities thereby incurring
future expenditure that will result in the outflow of cash.

18

Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the statement of financial position until such time as the
expenditure is either:

approved by Parliament with funding and the related funds are received; or

approved by Parliament without funding and is written off against the appropriation in the statement of
financial performance; or

transferred to receivables for recovery.

Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised expenditure.

19

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when
confirmed. The amount recorded is equal to the total value of the fruitiess and or wasteful
expenditure incurred.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes to the financial statements when it is
resolved or transferred to receivables for recovery.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be
recoverable and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

20

Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed. The

- 198 -




DEPARTMENT OF TOURISM
VOTE 33

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2019

amount recorded is equal to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is impracticable
to determine, in which case reasons therefor are provided in the note.

Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant authority,
transferred to receivables for recovery or not condoned and is not recoverable.

Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and
are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

21

Changes in accounting policies, accounting estimates and errors

Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have been applied retrospectively in
accordance with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the
period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change in policy. In such instances the
department shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest
period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS requirements.
Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in
accordance with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the
period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the error. In such cases the department shall
restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which
retrospective restatement is practicable.

22

Events after the reporting date

Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted for in the
financial statements. The events after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting events
after the reporting date have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

23

Principal-Agent arrangements

The department is party to a principal-agent arrangement for Expanded Public Works Programme
and Tourism Incentive Programme projects. In terms of the arrangement the department is the
principal and is responsible for the appointment of an Implementing Agent.

All related revenues, expenditures, assets and liabilities have been recognised or recorded in terms
of the relevant policies listed herein. Additional disclosures have been provided in the notes to the
financial statements where appropriate.

24

Departures from the MCS requirements
Management has concluded that the financial statements present fairly the department’s primary and
secondary information and the department complied with the Standard.

25

Capitalisation reserve

The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities originating in a prior reporting
period but which are recognised in the statement of financial position for the first time in the current
reporting period. Amounts are recognised in the capitalisation reserves when identified in the current
period and are transferred to the National Revenue Fund when the underlying asset is disposed and
the related funds are received.

26

Recoverable revenue

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial year
becomes recoverable from a debtor in the current financial year. Amounts are either transferred to
the National Revenue Fund when recovered or are transferred to the statement of financial
performance when written-off.

27

Related party transactions

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting
entity and a related party. Related party transactions within the Minister's portfolic are recorded in the
notes to the financial statements when the transaction is not at arm’s length.

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the department. The number of individuals and their full
compensation is recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

28

Inventories (Effective from date determined in a Treasury Instruction)

At the date of acquisition, inventories are recorded at cost price in the statement of financial
performance.

Where inventories are acquired as part of a non-exchange transaction, the cost of inventory is its fair

value at the date of acquisition.
Inventories are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value or where

- 199 -




DEPARTMENT OF TOURISM
VOTE 33

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2019

intended for distribution (or consumed in the production of goods for distribution) at no or a nominal
charge, the lower of cost and current replacement value.
The cost of inventories is assigned by using the weighted average cost basis.

29

Public-Private Partnerships

Public Private Partnerships are accounted for based on the nature and or the substance of the
partnership. The transaction is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policies.

A summary of the significant terms of the PPP agreement, the parties to the agreement, and the date
of commencement thereof together with the description and nature of the concession fees received,
the unitary fees paid, rights and obligations of the department are recorded in the notes to the
financial statements.

30

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the department. The Special Advisor to the Executing
Authority is not part of the key management personnel as he/she should refrain from interfering in the
administration and management of the department. The number of individuals and their full
compensation is recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

31

Employee benefits
The value of each major class of employee benefit obligation (accruals, payables not recognised and
provisions) is disclosed in the Employee benefits note.
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Included are funds appropriated in terms of the Appropriation Act (and the Adjustments Appropriation Act) for
national departments (voted funds):

Administration

Tourism Research, Policy
and International Relations
Destination Development
Tourism Sector Support

Services
TOTAL

Departmental revenue

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets
Interest, dividends and rent on land

Sales of capital assets
Transactions in financial assets and liabilities

TOTAL DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE COLLECTED

2.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets

Sales of goods and services produced by the Department
Sales by market establishment

Other sales

TOTAL

Interest, dividends and rent on land

Interest
TOTAL

Sale of capital assets

Tangible assets
Machinery and equipment

TOTAL

2018/19 2017/18
Final Actual Funds Funds not Final Appropriation
Appropriation Received requested/ Appropriation  received
not received
R’000 R’000 R’'000 R’000 R'000
266 607 266 607 - 241 878 241878
1288 130 1288 130 - 1197 141 1197 141
406 698 406 698 - 434 437 434 437
300 382 300 382 - 266 700 266 700
2261817 2261817 - 2 140 156 2140 156
Note 2018/19 2017/18
R'000 R’000
2.1 164 160
2.2 127 104
2.3 44 38
2.4 2147 836
2482 1138
Note 2018/19 2017/18
2 R’000 R’000
164 160
70 71
94 89
164 160
Note 2018/19 2017/18
2 R’000 R'000
127 104
127 104
Note 2018/19 2017/18
2 R’000 R'000
44 38
27.2 | 44 | |38
44 38
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Transactions in financial assets and liabilities

Note 2018/19 2017/18
2 R’000 R'000
Other receipts, including recoverable revenue 2 147 836
TOTAL 2147 836
Aid assistance
2018/19 2017/18
R’'000 R’000
Opening balance - -
Prior period error - -
As restated - -
Transferred from statement of financial performance - -
Paid during the year - -
CLOSING BALANCE - -
Aid assistance expenditure per economic classification
2018/19 2017/18
Annex 1G R'000 R’000
Transfers and subsidies 22799 25987
Total aid assistance expenditure 22799 25987
Compensation of employees
Salaries and wages
Note 2018/19 2017/18
4 R’'000 R’'000
Basic salary 217 684 205 063
Performance award 3773 3849
Service-based 113 829
Compensative/circumstantial 2449 2695
Periodic payments 1181 777
Other non-pensionable allowances 51527 48783
TOTAL 276 727 261 996
Note:
Periodic payments include part time appointed Ministerial Advisors.
4.2 Social contributions
Note 2018/19 2017/18
Employer contributions 4 R’000 R’000
Pension 28114 26121
Medical 8568 8083
Bargaining council 43 40
TOTAL 36725 34 244
TOTAL COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES 313 452 296 240
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Average number of employees 470 515
Goods and services

Note 2018/19 2017/18

R’000 R’000

Administrative fees 645 669
Advertising 2542 4018
Minor assets 5.1 870 622
Bursaries (employees) 845 1448
Catering 5411 5694
Communication 5720 5240
Computer services 52 10273 11705
Consultants: Business and advisory services 23621 22934
Legal services 827 194
Contractors 114 542 5401
Agency and support/outsourced services 434 73
Entertainment 80 15
Audit cost — external 53 6 551 6 086
Fleet services 1667 1324
Consumables 5.4 4012 4464
Operating leases 43 260 35738
Rental and hiring 4228 1179
Property payments 5.5 4 106 3984
Travel and subsistence 5.6 53 524 43120
Venues and facilities 9535 13 843
Training and development 95 273 123 129
Other operating expenditure 5.7 5720 3978
TOTAL 393 686 294 858

Note:

- There was a decrease of R27,856 million in Training and Development expenditure. This is due to a decrease in
the budget allocation for Training and Development for Working for Tourism which accounts for the bulk of the
expenditure for this item. Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP} project’s training is included in the item
Training and Development.

- The increase in expenditure for Travel and Subsistence and Rental and hiring is attributable to an increase in
stake holder engagements, including Imbizos, during the financial year. The increase in expenditure for Legal
services is due to increase in the number of cases defended.

- The decrease in expenditure for Advertising is attributable to a reduction in adverts placed for recruitment. The
decrease in Bursaries (employees) expenditure is due to the Department reducing the number of new bursaries.
There were fewer events requiring procurement of Venues and facilities hence the decrease in expenditure.

Minor assets

Note 2018/19 2017/18

5 R’000 R’000
Tangible assets 870 622
Machinery and equipment 866 603
Transport Assets 4 19
TOTAL 870 622
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Computer services

Note  2018/19 2017/18

5 R’'000 R’000
State Information Technology Agency (SITA) computer services 7 137 7 184
External computer service providers 3136 4521
TOTAL 10 273 11 705
Audit cost — external

Note  2018/19 2017/18

5 R’000 R’000
Regularity audits 6551 6 086
TOTAL 6551 6 086
Consumables

Note  2018/19 2017/18

5 R’'000 R’000
Consumable supplies 1688 1422
Uniform and clothing 330 326
Household supplies 672 746
Building material and supplies 183 -
Communication accessories 3 1
IT consumables 292 159
Other consumables 208 190
Stationery, printing and office supplies 2324 3042
TOTAL 4012 4464
Property payments

Note  2018/19 2017/18

5 R’'000 R’000
Municipal services 2 366 2769
Property management fees 114 318
Property maintenance and repairs 1495 689
Other (cleaning and fumigation services) 131 208
TOTAL 4106 3984
Travel and subsistence

Note 2018/19 2017/18

5 R’000 R’000
Local 46 757 36772
Foreign 6767 6348
TOTAL 53524 43120
Other operating expenditure

Note  2018/19 2017/18

5 R’000 R’000
Professional bodies, membership and subscription fees 1796 579
Resettlement costs 568 1031
Other {printing & publications and courier services) 3356 2368
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TOTAL 5720 3978
Payments for financial assets
Note  2018/19 2017/18
R'000 R’000
Other material losses written off 6.1 344 118
Debts written off 6.2 53 1
TOTAL 397 119
Other material losses written off
Note  2018/19 2017/18
Nature of losses 6 R’000 R’000
Losses (damage to vehicles due to accidents) 344 118
TOTAL 344 118
Debts written off
Note 2018/19 2017/18
Nature of debts written off 6 R'000 R'000
Other debt written off (departmental debt) 53 ‘ 1
TOTAL 53 1
Transfers and subsidies
2018/19 2017/18
Note R’000 R’000
Departmental agencies and accounts Annex 1A 1274023 1174 097
Public corporations and private enterprises Annex 1B 75939 47 966
Foreign governments and international organisations Annex 1C 2348 6394
Non-profit institutions Annex 1D 472 560
Households Annex 1E 68 931 91126
TOTAL 1421713 1320143
Expenditure for capital assets
Note 2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000
Tangible assets 102 736 221175
Building and other fixed structures 29.1 94 187 214 526
Machinery and equipment 27.1 8 549 6 649
Intangible assets 2 818 1441
Software 28.1 (2818 | [1441
TOTAL 105 554 222 616

Note:
Expenditure of R94,187 million under Buildings and other fixed ’
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structures are for the Expanded Public Works Programme and
Tourism Incentive Programme infrastructure projects.

Analysis of voted funds utilised to acquire capital assets

2018/19 2017/18

R’000 R’000
Tangible assets 102 736 221175
Building and other fixed structures 94 187 214 526
Machinery and equipment 8 549 6 649
Intangible assets 2818 1441
Software | 2818 | 1441
TOTAL 105 554 222 616
Finance lease expenditure included in expenditure for capital assets

2018/19 2017/18
Tangible assets R’000 R’000
Machinery and equipment 2201 1304
TOTAL 2201 1304
Cash and cash equivalents

2018/19 2017/18

R’000 R’000
Consolidated Paymaster general account 42 098 23126
Cash receipts - 1
Disbursements (16 667) (18 362)
Cash on hand 65 65
TOTAL 25 496 4 830
Note:

All cash and cash equivalent held by the department are available for use.

An amount of R140 053,42 was deposited into the departmental bank account (ABSA) and the interface with the
Department's Paymaster General account took place in April 2019. As the Department is on modified cash

accounting, this amount is not part of the cash and cash equivalent as stated above.

Prepayments and advances

Travel and subsistence
Advances paid {Not expensed)
TOTAL

10.1 Advances paid (Not expensed)
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Note Balance asat 1 Less: Amount Add: Current Balance as at 31
April 2018 expensed in current  Year advance March 2019
year payments
10 R’000 R’000 R’000 R'000
National departments 623 (1764) 1800 659
Total 623 {1764) 1 800 659
Advances paid (Not expensed)
Note Balance as at 1 Less: Amount Add: Current Balance as at 31
April 2017 expensed in current  Year advance March 2018
year payments
10 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
National departments 259 (1776) 2140 623
Total 259 (1776) 2140 623

Note:
Advance payments were made to the Department of International Relations and Cooperation for travel related
bookings for the department.

10.2 Prepayments (Expensed)
Amount asat 1 Less: Received in Add: Current Year  Amount as at 31

April 2018 the current year prepayments March 2019
R'000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Goods and services 12 254 (32 825) 25 449 4878
Capital assets - - - -
Total 12 254 {32 825) 25449 4 878

Prepayments (Expensed)
Amount as at 1 Less: Received in Add: Current Year Amount as at 31

April 2017 the current year prepayments March 2018
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Goods and services 30 000 (60 389) 42 643 12 254
Capital assets 21000 {21 000) - -
Total 51000 (81 389) 42 643 12 254

Note:
Prepayments are paid to the implementing agents of the Expanded Public Works Programme and Destination

Development projects as per service level agreement to commence the projects.

The following Expanded Public Works Programme and Destination Development projects received prepayments
for commencement of the projects

Balanceas | Less: Amount | Add: Current Balance
Project Name at 1 April expensed in year as at
2018 current year prepayments 31March
R’000 2019
R'000 R'000 R’000
Goods and Services:
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Tourism Green Coast Project 12 254 10 552 - 1702
Data Collectors Project Cluster 1 - EC - - 1372 1372
Data Collectors Project Cluster 5 - FS & NC - - 1804 1804
KZN-Lilani Security Phase 3 - 70 70 -
KZN-Muzi Pan Security Project Phase 2 - 70 70 -
EC-Western Tembuland Security - 70 70 -
LP-Ngovhe Cultural Centre Security Phase 2 - 70 70 -
LP-Ngovhe Cultural Centre Security Phase 1B - 119 119 -
FS-Qwagwa Guesthouse Security Project - 70 70 -
NW-Manyane Lodge Security Phase 3 - 241 241 -
EC-Kiwane Security Project Phase 3 - 239 239 -
EC-Qatywa Security Project Phase 2 - 139 139 -
EC-Six Day Hiking Day Security Phase 2 - 190 190 -
LPMukumbani Waterfalls Security Phase 3 - 240 240 -
LP-Ngove Cultural Centre Security Phase 3 - 240 240 -
LP-Ngove Cleaning Services Phase 2 - 182 182 -
LP-Tisane Security Phase 4 - 244 244 -
LP-VhaTsonga Security Phase 4 - 246 246 -
NW-Manyane Cleaning Services - 210 210 -
EC-Mthonsi Lodge Security Project-Ph 2 - 70 70 -
KZN-Hospitality Youth Training Programme Ph 2 - 12 000 12 000 -
EC-Hospitality Youth Training Programme Ph2 - 1188 1188 -
MP-Hospitality Youth Training Programme Ph 2 - 2079 2079 -
LP-Phiphidi Waterfall Project-Horticulture and
Assistant Housekeeper - 109 109 -
LP-Phiphidi Waterfall Project-Construction Painting - 130 130 -
LP-Phiphidi Waterfall Project-Construction Plumbing | - 71 71 -
WC-Agulhas -Construction Plumbing, Tiling and
Plastering - 286 286 -
NC-Platfontein Lodge-Plant Production - 43 43 -
NC-Platfontein Lodge-Assistant Housekeeper - 54 54 -
NC-Platfontein Lodge-Construction Plumbing - 83 83 -
NC-Platfontein Lodge-Construction Painting - 105 105 -
GP-Hospitality Youth Training Programme Ph 2 - 3415 3415 -
Sub Total 12 254 (32 825) 25 449 4878
10.3 Advances paid (Expensed)
Amountasatl Less: Expensed in  Add: Current Year  Amount as at 31
April 2018 the current year advances March 2019
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Public entities 161 820 (21 798) 174 103 314 125
Total 161 820 (21 798) 174 103 314 125

Advances paid (Expensed)

Public entities

Amount as at 1
April 2017
R’000

41775
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Total

41775

(41775)

161 820

161 820

Note:

Advances are paid to the implementing agents of the Expanded Public Works Programme and Destination
Development projects as per service level agreement to commence the projects.

The following Expanded Public Works Programme and Destination Development projects received advance

payments for commencement of the projects

Balance as | Less: Amount | Add: Current Balance
Entity / Project Name at 1 April expensed in year advances | as at 31
2018 current year March
R’000 R’000 2019
R’000 R’000
Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife — KZN-Wildlife Roofing of 5
resorts 4733 1559 - 3174
Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife — KZN Ezemvelo Midmar
Resort upgrade project 18 009 3524 - 14 485
Trade and Investment KwaZulu-Natal (TIKZN) 16 478 394 3522 19 606
South African National Biodiversity Institute
(SANBI) 35000 - - 35 000
Eastern Cape Parks & Tourism Agency (ECPTA) 10 000 981 - 9019
Constitutional Hill (CONHILL) 12 000 481 - 11519
South African National Parks (SANParks) 28 000 3788 - 24 212
CapeNature 16 000 - - 16 000
Eastern Cape Parks & Tourism Agency (ECPTA) —
EC-Tourism Safety Monitors 9 600 7 398 - 2202
Mpumalanga Tourism Authority (MPTA) — MP-
Tourism Safety Monitors 12 000 - - 12 000
Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife - - 8090 8 090
Coega - - 12 870 12 870
Maropeng a'Afrika - 3173 7 545 4 372
Tourism KwaZulu-Natal (TKZN) - - 10 450 10 450
SANPARKS - Dinosaur Interpretation Center -
EPWP Beneficiaries - - 4 554 4554
SANPARKS - Pilot Infrastructure Maintenance - - 110 000 110 000
SANPARKS - Tsitsikamma Big Tree Project -
EPWP Beneficiaries - - 766 766
Square Kilometre Array (SKA) - 500 500 -
Mpumalanga Tourism and Parks Agency- Universal
Access Project - - 7 730 7730
Eastern Cape Parks and Tourism Agency-
Universal Access Project - - 1436 1436
Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife - Universal Access Project | - - 1979 1979
SANPARKS - Business incubation of Emerging
Maintenance Contractors - 4 661 4 661
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Sub Total

Receivables

Note
Claims recoverable

Recoverable expenditure

Staff debt
TOTAL

11.1 Claims recoverable

National departments
TOTAL

161 820 (21 798) 174 103

Recoverable expenditure {disallowance accounts)

Departmental suspense accounts (Damage Vehicles &

Disallowance account)
TOTAL

Staff debt

Departmental debt account

TOTAL

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance
Less amounts recovered
TOTAL

Voted funds to be surrendered to the revenue fund

314 125
2018/19 2017/18
Current Non- Current Non- Total
Current Total Current
R'000 R'000 R’'000 R’000 R’000 R’000
11.1 - - - 96 - 26
Annex 3
11.2 430 485 915 345 261 606
11.3 210 364 574 97 169 266
640 849 1489 538 430 968
Note 2018/19 2017/18
11 R’000 R’000
- 96
- 96
Note  2018/19 2017/18
11 R’000 R'000
915 606
915 606
Note  2018/19 2017/18
11 R’000 R'000
574 266
574 266
Note 2018/19 2017/18
11 R’000 R’000
- 40
- (40)
2018/19 2017/18
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Opening balance

Prior period error

As restated

Transfer from statement of financial performance (as restated)
Paid during the year

CLOSING BALANCE

Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the revenue fund

Opening balance

Prior period error

As restated

Transfer from statement of financial performance (as restated)
Paid during the year

CLOSING BALANCE

Payables — current

Note
Other payables 14.1
TOTAL
Other payables

Note

14

Salary-related payables
TOTAL

Net cash flow available from operating activities

Net surplus/(deficit) as per statement of financial performance

Add back non-cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities
(Increase)/decrease in receivables — current

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances
Increase/{decrease) in payables — current

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Expenditure on capital assets

Surrendered to revenue fund

Net cash flow generated by operating activities

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes

Consolidated Paymaster general account
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R'000 R’000

6 180 89 870
6 180 89 870
27015 6 180

(6 180) (89 870)
27015 6 180
2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000

6 17

6 17
2482 1138
(2318) (1149)
170 6
2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000
27 46

27 46
2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000
27 46

27 46
2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000

29 497 7318

96 380 131 061
(521) (261)
(92) (266)
(19) 29

(44) (38)

105 554 222 616
(8 498) (91019)
125 877 138 379
2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000
42098 23126
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Cash receipts - 1
Disbursements {16 667) (18 362)
Cash on hand 65 65
TOTAL 25 496 4 830

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities

2018/19 2017/18
R'000 R’000
Liable to Nature
Housing loan guarantees Employees Annex2A 26 26
Claims against the Department Annex 2B 4 389 4564
Intergovernmental payables (unconfirmed balances) Annex 4 - 3138
TOTAL 4415 7728

The Department has only one housing guarantee. There is no possibility of any outflow or reimbursement.

Due to the sensitivity of claims against the Department that are currently within the legal domain, no indication
can be provided on the possible outflow or reimbursement.

Contingent assets

2018/19 2017/18
Nature of contingent asset R’000 R’000
Been Around GP Advert Consulting CC — non-performance/breach of
contract 2 805 2 805
Bonwelong Skills Development CC, Mr. Inama and Nedbank (Pty) Ltd —
refund of money advanced for training projects. 9930 9930
Total 12 735 12 735
Commitments
2018/19 2017/18
Current expenditure R’000 R'000
Approved and contracted 461 989 397 198
Approved but not yet contracted 249 322 -
711311 397 198
Capital expenditure
Approved and contracted 240 280 266 565
240 280 266 565
TOTAL COMMITMENTS 951591 663 763

The total commitments longer than a year amount to R826,301 million. This includes Expanded Public Works
Programme multi-year contract payments for training and infrastructure projects - R554,765 million; Tourism
Incentive Programme projects linked to energy efficiency, international marketing access support and destination
development - R256,400 million and R15,136 million for other facilities, security and advisory consulting services.
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Accruals and payables not recognised

19.1 Accruals

2018/19 2017/18
R'000 R'000
Listed by economic classification 30 days 30+ days Total Total
Goods and services 5371 - 5371 5786
Transfers and subsidies - 692 692 425
Capital assets 251 9 260 5654
Other (assets and liabilities) - - - 243
TOTAL 5622 701 6323 12108
2018/19 2017/18
Listed by programme level R’000 R’000
Administration 2123 3057
Tourism Research, Policy and International Relations 1229 429
Destination Development 743 749
Tourism Sector Support Services 1996 7 630
Other (assets and liabilities) 232 243
TOTAL 6323 12 108
19.2 Payables not recognised
2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000
Listed by economic classification 30 days 30+ days Total Total
Goods and services 1225 6 1231 6312
Capital - - - 519
Other (compensation of employees) - - - 25
TOTAL 1225 6 1231 6 856
2018/19 2017/18
Listed by programme level R’'000 R’000
Administration 500 4182
Tourism Research, Policy and International Relations 161 117
Destination Development 206 2202
Tourism Sector Support Services 364 355
TOTAL 1231 6 856
2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000
Annex
Confirmed balances with other departments 4 244 1764
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TOTAL 244 1764

Material accruals (above R100 000) relate to the following:

Business and Advisory Services R 701 848,70; Catering: Departmental Activities R 134 857,43, Travel and
subsistence: Domestic R 3 137 744,27; Venues and facilities R 409 986,75; Telephone Account R 232 424,93;
Machinery and Equipment R 110 925,73; External Computer Services R 141 134,00;

TIP Incentive projects R 692 338,57.

Employee benefits

2018/19 2017/18

R’000 R’000
Leave entitlement 12 181 12101
Service bonus (13™ cheque) 8033 7 897
Performance awards 4 805 4273
Capped leave commitments 4221 4309
Provision for long service awards 42 79
TOTAL 29282 28 659

Note:
At this stage the department is not able to reliably measure the long term portion of the long service awards.

Due to the utilization of leave within the first quarter of the leave cycle (leave taken without any leave credits
available) there is a negative leave entitlement amounting to R502,462.07.

Finance lease expenditure

Machinery
2018/19 and

equipment  Total
Not later than 1 year 817 817
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 268 268
Total lease commitments 1085 1085

Machinery
2017/18 and

equipment  Total
Not later than 1 year 1327 1327
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 1261 1261
Total lease commitments 2588 2 588

General description of the material leasing arrangements:
Finance lease commitments include photocopy machines. The lease periods for photocopiers is usually 36 months.
No vehicles are leased.

No asset of the Department is sub-leased. Restrictions on finance leases for photocopier machines are imposed on
the Department and included maintenance and repairs.
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22. lrregular expenditure
Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

Note 2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R'000
Opening balance 271 -
Prior period error -
As restated 271 -
Add: Irregular expenditure — relating to prior year 13 426 271
Add: Irregular expenditure — relating to current year 13 096 -
Less: Prior year amounts condoned (271) -
Closing balance 26 522 271
Analysis of awaiting condonation per age classification
Current year 13 096 271
Prior years 13 426 -
Total 26 522 271
22.2 Details of irregular expenditure — added current year {relating to
current and prior years)
2018/19
Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings R’000
EC - Hospitality Youth Training Programme - Tender irregularity — SAPS case 561
opened
Local content not included in request for quotation - Procurement process 679
non compliance
Three quotations not obtained by DIRCO — Request compliance by DIRCO 125
Three quotations not obtained — Procurement process non compliance 346
Three quotations not obtained by Implementing Agents — Procurement
process non compliance 24 811
Total 26 522
22.3 Details of irregular expenditure condoned
2018/19
Incident Condoned by (condoning authority) R’000
Non-compliance with SCM prescripts Accounting Officer 271
Total 271

22.4  Prior period error _215.
Note  2017/18

Relating to 2017/2018 R'000
Irregular expenditure - Non-compliance with SCM prescripts 271
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Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
23.1 Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Note 2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R’000
Opening balance 104 200 -
Prior-period error '
As restated 104 200 -
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure — relating to prior year 15631 104 235
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure — relating to current year 712 1030
Less: Amounts resolved (703) (1 065)
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting resolution 119 840 104 200
Analysis of awaiting condonation per age classification
Current 20 -
Capital 104 200 104 200
Total
104 220 104 200
Analysis of current year’s fruitless and wasteful expenditure
2018/19
Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal R’000
proceedings

Late cancellation/no-show/flight No disciplinary steps required —
amendments with regard to travel investigation conducted and expenditure
bookings. recovered or condoned. 723
Terminated project: Tyolomnqga 5705
Terminated project: Cebe Camp 6 368
Terminated project: Tlokwe N12
Cuitural Village 3547
TOTAL 16 343

Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure under investigation (not in the main note)

2018/19
R’'000
Late cancellation/no-show/flight amendments with regard to travel 2
bookings
TOTAL 2

23.4 Prior period error
Note 2017/18
Relating to 2017/2018 R’000

Expanded Public Works Projects-CWIP - Difference between expenditure and 104 200
revalued amounts

Total 104 200
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Related-party transactions

Payments made to South African Tourism 2018/19 2017/18
R'000 R’'000
Tourism Market Access 25707 991
Tourism Indaba Support - 1746
TOTAL 25707 2737
Note

South African Tourism is a Public Entity of the Department under the Minister's portfolio. Programme 2:
Tourism Research, Policy and Intemational Relations; sub programme South African Tourism’s transfer
payment has been included in Annexure 1A and 1B to the financial statements.

Key management personnel

No. of 2018/19 2017/18

individuals R’000 R'000
Political office-bearers 2 4379 41385
Officials:
Level 15to 16 5 8280 7879
Level 14 15 19620 17 893
TOTAL 32279 30157
26. Provisions

2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R'000
Expanded Public Works Programme — Final completion report
not submitted or signed off. Retention fees outstanding. 7033 6517
TOTAL 7 033 6517
26.1 Reconciliation of movement in provisions
2018/19 2017/1
R’000 8
R'000

Opening balance 6517 9001
Increase in provision - -
Change in provision due to change in estimation of inputs 516 (2 484)
Closing balance 7033 6517
Note:

The provisions relate to Expanded Public Works Programme projects retention fees outstanding. The payments of
the retention fees are made after the final completion report is submitted and the timing of these payments are
unknown. The estimate of the retention fees is based on a percentage of the implementing agent’s fees.
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27. Movable tangible capital assets

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Opening Value Additions  Disposals Closing
balance adjust- balance
ments
R’000 R’000 R’000 R'000 R’000
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 57 487 6 6 350 (2 097) 61746
Transport assets 8744 - 861 - 9 605
Computer equipment 27 550 - 4323 {1967) 29 906
Furniture and office equipment 12 664 6 306 (123) 12 853
Other machinery and equipment 8529 - 860 (7) 9382
TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL
ASSETS 57 487 6 6 350 (2097) 61746
27.1 Additions
ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
Cash Non-cash (Capital-work-  Received Total
in-progress current, not
current costs paid
and finance {paid current
lease year, received
payments) prior year)
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 8549 - (2201) 2 6 350
Transport assets 861 - - - 861
Computer equipment 4425 - - (102) 4323
Furniture and office equipment 306 - - - 306
Other machinery and equipment 2957 - (2 201) 104 860

TOTAL ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL
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ASSETS | 8549 - (2201) 2 6350 |
27.2 Disposals
DISPOSALS OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019
Sold for Non-cash Total Cash
cash disposals disposals received
{(actual)
R’000 R’000 R’000 R'000
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 1722 375 2097 44
Transport assets - - - -
Computer equipment 1722 245 1967 44
Furniture and office equipment - 123 123 -
Other machinery and equipment - 7 7 -
TOTAL DISPOSAL OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
1722 375 2 097 44
Movement for 2017/18
MOVEMENT IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2018
Opening Prior-period  Additions Disposals Closing
balance error balance
R’000 R’000 R'000 R'000 R’000
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 56310 5446 (4 269) 57 487
Transport assets 7 099 - 1676 (31) 8744
Computer equipment 26622 - 3141 (2 213) 27 550
Furniture and office equipment 13756 - 289 {1381) 12 664
Other machinery and equipment 8 833 - 340 {644) 8529
TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
56 310 - 5446 {4 269) 57 487

27.4  Minor assets

MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2019

Intangible
assets

-219 -

Machinery and Total

equipment



DEPARTMENT OF TOURISM
VOTE 33

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019

R'000 R’000 R’000
Opening balance 1374 7037 8411
Additions 1109 831 1940
Disposals - (257) (257)
TOTAL MINOR ASSETS 2 483 7 611 10094
Intangible  Machinery and Total
assets equipment
Number of R1 minor assets - 461 461
Number of minor assets at cost 2594 5949 8 543
TOTAL NUMBER MINOR ASSETS 2594 6410 9 004
27.5 MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2018
Intangible Machinery and Total
assets equipment
R'000 R’000 R’000
Opening balance 1374 7126 8 500
Additions - 597 597
Disposals - (686) {686)
TOTAL MINOR ASSETS 1374 7 037 8411
Intangible Machinery and Total
assets equipment
Number of R1 minor assets - 392 392
Number of minor assets at cost 444 6 404 6 848
TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR ASSETS 444 6796 7 240
Intangible capital assets
MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
Opening Value Additions Closing
balance adjustments balance
R’'000 R’000 R’000 R’000
SOFTWARE 5636 - 1823 7 459
TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 5636 - 1823 7 459

28.1 Additions

ADDITIONS TO INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
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Cash Non-cash Received current Total
year, not paid
(paid current
year, received

prior year)
R'000  R’000 R’000 R'000
SOFTWARE 2818 - (995) 1823
TOTAL ADDITIONS TO INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
2818 - (995) 1823

28.2 Movement for 2017/18
MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2018
Opening Prior-period  Additions Disposals Closing

balance error balance

R'000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
SOFTWARE 4195 - 1441 - 5636
TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 4 195 - 1441 - 5636

29. Immovable tangible capital assets
MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2019

Opening Additions Disposals Closing
balance balance
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES
Other fixed structures 263 139 96 255 (103 163) 256 231
TOTAL IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 263 139 96 255 (103 163) 256 231

Expanded Public Works Programme and Tourism Incentive Programme infrastructure projects completed and

handed over. 2018/19
R’000

NC-Platfontein Lodge 32 032
Stony Point Eco-centre 6 908
Kruger National Park - Skukuza rest camp solar PV project 21623
Kruger National Park - Lower Sabie rest camp solar PV project 14 224
Kruger National Park - Tshokwane picnic site solar PV project 20 042
Kruger National Park - Nkuhlu picnic site solar PV project 8334
TOTAL 103 163
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Expanded Public Works Programme and Tourism Incentive Programme infrastructure projects completed and not

handed over. 2018/19
R’000

EC-Aliwal Spa (2017/18) 7 879
EC-Cradock 4 Garden of Remembrance —Ph 2 (2017/18) 12 639
EC-Biko Heritage Trail Phase 2 (2017/18) 11 951
EC-Bulhoek Massacre Heritage Site-Ph 2 (2017/18) 10 384
EC-Wonkumuntu Tourism Project-Phase 3 (2017/18) 9434
EC-St Mathews & Bholotwa Tourism Project (2017/18) 19174
EC - Ubuntu Craft Market - Phase 2 7 585
EC — Hamburg Arts Colony 18 764
EC - Vusubuntu Cultral Village & Tour Info Phase 2 5651
EC - AbaThembu Cultural Calabash 11 326
EC - Bumbane 4717
EC - Mangondo 4725
EC — Beach Public Facilities & Boat Launching Site 4962
EC — Maluti Hiking Trail 4711
FS - Community Tourism and Crafts 1442
FS - Masilonyana Visitor Information Centre 3746
FS — Information and Business Centre 5638
FS - Witsieshoek Mountain Hotel 25444
GP - Alexandra Mandela Yard Project 6 157
KZN - Tourism Ntuzuma Attractions Phase 1 3280
KZN-Tourism Ntuzuma Attractions-Phase 2 3 861
KZN - Isibhubhu Project 14 400
KZN - Muzi Pan Canoeing 974
LP — Ngove Cultural Centre & Theatre 9434
MP - Middelburg Tourism Information Centre 5608
MP - Huntington Village Tourism Project (Phase 2) 3170
MP - Barberton 12 670
NW - The Pampierstad Recreational Park 1135
NW - N12 Treasure Route 2767
NW - Lehurutshe Bird & Supingstad Trophy Hunting 2799
WC-Tourism Development Programme for Atlantis (Phase 1) 1742
WC-Tourism Development Programme for Atlantis (Phase 2) 9 832
WC - Agulhas Project 8230
TOTAL 256 231

29.1 Additions

ADDITIONS TO IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

MARCH 2019

BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES
Other fixed structures

TOTAL ADDITIONS TO IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Cash Non-cash (Capital work- Total
in-progress
current cost)

R’000 R’000 R'000 R’000

- 96 255 - 96 255

- 96 255 - 96255 |
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- 96 255 - 96 255
29.2  Disposals
DISPOSALS OF IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2019
Non-cash Total Cash
disposals disposals received
(actual)
R’000 R'000 R’000
BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES 103 163 103 163 .
Other fixed structures | 103 163 103163 | |-
TOTAL DISPOSAL OF IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
103 163 103 163 -
29.3 Movement for 2017/18
MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
Opening Prior period  Additions Disposals Closing
balance error balance
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R'000
Other fixed structures 1835 - 496 343 (235 039) 263 139
TOTAL IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
1835 - 496 343 (235 039) 263 139
29.3.1 Prior period error
Note 2017/18
Nature of prior period error R'000

Relating to 2017/18 Immovable Capital Assets
Additions understated — Completed assets not accounted for
Disposals understated — Disposals not accounted for
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Total prior period errors 199 086
Capital Work-in-progress
CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AS AT 31 MARCH 2019
Opening Current Ready for Closing
balance Year WIP use (Assets balance
1 April 2018 tothe AR)/ 31 March
Contracts 2019
terminated/
Note Adjustment
Annexure 5 R’000 R'000 R’000 R’000
Buildings and other fixed structures 295 235 66 285 (125 174) 236 346
TOTAL 295 235 66 285 (125 174) 236 346
Projects - Ready for use (Assets to the AR) / Contracts terminated/
2018/19
R’000
Terminated projects
EC-Cebe Campsite Ph2 (9 364)
EC-Motherwell Eco Tourism Development Phase 2 (5329)
EC-Tyolomnga Estuary (8 667)
NW — Tiokwe N12 Cultural Village (5 559)
Sub total | (28 919)
Plus: Non cash (note 29.1) | (96 255)
TOTAL (125 174)
Age analysis on ongoing projects Number of projects 2018/2019
Planned, Planned, Total
construction | construction | R'000
not started started
0to 1lyear 5 - 3172
1to 3 year(s) 16 3 58 357
3 to 5years 1 6 67 073
Longer than 5 years - 18 107 744
TOTAL 22 27 236 346
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for the year ended 31 March 2019

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Included in Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) are 23 projects that were stopped/stalled. Of these 23 projects 18 are
over 5 years. The department has transferred R762,929 million to project implementers for these stopped/stalled

projects. The projects were stopped to allow for the review of the Working for Tourism Infrastructure programme to
inform the decision whether to proceed with the projects and how to proceed.

The review was finalized in 2018 and the Department intends to complete these projects and is in the process of
appointing built environment professionals to complete the agreed upon projects. The KZN Lilani Hotprings project
is currently being completed by TIKZN and EC Six Day Hiking Trail Project is being completed by ECTPA. The rest

are awaiting the appointment of the built environment professionals.

GTAC reviewed and estimated the cost of completion of 16 of these projects at R 154, 642 million.

Accruals and payables not recognised relating to Capital WIP 2018/19 2017/18
R’000 R000
Tourism Incentive Programme Infrastructure projects - 4986
Total - 4986
CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS AS AT 31 MARCH 2018
Ready for use
{(Assets to Closing
Opening the AR) )/ balance
balance Current Contracts 31 March
Note 1 April 2017 Year WIP terminated) 2018
Annexure 5  R'000 R'000 R’000 R’000
Buildings and other fixed structures 790 326 3617 (498 708) 295 235
TOTAL 790 326 3617 (498 708) 295235
Age analysis on ongoing projects Number of projects 2017/2018
Planned, Planned, Total
construction | construction | R'000
not started started
0to 1year 10 1 13 749
1 to 3 year(s) 6 4 105417
3 to 5 years - 2 39406
Longer than 5 years - 22 136 663
TOTAL 16 29 295235
29.5 S42 Immovable assets
Assets subjected to transfer in terms of 542 of the PFMA — 2018/2019
Number Value of
of assets R'000
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assets
BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES

Other fixed structures | 33 256 231

TOTAL 33 256 231

Expanded Public Works Programme and Tourism Incentive Programme infrastructure projects where the transfer
has been initiated but not completed at year end.

2018/19
R’000

EC-Aliwal Spa (2017/18) 7 879
EC-Cradock 4 Garden of Remembrance —Ph 2 (2017/18) 12 639
EC-Biko Heritage Trail Phase 2 (2017/18) 11 951
EC-Bulhoek Massacre Heritage Site-Ph 2 (2017/18) 10 384
EC-Wonkumuntu Tourism Project-Phase 3 (2017/18) 9434
EC-St Mathews & Bholotwa Tourism Project (2017/18) 19174
EC - Ubuntu Craft Market - Phase 2 7 585
EC - Hamburg Arts Colony 18 764
EC - Vusubuntu Cultral Village & Tour Info Phase 2 5 651
EC - AbaThembu Cultural Calabash 11 326
EC - Bumbane 4717
EC - Mangondo 4725
EC — Beach Public Facilities & Boat Launching Site 4 962
EC — Maluti Hiking Trail 4711
FS - Community Tourism and Crafts 1442
FS - Masilonyana Visitor Information Centre 3746
FS - Information and Business Centre 5638
FS - Witsieshoek Mountain Hotel 25444
GP - Alexandra Mandela Yard Project 6 157
KZN — Tourism Ntuzuma Attractions Phase 1 3280
KZN-Tourism Ntuzuma Attractions-Phase 2 3 861
KZN - Isibhubhu Project 14 400
KZN - Muzi Pan Canoeing 974
LP — Ngove Cultural Centre & Theatre 9434
MP - Middelburg Tourism Information Centre 5608
MP - Huntington Village Tourism Project (Phase 2) 3170
MP - Barberton 12 670
NW - The Pampierstad Recreational Park 1135
NW - N12 Treasure Route 2767
NW - Lehuruishe Bird & Supingstad Trophy Hunting 2799
WC-Tourism Development Programme for Atlantis (Phase 1) 1742
WC-Tourism Development Programme for Atlantis (Phase 2) 9832
WC - Agulhas Project 8 230
TOTAL 256 231

Assets subjected to transfer in terms of S42 of the PFMA - 2017/2018

Number Value of
of assets assets
R’'000
BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES
Other fixed structures rB4 ] l 263 139 J
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TOTAL 34 263 139

30. Principal-agent arrangements

30.1 Department acting as the principal for (Expanded Public Works Programme Projects)
Include a list of the entities acting as agents for the department Fee Paid
and the fee paid as compensation to the agent

2018/19 2017/18

PROJECTS AGENT R’000 R’000
FS - Building a Guesthouse in Qwa Qwa Phase
2 River Ranger Management Sec 21 - 26
NC - Platfontein Lodge Anix Consulting cc - 913
Tourism Blue Flag WESSA - 1195
WC - Hospitality Youth Programme Networx for Career Development - 1187
KZN - Hospitality Youth Programme Tourism World Pty (Ltd) - 1071
MP - Hospitality Youth Programme VPK Business Venture - 306
GP - Hospitality Youth Programme VPK Business Venture - 371
EC - Hospitality Youth Programme Amathemba Skills - 168
NC - Hospitality Youth Programme Networx for Career Development - 241
Food Safety Training Programme The Tourism and Business Institute Of S. A | - 2593
Wine Service Programme Tourism World (Pty) Ltd. 400 1345
LP- Hospitality Youth Training Programme Temnofto Trading - 650
NW-Hospitality Youth Training Programme Networx for Career Development - 210
FS-Hospitality Youth Training Programme Dlama SS Investment Holdings - 165
National Youth Chef Training Programme |
Phase 5 South African Chef Association 425 1266
LP - Tisane Security Project Thobela Projects cc - 55
LP - Mukumbani Security Project Thobela Projects cc - 55
GP - Komjekejeke Security Project Kayamandi Development Services (Pty) Ltd | - 56
NW - Manyane Lodge Security R E AA GA Infrastructure (PTY) Ltd - 11
LP - Mahlathi Village Security Project Thobela Projects cc - 60
LP - Ngove Cultural Village Security Second Generation - 150
LP - Vha Tsonga Cultural Village Security Second Generations Consulting - 54
LP - VhaTsonga Security Phase 3 TTT Group (PTY) Ltd - 105
NW - Manyane Lodge Security Phase 2 Taroworx (PTY) Ltd - 11
LP-Tisane Security Project Phase 3 Bafana le Ngoako Construction (PTY) Ltd - 36
LP-Mahlathi Village Security Project Phase 2 Mossflow (PTY) Ltd - 67
EC-Mthonsi Lodge Security Project Tshani Consulting cc - 74
EC-Qatywa Security Project Singalulo Enterprises (PTY) Ltd - 15
KZN-Lilani Security Project GWI Project Managers - 119
KZN-Muzi Pan Security Project Temnofto Trading - 62
KZ-Lilani Security Project Phase 2 QAIA Business Enterprise Trading cc - 19
EC-Kiwane Campsite Project Security Phase 2 Ezamatika Trading cc - 29
EC-Six Day Hiking Trail Security Cingwane Enterprises (PTY) Ltd - 7
LP-Ngovhe Cleaning Services Allied New Strategy - 49
Tourism Green Coast Project WESSA 166 -
KZN - Hospitality Youth Training Programme
Phase 2 Tourism World 150 -
EC-Hospitality Youth Training Programme
Phase 2 Corporate Skills Development Services 561 -
GP - Hospitality Youth Training Programme
Phase 2 Clean Heat Academy 264 -
MP - Hospitality Youth Training Programme
Phase 2 Bella Fe Consulting 359 -
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Tourism Transformation Fund National Empowerment Fund (NEF) 2000 -
Green Tourism Incentive Programme Industrial Development Corporation of SA 4760 -
TOTAL 9 085 12 741
Prior period errors
Correction of prior period errors
Note Amount before  Prior period Restated
error correction  error Amount
2017/18

Assets: R’000 R’000 R’000
Immovable Capital Assets 2017/18
Additions understated — Completed assets not 29.3 233 400 262 943 496 343
accounted for
Disposals understated-Disposals not accounted for 29.3 (171 182) (63 857) (235 039)
Capital Work-in-Progress-Closing balance 2017/18 29.4 769 793 (474 558) 295 235
Net effect 832 011 (275 472) 556 539
Liabilities:
Commitments 18 690 372 (26 609) 663 763
Provisions 26 10 046 (3 529) 6 517
Net effect 700 418 (30 138) 670 280
Other: (e.g. Irregular expenditure, fruitless and
wasteful expenditure, etc.)
Irregular expenditure - 2017/18
Non-compliance with SCM prescripts 22.4 - 271 271
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure -2017/18
Expanded Public Works Projects - CWIP-Difference 23.1 104 200 104 200
between expenditure and revalued
Net effect - 104 471 104 471
Note:

Non-compliance with SCM prescripts -The irregular expenditure was only confirmed by the Auditor-General after
the audited AFS was submitted to National Treasury and the Auditor-General and after the management report was

issued by the Auditor-General.
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